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Foreword: Welcome from our Chief Executive and Chairman 

Welcome to our first Annual Report and Financial Accounts for the North East Ambulance Service 

NHS Foundation Trust. This covers our first five months in operation as an NHS Foundation Trust. 

On 1 November 2011 we were granted NHS Foundation Trust status by the independent regulator, 

Monitor. We are one of only four ambulance services in the country to attain NHS Foundation Trust 

status, taking us into an exciting new era. 

I would like to thank our staff for their hard work and commitment during another busy year. In the 

face of the challenges and changes facing the wider NHS they kept their focus on the most 

important part of our service – the patients we serve. 

When writing my introduction to the Annual Report this year, it seems fitting to start with our 

successful authorisation as a Foundation Trust (FT).  After a nervous meeting between NEAS Board 

and Monitor, our new regulator’s  Board on 4th October, there was an anxious waiting time before 

we were notified on 27th October that we had been successful in our application to become a FT and 

that authorisation would commence on 1st November. I would like to thank everybody for their 

contribution to this achievement. It wasn’t something which the Board did; it wasn’t the result of 

the efforts of a group of senior managers (although there were some who went the extra mile); it 

was a collective, corporate achievement by all of NEAS because every aspect of our activity was 

assessed. Monitor assessors interviewed large numbers of staff; they attended meetings of many 

different committees and groups; they met with front line staff during some station visits; they met 

with focus groups and they also met our new Governors. No stone was left unturned! Performance, 

quality of our care, our governance, management and treatment of patients, our engagement with 

the public and with other parts of the NHS, our contribution to the financial health of the NHS – all 

of these issues and more were taken into consideration. 

So what comes next? There will be some changes but also some things will stay the same. We will 

still be part of the NHS, patients are still our first priority and caring for them in the right place and at 

the right time remains our fundamental objective. In the past our first reporting line was to the 

Strategic Health Authority (SHA). There have been some changes to this organisation with a 

“clustering” having taken place which groups the regions of North East, North West and Yorkshire 

together in a new “North” region. Whilst we will still attend meetings of the SHA they are no longer 

our line managers. Instead we are required to submit regular reports of our activities and accounts 

to Monitor on a quarterly basis and provided all is well, their observation of us will be done at arm’s 

length. So it follows that we will have greater independence to make our own decisions and to set 

our own agenda. We will have more financial freedom, so that if we make end of year surpluses we 

can reinvest them in our business. Another significant change is that we have 34 Governors – 21 

elected public Governors, 4 staff and 9 appointed stakeholder colleagues. These Governors provide 

closer links to the public and thereby provide an important two-way communication channel so that 

we can hear what our patients want and keep them informed of our vision for the future. 

Our vision at NEAS is “To make a difference by integrating care and transport in pursuit of equity and 

excellence for our patients”. To ensure we achieve our vision we have set ourselves strategic 

priorities which support this objective, these are: 
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 To lead in the provision of emergency care 

 To be a key partner in urgent care reform 

 To transform our patient transport services 

The Trust took a significant step towards realising its vision when it was successfully awarded the 

NHS 111 contract for the North East in November 2011. As provider, our Council of Governors, 

Board of Directors and staff see this as a ground-breaking opportunity for us to truly transform 

urgent care and build robust pathways of care working in strong partnership with other providers of 

urgent and community care. We want our NHS 111 service to not only be the first choice for 

patients, but also other professionals and carers to ensure our patients obtain the ‘right care at the 

in the right place at the right time’. During 2012/13 we will start the process to roll out the service to 

the South of Tyne, North of Tyne and Teesside areas. 

The Trust’s strategy over the next three years is to strengthen and improve our emergency response 

service, integrating our range of transport services and developing better urgent care pathways that 

provide us with alternatives to hospital admission. We remain fully committed to continuing to 

improve the quality of services to our patients and we hope that we can help deliver this continuous 

quality improvement through our annual strategy. I hope you will find this document to be useful 

and informative. 

 

About us 

The North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust is one of the highest performing 

ambulance services in England.  

We operate across four counties, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear, Durham and Teesside.  

We provide emergency and urgent care and patient transport services for an area of around 3,230 

square miles and we employ over 2000 people who serve our population of circa 2.66million.  

We currently have 65 Trust locations, including 56 A&E ambulance stations. A number of these 

stations also house non-emergency Patient Transport Service employees and vehicles and we share 

some of our sites with fire and rescue services, securing financial efficiencies. 

Core Services Overview 

Accident and Emergency (A&E) Service 

We receive, prioritise and respond to over 360,000 emergency and urgent incidents per annum.  Of 

these incidents, over 110,000 are immediately life threatening and require an 8 minute response 

time.  There are also 10 new Ambulance Quality Indicators which are aimed at judging the quality of 

care we provide and assessing patient outcomes.  

The A&E service also provides a 120 to 240 minute transport service for on average 65,000 patients 

per annum, transporting those who require direct admission to hospital following a GP assessment. 

An additional 1,500 patients per annum require a high dependency transfer. 

Our Emergency Planning Department also forms part of A&E operations and is a service that we are 
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required to provide under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. It provides medical support and training 

so that the service is prepared in the event of a major incident.  

Patient Transport Service 

Our Patient Transport Service facilitates vital access for many patients requiring healthcare or 

treatment services at outpatient appointments. We plan for over one million patient transport 

service journeys every year. We also provide an urgent transport service in County Durham and 

Darlington for patients with an ‘urgent’ (non-emergency) healthcare need. 

Contact Centre Operations 

A&E and PTS are both supported by our two contact centres which manage in excess of 800,000 

calls per annum. Our first contact centre is based at our headquarters in Newburn and the second of 

our contact centres, Russell House, went live at the end of 2009, enhancing our call handling 

resilience. 

NEAS was successful in the competitive tendering process for NHS 111 in November 2011 and will 

provide NHS 111 services for the whole North East region by 2013. This service is currently live in 

County Durham and Darlington for people who need healthcare but are unsure if they need an 

ambulance. A trained call handler will assess their needs and either refer them to a local point of 

care, for example, their GP or walk in centre, or arrange an emergency ambulance if one is needed. 

Non-core Services 

Training Services 

We provide a range of first aid, first responder, accident prevention and conflict resolution training 

for external organisations, generating an income for the Trust.  

Medical Cover 

We provide Paramedic cover for local events such as the Tall Ships Race, music concerts and 

sporting events like the Great North Run, football and rugby matches. 

Our Partners 

Our partners include two Mental Health Trusts, two Foundation Trusts; Northumberland Tyne and 

Wear NHS Foundation Trust and Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust as well as 12 local 

unitary authorities, and eight acute hospital Trusts. The Trust also works very closely with St Johns 

Ambulance Service and the British Red Cross. 

How we are monitored 

Ambulance performance is monitored by the NHS Primary Care Trust Boards and overseen by NHS 

North East - the Strategic Health Authority for the region. This body represents the Department of 

Health in the area.  

A&E ambulance services are paid for by NHS Primary Care Trusts, of which there are 12 in the North 

East and our lead commissioner for this service is NHS North of Tyne. We meet regularly to discuss 

the quality and efficiency of the service. In 2013 the Primary Care Trusts will be replaced by Clinical 

Commissioning Groups. The Strategic Health Authority will be disestablished during 2013, and some 

of its functions taken over by a regional outpost of the National Commissioning Board.   
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We have a fleet of various vehicles to satisfy the needs of the diverse area we cover in terms of 

population and geography: 

 142 Accident & Emergency (A&E) emergency ambulance frontline vehicles; 

 68 Rapid Response Vehicles including Urgent Care Service (UCS) cars; 

 231 Patient Transport Service (PTS) vehicles; 

 39 other vehicles including motorcycles, resilience, pool and logistics vehicles; 

 We also utilise helicopter support funded by the Great North Air Ambulance Service, where 

necessary. 

 

Our mission, vision and strategy 

Our mission 

“Right Care, Right Place, Right Time” 

Patients are at the heart of everything that we do to support our mission of "right care, right place, 

right time".  We have a strong track record of delivering high quality patient care; focussing 

resources to produce the most effective outcomes. We are at the leading edge of innovative service 

design which has consistently led to us being one of the highest performing ambulance trusts in the 

country. 

Our vision 

“To make a difference by integrating our care and transport in the pursuit of equity and excellence 

for our patients” 

This means we will drive through improvements in service delivery and work to ensure all of our 

patients have a positive experience, not losing sight of our requirement to eliminate waste, 

inefficiency and unnecessary costs.  

Values 

Our values underpin everything we do: 

 Committed, professional and accountable 

 Working together 

 Delivering consistently 

 Shaping the future 

 Showing we care 

Our strategic intentions 

We have a strong track record for delivering high quality and good value patient care, but we are not 

complacent and we continue to seek improvement and good value. Even with the economic 

challenges ahead we are more committed than ever to driving forward our strategy. With this in 

mind we have put in place six equally important strategic intentions, which are supported by our 

corporate objectives. 

To lead in the provision of emergency care 

 We want to be the provider of choice for A&E services and lead through innovation, 
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research and performance. 

To be a key partner in urgent care reform 

 We want to help deliver the changes that our patients and our commissioners are asking for 

using our expertise and infrastructure. 

To transform patient transport services 

 We want to continue to be the provider of choice for PTS in the North East. 

To be a first rate employer 

 We want to ensure our staff are appropriately supported, with fair pay and flexible working 

conditions and a safe and productive working environment. 

To have sound financial health 

  We want to maintain strong financial health that enables us to invest in new service 

developments, constantly taking the organisation forward.  

To be a well governed and accountable service 

 We want to continue to ensure that the safety and quality of our services to patients 

remains our highest priority. 

The ‘house’ graphic summarises our mission, vision, strategic intentions and our values; with 

patients as a central focus. 

 

 

Our Annual Plan provides more detailed information about our business objectives for each year and 

copies are available on our website. 

The Trust was successfully registered with the independent regulator of NHS providers, the Care 

Quality Commission on 1 April 2010 for the following regulated activities without compliance 
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conditions: 

 Treatment of Disease, Disorder or Injury 

 Transport Services, Triage and Medical Advice Provided Remotely 

In September 2010 the Trust also registered for the following activity, again without conditions: 

 Diagnostic and Screening Procedures 

 

Business review 

Trust development and performance  

The business of the Trust is delivered predominantly through three core service lines; Accident 

and Emergency Service (A&E), Patient Transport Service (PTS) and Contact Centres. 

Performance against contract 

The A&E service has been contracted on a block basis. This means that a financial value is 

agreed for each year and indicative activity levels set. Any variation by PCT is charged by 

incident at an agreed rate. Performance indicators are set and subject to performance 

monitoring by Commissioners. The A&E service is measured by activations (the number of times 

an ambulance response vehicle is requested). 

The Patient Transport Service (PTS) contract is provided on a block basis. This is measured by 

the number of journeys it carries out.  

The NHS 111 service is currently provided on a block basis based on the agreed annual contract 

value.   

A summary of the performance against contract for each of the three core service lines is 

summarised below. 

Activity Levels for 2011/12 versus 2010/11 

This table shows the activity and volume of demand on our service in terms of calls and patient 

journeys, for the period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012, and a comparison against the 

same period for the previous financial year. 

Service Activity November 1
st 

2010 

to March 31
st

 2011 

Activity November 1
st 

2011 

to March 31
st

 2012 

A&E-number of total journeys  124,383 128,747 

PTS-number of total journeys 381,486 368,085 

A&E-number of calls answered by 

the Contact Centre 

193,614 198,255 

PTS-number of calls answered by 

the Contact Centre 

159,077 141,672 

NHS 111- number of calls answered 

by the Contact Centre 

 68,738 68,412 

 

 

  



8 
 

National Performance Targets 

A&E service  

We believe the UK has some of the toughest performance targets of any ambulance service in 

the world set out by the Department of Health and demand for our emergency service 

continues to rise every year. 

The Trust successfully met and exceed both challenging performance targets for 2011/12: 

Category A8 – Life threatening emergency calls, presenting conditions which may be 

immediately life threatening and should receive an emergency response within 8 minutes 

irrespective of location in 75% of cases.  

Category A19 – Life threatening emergency calls, presenting conditions which require a fully 

equipped ambulance vehicle to attend the incident, must have an ambulance vehicle arrive 

within 19 minutes in 95% of cases. 

Key Performance 

Indicator 

National target Actual performance 

2011/12 

Actual performance 

2010/11 

Category A 8 75% 77.88% 75.8% 

Category A 19 95% 98.83% 98.2% 

The Trust is committed to the delivery of the national response targets set for ambulance 

services and proactively monitors daily forecasts and actual performance. The impressive year-

on-year track record of success continues to provide strong assurance for patients and 

Commissioners that NEAS is able to consistently achieve national response targets.  

April 2011 saw the introduction of new Ambulance Quality Indicators (AQI) for the whole 

ambulance service. These new indicators saw the removal of the Category B, 19 minute 

response time target (serious but not immediately life-threatening) for ambulances, which has 

been replaced with a set of 10 new quality indicators. These are in addition to our Category A 8 

and 19 minute targets. These new indicators have been designed to look at the whole patient 

care pathway and to encourage discussion at a local NHS level about how care can be 

improved. They aim to monitor not only the response time to patients but also patient 

outcomes. 

2011/12 has been a year of shadow reporting these indicators as no targets have yet been 

released by the Department of Health. 

Performance for 2011/12 is summarised below. 

Key Performance Indicator Internal Trajectory Actual Performance 

2011/12  

1. Call abandonment rate N/A*** 0.84% 

2. Re-contact rate following discharge of care 

Re-contact rate following discharge of care by 

telephone 

N/A*** 14.94% 
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Re-contact, following discharge of care from 

treatment at the scene 

N/A*** 5.22% 

Proportion of calls from patients for whom a 

locally agreed frequent caller procedure is in 

place 

Procedure being developed*** 

3. Outcome from cardiac arrest-return of spontaneous circulation (ROSC) 

ROSC at time of arrival at hospital (Overall) 22% 21.65%* 

ROSC at time of arrival at hospital (Utstein**) 40% 47.88%* 

4. Service experience  

5. Outcome from acute ST-elevation myocardial infarction (STEMI) (Heart attack) 

Percentage of STEMI patients receiving 

thrombolysis within 60 minutes of call 

NEAS do not practice thrombolysis. The 

Trust worked to PPCI instead (see indicator 

below) 

The percentage of patients suffering a STEMI 

who are directly transferred to a centre 

capable of delivering primary percutaneous 

coronary intervention (PPCI) and receive 

angioplasty within 150 minutes of call. 

75% 90%* 

The percentage of patients suffering a STEMI 

who receive an appropriate care bundle. 

95% 80%* 

6. Outcome from stroke for ambulance patients 

The percentage of Face Arm Speech Test 

(FAST) positive stroke patients (assessed face 

to face) potentially eligible for stroke 

thrombolysis, who arrive at a hyperacute 

stroke centre within 60 minutes of call. 

92% 87%* 

The percentage of suspected stroke patients 

(assessed face to face) who receive an 

appropriate care bundle. 

95% 93%* 

7. Outcome from cardiac arrest – survival to discharge 

Survival to discharge 7% 8%* 

Survival to discharge [Utstein**] 22% 28%* 

8. Time to answer call 

Median (seconds) N/A*** 1 

95th percentile (seconds) N/A*** 1 

Longest time to answer (seconds) N/A*** 35 

9. Time to treatment- Category A calls (immediately life threatening) 

Median (minutes) N/A*** 5.47 

95th percentile N/A*** 14.56 
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99th percentile N/A*** 22.16 

10. Ambulance calls closed with telephone advice or managed without transport to A&E 

(where clinically appropriate) 

Calls closed with telephone advice N/A*** 3.39% 

Incidents managed without the need to 

transport to A&E.  

N/A*** 33% 

*Quarter 4 data was not available at the time of producing this report 

**Utstein is a set of uniform reporting rules and criteria for studying episodes and outcomes of out-of-

hospital cardiac arrest which focus on cases of witnessed cardiac arrest due to ventricular fibrillation or 

pulseless ventricular tachycardia 

***Ambulance Quality Measures were not introduced until 2011/12 so earlier data is unavailable. 

2011/12 was a baseline year, with performance targets to be set in 2012/13. 

The Trust was one of the top ambulance service performers in the country in the STEMI 

indicator and continues to work towards our internal trajectory of 95% for administering the 

care bundle to STEMI patients. The Trust’s Quality Improvement Officer has been providing 

feedback to operational staff and focusing improvements in order to drive high quality care and 

correct documentation of that care. 

The Trust has been the best performing ambulance trust in the country throughout 2011/12 

and narrowly missed the internal trajectory of 92% for arriving at a hyperacute stroke centre 

within 60 minutes for patients who were presenting with a potential stroke. The Quality 

Improvement Officer has clinically reviewed all the cases over 90 minutes in an audit outside of 

AQI requirements. Only 16 cases in six months (out of an approximate 1000 total cases) 

resulted in patients being transported outside of the recommended timeframe of 60 minutes. 

We also aim to give patients with a suspected stroke a care bundle in at least 95% of cases. 

Although we have not achieved the ambitious internal trajectory we are very pleased with the 

average over the three quarters and we are continuing to drive quality by providing feedback 

where improvements are required.  

Additional National Clinical Performance Indicators for certain medical conditions were set out 

by the Department of Health and reported in previous versions of this report.  These included 

reporting on performance for treatment of patients with asthma and hypoglycaemia. The Trust 

reports this data to the national Directors of Clinical Care group every six months. There is no 

data available for this reporting period of November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012, though the 

Trust is still monitoring these indicators internally.  

Patient Transport Service  

National targets do not exist for the Patient Transport Service. However, the Trust has set local 

targets and standards, with more to be introduced as part of our PTS Transformation 

Programme. We have successfully met all these targets due to the commitment, hard work and 

dedication of the operational, contact centre and planning staff. 

Key Performance Indicator Locally agreed target Actual performance 2011/12 

Calls answered within 30 
seconds 

90% 84.34% 

Calls abandoned  after 80 5% 0.38% 
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seconds 

We experienced some challenges in meeting the 90% target in quarter one of the financial year 

however, these issues are now resolved and we are performing at over 90% consistently.  

Principal risks and uncertainties facing NEAS 

We have a robust approach to recognising and monitoring risk within our organisation, through 

our directorate and organisational risk registers. We are aware that our business and the 

services we provide form part of the larger NHS and we must be aware of the changing 

environment in healthcare, commissioning and the general operating environment. The 

principal risks and threats faced by the Trust are aligned to the six strategic intentions which in 

turn support delivery of the mission and vision "right care, right place, right time". 

We perceive the principle risks facing our organisation at present to be; 

Risk Impact if risk was to be realised Mitigation and actions to 

reduce risk 

1. PTS: Finance ‘versus’ 

quality – lack of Unique 

Selling Point (USP) of PTS, 

lack of Service Specification  

and equality of care – 

Commissioners choosing 

cheapest service because of 

the lack of USP and Service 

Specification.  

 Loss of PTS contracts due to 

commissioners using price 

rather than quality as a key 

priority. 

 Quality of service is 

affected if funding reduced. 

 Lack of Service Specification 

poses risk that there is no 

understanding of current 

service delivery and should 

PTS contract go to tender, 

the service could expect to 

go through vast restructure 

in order to align to required 

specification. 

 All staff and vehicles 

identified by contracts. 

 A significant improvement 

programme focused on 

improving quality and 

efficiency is underway. 

 PTS strategy is being 

developed.    

2. Current economic climate, 

national pay freeze & 

pensions review causing 

unrest. 

Minimal recognition of the 

need for changes to 

working practices and 

service delivery. 

 Deterioration in service 

provision affecting our 

ability to achieve national 

and local performance 

standards. 

 Patient safety, quality of 

the service and reputation 

is affected. 

 Regulatory body increases 

monitoring. 

 Unable to achieve financial 

targets. 

 The Board received update 

reports on a regular basis. 

 Articles were 

communicated in the Pulse 

which provides updates to 

staff. 

 The Improvement Steering 

Group included staff side 

representatives.  

 RPIW reports and action 

plans arranged to make 

improvements. 

 Joint management and staff 

meeting to plan 

modernisation of Accident 

and Emergency services. 

 Quarterly Quality Report, 
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IPR, Clinical Audit. 

 Daily escalation plan. 

Resource Escalation Action 

Plan initiated. 

 Targeted improvement of 

handover and turnaround 

times. 

 Implementation of NHS 111 

and service directory. 

 Redesign of A&E delivery 

model. 

3. Poor quality of data input 

to feeder systems leads to 

delays in the 

implementation of 

Enterprise Information 

Systems (EIS) or poor 

reporting under EIS. 

 Inability to demonstrate 

true performance and 

address any non-

compliance resulting in 

increased risk to quality 

and patient safety. 

 Reliance on manual/ 

spreadsheet systems in 

uncoordinated fashion with 

potential for unacceptable 

errors and misreporting. 

 Poor data quality and data 

integrity and inappropriate 

use of data. 

 Clinical Audit Function 

Investment in Quality 

Improvement Officer roles. 

 EIS steering group. 

 Electronic Patient Report 

Form (EPRF) optimisation 

project 12/13. 

 EIS project put in place 

commences 1st week May 

2012 with full project 

management, milestones, 

user involvement and 

reporting to Board 

subcommittee (Governance 

and Risk Committee). 

4. Changes to commissioning 

intentions/the operating 

framework/the external 

environment, which may 

influence the ability to 

adhere to efficiency saving 

programme. 

 Unable to achieve cost 

improvement targets with 

resulting adverse impact on 

financial risk ratings. 

 Potential impact on quality 

of services due to need to 

take unplanned short term 

financial measures. 

 Intelligence gained via 

Monitor assumptions, 

Foundation Trust Network, 

SHA Director of Finance 

meetings, commissioning 

meetings and relationship 

meetings with the 

emerging Clinical 

Commissioning Groups 

(CCGs). 

 Response via 

implementation of reserve 

contingency schemes 

5. Failure to deliver NHS 111 

contract standards. 

Commissioners do not put 

the right community 

infrastructure in place to 

effectively enable us to 

refer patients to alternative 

pathways which may have 

 Financial penalty for non-

delivery. 

 Deterioration in our 

National performance 

targets.  Potential effects 

on our core provision 

include increased number 

of patients being referred 

 The North East NHS 111 

contract clearly identifies 

population of the CMS DoS 

(Directory of Services) as 

the responsibility of 

Commissioners.  

 Ongoing discussions with 

NHS 111 regional project 
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an effect on our services 

and transport. 

to emergency departments 

(EDs) and increased 

hospital delays. 

lead where potential 

impact on 999 services has 

been highlighted.   

 Letter sent to 

Commissioners from NEAS 

lead director on 111 project 

in March 2012 outlining 

concern about NHS 111 

potential transport impact 

on NEAS.  

 Commissioners are actively 

reviewing regional 

transport issues. 

 DH commissioned Sheffield 

University Evaluation 

Interim report shows that 

the NHS 111 in County 

Durham and Darlington has 

resulted in fewer 

attendances at ED and a 

reduction in 999 calls. 

 NHS 111 Governance 

Structure. 

 

We have mapped these risks to our strategic priorities and regularly monitor them at Board 

level. 

Social and Community Matters  

We are aware of the importance of having as many resources as possible available for patients 

who may need help, and it is for this reason we engage First Responders. A First Responder is a 

volunteer who has had training to act on behalf of the North East Ambulance Service, 

responding to emergency calls when dispatched by the contact centre. They deal with a specific 

list of emergencies and provide the patient with support and appropriate treatment until the 

ambulance arrives. The types of incident where a First Responder would be dispatched include 

things such as breathing difficulties and respiratory arrest, chest pains, heart attack, cardiac 

arrest, unconsciousness (when not due to a trauma) and collapse. 

First Responders are set up in towns and villages where it is challenging for the emergency 

ambulance to arrive within the valuable first few minutes. It is proven that the first few minutes 

after some incidents have occurred are crucial to chances of patient recovery. The First 

Responders are dispatched at the same time as an ambulance response. They are an important 

and reliable resource for us and dedicate their time and skills on a voluntary basis to support 

our service and their local community. 

We have static sites across the region, where First Responders are trained in the use of life-

saving techniques and equipment within that location. These sites include the Metrocentre in 

Gateshead, Newcastle Airport, The Mall Shopping Centre in Middlesbrough, Beamish Museum, 
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Darlington Train Station, Dalton Park Shopping Outlet in Murton, and Shildon Locomotion 

Museum among others. 

The First Responder Management Team has recruited 17 Community First Responders during 

the period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012. This brings the total number of Community 

First Responders to 175. 

To enhance the responders’ clinical knowledge, they now receive refresher training every six 

months.  We have strengthened our governance arrangements for responders by changing the 

way they are managed and dispatched by our 999 Contact Centres, to increase their availability 

to our local communities. We are now able to see the availability of all of our responders, which 

helps us to target resources to help more and more patients. This will be rolled out to all 

responders throughout 2012/13. 

In some areas, patients can expect to see much more of our clinical staff; in GP surgeries 

monitoring Electro Cardio Graph (ECGs), and taking bloods and visiting patients at home if they 

have chronic conditions such as Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disorder (COPD). They are also 

helping Practice Nurses by visiting patients who may not have had a health check in over a year 

and are supporting GPs by responding to emergency home visits. This means that GPs can 

remain at their surgery to see more patients and reduce the number of appointments being 

delayed or rescheduled. 

Our staff have also visited schools, clubs, fetes, organisations, events and career road shows 

across the region helping to educate the public about accident prevention, the work of an 

emergency service as well as promoting the North East Ambulance Service as a potential 

employer. Some of these events, such as the Reduction of Accident at Play initiative in South 

Tyneside have involved thousands of children. 

Safety workshops are held regularly and are staffed by Paramedics, Urgent Care Assistants, 

Contact Centre and Patient Transport Service staff. The aim is to teach children from as young 

as three years what they should do if an emergency should occur. Different scenarios are given, 

from how to deal with a cut finger to what to do in the case of a heart attack. 

Our customer care team has contributed to events that help promote the support that is 

available for people who fall and need the help of the ambulance service and social care teams. 

We have also hosted a programme of events with our foundation trust members, joining up 

with hospital foundation trusts in the region to deliver free health-related advice and 

information. These events have covered topics like 

• What happens during a heart attack 

• Blood pressure and mental health. 

• Coping with falls. 

These visits give NEAS a further opportunity to familiarise people within our community with 

the ambulance service and staff. Anyone who has seen the equipment used inside an 

ambulance and can recognise the uniforms of those sent to help them will be less traumatized 

if they ever need to travel by ambulance themselves. 
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Communications and engagement 

We have a three year communications and engagement strategy which is available on our 

website. This strategy outlines our commitment to keep patients, staff and stakeholders 

informed of the direction, performance and activities of the Trust. The strategy is designed to 

facilitate an environment in which there is robust, representative and responsive involvement 

from patients, staff and the wider community about how our services are provided, improved 

and changed. It also seeks to increase the awareness among Trust managers and the Trust 

Board of Directors of these wide and diverse views. 

Our employees 

We employ a highly skilled and diverse workforce of over 2,000 staff members. The information 

in the tables below outlines the composition of our staff, as of March 31st 2012. 

Establishment Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Staff FTE Total Staff 

31 March 2012 2019.82 100% 

 

*Includes volunteers as well as employees 

 

 

 

Summary of Workforce by Ethnicity Headcount Headcount % 

White - British 1714 73.59% 

White - Irish 4 0.17% 

White - Any other White background 9 0.39% 

White English 1 0.04% 

White Scottish 5 0.21% 

White Other European 2 0.09% 

Mixed – White & Black Caribbean 1 0.04% 

Mixed – White & Black African 3 0.13% 

Mixed – White & Asian 2 0.09% 

Mixed – Other/Unspecified 1 0.04% 

Asian or Asian British - Indian 1 0.04% 

Asian or Asian British - Pakistani 1 0.04% 

Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi 6 0.26% 

Black or Black British - Caribbean 3 0.13% 

Chinese 3 0.13% 

Filipino 1 0.04% 

Undefined 1 0.04% 

Not Stated 571 24.52% 

Total 2329* 100.00% 
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Summary of 

Workforce by age 

Total 

Headcount 

% Total 

Headco

unt 

Headco

unt 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headco

unt 

Male 

% Male 

Headco

unt 

16 - 20 31 1.36% 17 1% 14 1% 

21 - 25 101 4.90% 61 3% 40 2% 

26 - 30 182 8.48% 105 5% 77 4% 

31 - 35 300 14.01% 155 7% 145 7% 

36 - 40 368 17.00% 172 8% 196 9% 

41 - 45 340 15.00% 139 6% 201 9% 

46 - 50 315 13.74% 99 5% 216 10% 

51 - 55 261 11.83% 57 3% 204 9% 

56 - 60 200 8.79% 27 1% 173 8% 

61 - 65 86 3.94% 10 0% 76 3% 

66 - 70 16 0.68% 0 0% 16 1% 

 

 

Summary of Workforce by Gender Headcount Headcount % 

Female 842 37.72% 

Male 1360 62.28% 

 

Declaration of Workforce by Disability Headcount Headcount % 

No 1326 60.24% 

Not Declared 791 35.94% 

Undefined 6 0.27% 

Yes 78 3.54% 

Summary of Workforce by Sexual Orientation Headcount Headcount% 

Bisexual 5 0.23% 

Gay 17 0.77% 

Heterosexual 1390 63.01% 

I do not wish to disclose 762 34.54% 

Lesbian 18 0.82% 

Undefined 9 0.41% 

Summary of 

Gender by Pay 

Band 

Female 

Headcount 

% Female 

Headcount 

Male 

Headcount 

% Male 

Headcount 

% Headcount 

Total 

Band 1 15 0.68% 9 0.41% 1.07% 

Band 2 66 3.00% 126 5.72% 6.69% 

Band 3 338 15.36% 466 21.17% 36.66% 

Band 4 49 2.23% 57 2.59% 4.74% 
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Summary of Workforce by Religion and Belief Headcount Headcount% 

Atheism 211 9.56% 

Buddhism 6 0.27% 

Christianity 1025 46.46% 

Hinduism 1 0.05% 

I do not wish to disclose my religion/belief 851 38.58% 

Islam 5 0.23% 

Other 93 4.22% 

Undefined 9 0.41% 

 

Organisation 

Length of Service 

Distribution 

Male 

Headcount 

% Male 

Headcount 

Female 

Headcount 

% Female 

Headcount 

Total 

Headcount 

% Total 

headcount 

0-1 yrs 119 9% 90 11% 209 9.50% 

01-05 yrs 555 41% 429 51% 984 44.71% 

06-10 yrs 224 16% 161 19% 385 17.49% 

11-15 yrs 149 11% 73 9% 222 10.09% 

16-20 yrs 124 9% 32 4% 156 7.09% 

21-25 yrs 100 7% 51 6% 151 6.86% 

26-30 yrs 46 3% 5 1% 51 2.32% 

31-35 yrs 35 3% 1 0% 36 1.64% 

36-40 yrs 6 0% 0 0% 6 0.27% 

40+ 1 0% 0 0% 1 0.05% 

Total 1359 99% 842 100% 2201 100.00% 

Starters Data 

The following tables show the information for all new starters who joined our Trust during the 

period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012. 

Starters Gender/ 

BME* Detail 

New starter 

headcount  
Headcount % BME Headcount Headcount % 

Male 45 54.22% 3 6.66% 

Female 38 45.78% 0 0.00% 

Total 83 100% 3 6.66% 

Band 5 282 12.81% 530 24.08% 38.10% 

Band 6 45 2.04% 109 4.95% 7.71% 

Band 7 23 0.01% 26 0.01% 1.95% 

Band 8A 8 0.36% 7 0.32% 0.74% 

Band 8B 4 0.18% 11 0.50% 0.70% 

Band 8C 5 0.23% 5 0.23% 0.28% 

Band 8D 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0.05% 

CEO/Dirs 1 0.00% 4 0.00% 0.27% 

Other 6 0.00% 9 0.00% 1.00% 



18 
 

*Black and Minority Ethnic 

Starters Age 

Distribution 

Detail 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

16-20 1 2.22% 1 2.63% 2 2.41% 

21-25 7 15.56% 6 15.79% 13 15.66% 

26-30 6 13.33% 6 15.79% 12 14.46% 

31-35 3 6.67% 6 15.79% 9 10.84% 

36-40 4 8.89% 9 23.68% 13 15.66% 

41-45 1 2.22% 4 10.53% 5 6.02% 

46-50  5 11.11% 3 7.89% 8 9.64% 

51-55 10 22.22% 2 5.26% 12 14.46% 

56-60 4 8.89% 0 0.00% 4 4.82% 

61-65 4 8.89% 1 2.63% 5 6.02% 

66-70 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 

 

Starters 

Religious Detail 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

Atheist 4 8.89% 8 21.05% 12 14.12% 

Christian 25 55.56% 22 57.89% 47 55.29% 

I do not wish to 

disclose my 

religion/ belief 

10 22.22% 3 7.89% 13 15.29% 

Islamic 1 2.22% 0 0.00%   0.00% 

Other 1 2.22% 3 7.89% 4 4.71% 

Undefined 4 8.89% 2 5.26% 6 7.06% 

 

Starters Sexual 

Orientation Detail 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

Gay 2 2.41% 0 0.00% 2 2.41% 

Heterosexual 36 43.37% 32 38.55% 68 81.93% 

I do not wish to 

disclose my sexual 

orientation 

3 3.61% 2 2.41% 5 6.02% 

Lesbian 0 0.00% 2 2.41% 2 2.41% 

Undefined 4 4.82% 2 2.41% 6 7.23% 

 

Starters 

Disabled 

Declaration 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

No 39 86.67% 31 81.58% 70 84.34% 

Not Declared 1 2.22% 2 5.26% 3 3.61% 

Undefined 4 8.89% 3 7.89% 7 8.43% 

Yes 1 2.22% 2 5.26% 3 3.61% 
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Leavers Data 

The following tables show the information for all staff that ceased employment with the Trust 

during the period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012. 

Leavers Gender Headcount Headcount % 

Male 28 36.36% 

Female 49 63.64% 

Total 77 100.00% 

 

BME Leavers BME Headcount BME Headcount % 

Male 2 7.14% 

Female 1 2.04% 

 

Leavers Age 

Distribution Detail 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

16-20 0 0 0 3.17% 0 0.00% 

21-25 5 6.49% 3 3.90% 8 10.39% 

26-30 7 9.09% 4 5.19% 11 14.29% 

31-35 3 3.90% 3 3.90% 6 7.79% 

36-40 3 3.90% 4 5.19% 7 9.09% 

41-45 1 1.30% 5 6.49% 6 7.79% 

46-50 4 5.19% 4 5.19% 8 10.39% 

51-55 3 3.90% 3 3.90% 6 7.79% 

56-60 11 14.29% 2 2.60% 13 16.88% 

61-65 11 14.29% 0 0.00% 11 14.29% 

66-70 1 1.30% 0 0 1 1.30% 

 

Leavers 

Religious Detail 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

Atheist 6 7.79% 7 9.09% 13 16.88% 

Christianity 23 29.87% 12 15.58% 35 45.45% 

Hinduism 1 1.30% 0 0.00% 1 1.30% 

I do not wish to 

disclose my 

religion/ belief 

16 20.78% 7 9.09% 23 29.87% 

Other 1 1.30% 0 0.00% 1 1.30% 

Undefined 2 2.60% 1 1.30% 3 3.90% 

Islam 0 0.00% 1 1.30% 1 1.30% 

 

Leavers Sexual 

Orientation 

Detail 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

Gay 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 
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Heterosexual 33 42.86% 18 23.38% 51 63.49% 

I do not wish to 

disclose my 

sexual 

orientation 

16 20.78% 9 11.69% 25 33.33% 

Lesbian 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 

Undefined 0 0.00% 1 1.30% 1 0.79% 

 

Leavers Disabled 

Declarations 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

No 30 38.96% 17 22.08% 47 59.52% 

Not Declared 16 20.78% 9 11.69% 25 32.54% 

Undefined 0 0.00% 1 1.30% 1 1.59% 

Yes 3 3.90% 1 1.30% 4 6.35% 

 

Leavers by 

Length of 

Service 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

0-01 yrs 8 16.33% 11 39.29% 19 34.13% 

01-05 yrs 15 30.61% 12 42.86% 27 38.89% 

06-10 yrs 7 14.29% 1 3.57% 8 8.73% 

11-15 yrs 3 6.12% 3 11% 6 3.97% 

16-20 yrs 3 6.12% 0 0% 3 3.17% 

21-25 yrs 4 8.16% 1 4% 5 0.79% 

26-30 yrs 3 6.12% 0 0% 3 2.38% 

31-35 yrs 4 8.16% 0 0% 4 6.35% 

36-40 yrs 2 4.08% 0 0% 2 1.59% 

 

Leavers by Leaving 

Reason 

Headcount 

Male 

% Male 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Female 

% Female 

Headcount 

Headcount 

Total 

% Total 

Headcount 

Death in Service 3 3.90% 0 0.00% 3 3.90% 

Dismissal - 

Capability 
3 3.90% 3 3.90% 6 7.79% 

Dismissal - Conduct 0 0.00% 2 2.60% 2 2.60% 

Dismissal - Some 

Other Substantial 

Reason 

3 3.90% 0 0.00% 3 3.90% 

End of Fixed Term 

Contract 
0 0.00% 1 1.30% 1 1.30% 

Redundancy - 

Compulsory 
0 0.00% 1 1.30% 1 1.30% 

Retirement Age 12 15.58% 0 0.00% 12 15.58% 

Voluntary Early 

Retirement - with 

Actuarial Reduction 

8 10.39% 1 1.30% 9 11.69% 
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Voluntary 

Resignation - Adult 

Dependents 

1 1.30% 0 0.00% 1 1.30% 

Voluntary 

Resignation - 

Better Reward 

Package 

2 2.60% 3 3.90% 5 6.49% 

Voluntary 

Resignation - Child 

Dependents 

0 0.00% 1 1.30% 1 1.30% 

Voluntary 

Resignation - 

Health 

0 0.00% 1 1.30% 1 1.30% 

Voluntary 

Resignation - 

Other/Unknown 

10 12.99% 11 14.29% 21 27.27% 

Voluntary 

Resignation - 

Promotion 

1 1.30% 0 0.00% 1 1.30% 

Voluntary 

Resignation - 

Relocation 

3 3.90% 3 3.90% 6 7.79% 

Voluntary 

Resignation - Work 

Life Balance 

3 3.90% 1 1.30% 4 5.19% 

Our optimum workforce numbers 

We monitor what we believe our ideal number of staff would be. We call this ideal number the 

‘establishment’. We have closely monitored how many staff we actually employ against the 

number of staff we would ideally like to have in order to operate our Trust at maximum 

efficiency. The table below shows our establishment and actual staffing levels as of March 31st 

2012: 

Establishment (March 31st 2012) Actual staff (March 31st 2012) 

2141.2 2018.0 
 

 

A year with us 

Our patients often contact us to let us know about their experience of our service: 
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“My husband called the ambulance after I experienced 

chest pain around 6am. The ambulance arrived very 

quickly and I was really reassured by the care and 

professionalism shown. They checked me over, 

reassured me and took me to Wansbeck A&E - I felt I 

could not have been in better hands. Thankfully I was 

not having a heart attack or suffering from anything 

serious; although I felt a bit embarrassed [attending 

NEAS crew] reassured me that I had done the right thing 

in calling for help. I will always be grateful for their 

care.” 

 

North East Resident, February 2012 

 

“We can’t thank [attending NEAS crew] enough. They 

were absolutely wonderful, and I just want it down on 

record, because sometimes people spend their life 

criticising the health service for different things. My 

husband has had cancer twice and a heart attack and 

VF and now a near miss with a cardiac arrest – yet he’s 

still alive to tell the tale. Both myself and him are very 

grateful to the NHS. I want to say a great big thank you 

from the bottom of my heart to [attending NEAS crew] 

for stopping at our house to save my husband’s life.” 

 

North East Resident, Cleveland, February 2012 

 

 

 

Quality governance in the North East Ambulance Service 

At the North East Ambulance Service we aim to put quality at the heart of everything we do, and our 

authorisation as a Foundation Trust has only served to concentrate our focus on quality.  We 

interpret our Board of Directors’ responsibilities for quality as follows: 

 To ensure that the essential standards of quality and safety (as determined by CQC’s 

registration requirements) are at a minimum being met by every service that the 

organisation delivers; 

 To ensure that the organisation is striving for continuous quality improvement and high 

quality clinical outcomes; and 

 To ensure that every member of staff that has contact with patients, or whose actions 

directly impact on patient care, is motivated and enabled to deliver effective, safe and 

person-centred care. 

As part of our Foundation Trust journey, we examined our processes and procedures thoroughly to 

ensure we had robust quality governance. This involved asking ourselves some key questions, by 

which we could form a judgment about quality within our organisation, such as; 

 Does quality drive the Trust’s strategy? 

 Does the Board have the necessary leadership, skills and knowledge to ensure delivery of 
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the quality agenda? 

 Are there clearly defined, well understood processes for escalating and resolving issues and 

managing quality performance? 

 Is appropriate quality information being analysed and challenged? 

 Is quality information used effectively? 

There were no areas of concern identified; however we did recognise some small gaps where we felt 

we could improve in order to strengthen our existing processes. These areas are being embedded 

and developed within the Trust currently and will continue to be monitored for progress.  

The Trust knows of no material inconsistencies between our Annual Governance Statement, our 

annual and quarterly Board statements which are required by Monitor (our regulator) as part of 

their Compliance Framework, our Quality Account, Annual Report and the CQC review which the 

Trust underwent during 2011.  
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Note: Where the source of data is not stated, the source is internal Trust data systems. Where it is not stated that a 

national definition has been applied, then the definition has been agreed locally. 
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Part 1 

 

 

Introduction to NEAS and the services we provide 

 

The North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust covers the counties of Northumberland, Tyne and 

Wear, Durham and Teesside - an area of around 3,230 square miles. We employ over 2,000 people and serve a 

population of 2.66 million. 

We provide accident and emergency (A&E) ambulance services and non-emergency transport and respond to 

999 calls for people in the North East of England. Since August 2010 we have also responded to NHS 111 calls 

for those people living in County Durham and Darlington. 

Our headquarters is based at Newburn Riverside business park, to the west of Newcastle upon Tyne city 

centre.  These headquarters house the Patient Transport Service contact centre and a large number of our 

support services staff. Our 999 and NHS 111 contact centre is split between our headquarters site and our site 

at Russell House in South Tyneside. We can also take calls at Scotswood House, where our training department 

is based. 

We currently have 65 trust locations, including 56 A&E ambulance stations. A number of these stations also 

house non-emergency PTS employees and vehicles and, to save money, we share some of our sites with fire 

and rescue services. 

We have a fleet of various vehicles to cover the different areas we serve in terms of population and 

geography. We are able to adapt to road conditions in urban and rural areas and can respond in all weather 

situations. Our A&E vehicle fleet is made up of over 189 vehicles and we have over 232 non-emergency 

vehicles within the Patient Transport Service (PTS).   

Our performance during 2011/2012 has been stronger than ever. We have met all the targets in the service-

performance areas, including achieving both Category A8 and A19 performance targets, and we met most of 

the quality measures under the Commissioning Quality and Innovation Framework (CQUIN) and the Quality 

Account by the end of the year as planned.  We also met our financial obligations in 2011/ 2012.  

Our success was recognised when, in November 2011, we became a foundation trust. Our regulator, Monitor, 

interviewed large numbers of our staff, attended meetings of many different committees and groups, met 

with front-line staff during some station visits, met with focus groups and also met our new governors. When 

deciding whether we should become a foundation trust, Monitor took the following issues, among others, into 

account. 

 Our performance 

 The quality of our care 

 Our internal control arrangements 

 How we manage and treat our patients 
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 Our contribution to the financial health of the NHS  

We have received feedback from Monitor on how we are performing. Monitor rated us as ‘Green’ for 

compliance (meeting standards) and we received a financial risk rating of 4 – the highest possible result for our 

first year as a foundation trust. 

There will be some changes now that we are a foundation trust but some things will stay the same. We will 

still be part of the NHS, patients are still our first priority and caring for them in the right place and the right 

time is still our main aim. In the past, we first had to report to the North East strategic health authority. There 

have been some changes to this organisation, which now groups the regions of North East, North West and 

Yorkshire together in a new ‘North’ region. While we will still attend meetings of the strategic health authority, 

they are no longer our line managers. Instead we have to give regular reports of our activities and accounts to 

Monitor every three months and, as long as all is well, they will check on us at ‘arm’s length’. As a result, we 

will have greater independence to make our own decisions and set our own agenda. We will have more 

financial freedom, so that if we have any money left over at the end of the financial year we can reinvest it in 

our business. Another significant change is that we will have 34 governors – 21 elected public governors, four 

from our staff and nine from our stakeholders. These governors will provide closer links with the public so that 

we can hear what our patients want and keep them informed of our vision for the future. 

Our vision, illustrated below in our ‘house diagram’, is “To make a difference by integrating care and transport 

in pursuit of equity and excellence for our patients”. To make sure we achieve our vision we have set ourselves 

priorities. These are: 

 To lead in the provision of Emergency Care 

 To be a key partner in Urgent Care Reform 

 To transform our Patient Transport Services 

Plain English Campaign’s Crystal Mark does not apply to this diagram or the list directly above. 

 

We took a significant step towards achieving our vision when we were awarded the NHS 111 contract for the 

North East in November 2011. NHS 111 is a 24-hour helpline for the public when they urgently need medical 

help or advice but the situation is not life-threatening. Our governors, directors and staff see this as a  

ground-breaking opportunity for us to transform urgent care and build reliable pathways of care, working with 

other providers of urgent and community care. We want our NHS 111 service to not only be the first choice for 

patients but also for other professionals and carers, to make sure our patients get the ‘right care at the right 
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place at the right time’. We will start to introduce the service to the rest of the areas we serve, with South of 

Tyne in September 2012 and the other areas in February 2012. 

Over the next three years, we plan to strengthen and improve our emergency response service, introduce an 

‘intermediate tier’ to our transport services (to take patients, on a GP’s advice, to hospital) and develop better 

urgent-care pathways that provide us with alternatives to hospital. We are still fully committed to continuing 

to improve the quality of services to our patients and we hope that we can continue this through the 

corporate annual strategy and the priorities identified in our Quality Account.  
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Introduction to quality within NEAS 

For our 2011/2012 Quality Account, we drew up a list of potential ‘quality priorities’, covering patient safety, 

patient experience and clinical effectiveness. We based the list on our performance over the last financial year, 

by considering local primary care trust commissioning plans, and by taking into account guidance from the 

NHS Operating Framework, which sets out the plans for the year ahead for the NHS as a whole and how we 

involve stakeholders.  To help us draw up the priorities, we hosted a Quality Account Working Group made up 

of governors and staff who shared their views and those of the people they represent. We also consulted 

LINks (the local involvement networks), the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and other stakeholders when 

deciding on the final list.   

When finalising the list, it was important to make sure that the priorities were in line with our corporate 

strategies so that we could support real improvements over a certain time. It was also important to be able to 

measure the priorities and to compare our performance against past results and against the performance of 

other ambulance trusts. 

This year has seen us further establish our governance arrangements for quality through the Quality 

Committee and the clinical governance, quality and patient safety strategy. The purpose of the Quality 

Committee is to give the Board an independent and objective review of, and reassure us about: 

• all aspects of the quality of our services, particularly clinical effectiveness, patient experience and patient 

safety,  and monitoring whether we meet essential standards of quality and safety set by the Care Quality 

Commission; 

• improvements in quality and patient safety, making sure these are central to all our activities; 

• how we encourage and monitor high-quality, clinically safe patient care; 

• whether we are meeting internal and external quality and clinical improvement targets, and the action  

management should take if we are not meeting these targets; 

 whether we are meeting the committee’s legal, compulsory and regulatory requirements; and 

 the clinical governance, quality and patient safety strategy, to make sure that it covers: 

 the experience of patients and the public,  including how a patient’s care is planned and the 

situation in which care is given;  

 use of Information; relating to patient experience, resources, process and outcomes 

 Improvements in quality,  including the clinical audit programme, decisions made based on 

research studies (evidence-based practices), risk management, and learning from incidents and 

complaints; 

 staffing and staff management, education, training and continuing professional development; and 

 leadership strategy  and planning, including involving the community and patients and clinical 

leadership. 

The committee is attended by the Director of Clinical Care and Patient Safety and is chaired by a non-executive 

director. 

We have also started to develop a new quality dashboard that will help us monitor quality more consistently, 

and this will support our well-established corporate performance dashboard. 
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Statement of Quality from our Chief Executive: our senior employee 

This is our third Quality Account and out first as a foundation trust and we have prepared it under the National 

Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010.  We have reviewed all the data (information) available on 

the quality of care in all core services, and to the best of our knowledge and belief the information in this 

account is accurate. This Quality Account for 2011/2012 sets out how we will continue to deliver high-quality 

healthcare services in 2012/2013 and includes a Quality Review which tells you how we did in 2011/2012. 

Our Quality Account reports on some of the progress we are making in achieving our vision. Last year we 

identified a number of areas where we would make improvements and this report describes the progress we 

have made. Also, we identify new priorities for the coming year, which have been chosen following lengthy 

discussion with stakeholders, and will report on their progress in next year’s Quality Account.  

The account reports on a number of successes. However, we are not complacent and recognise that we can 

always make further improvements. Part of this is about maintaining our already excellent response times and 

improving our performance in the new national ambulance quality indicators (measures of performance) 

which will help us to show the quality of care that we provide and to focus on improving the quality of our 

services. This will help us to improve the care we provide for our patients by making sure that our staff have 

the right skills and training to properly care for and treat patients.   

 

 

Simon Featherstone 

Chief Executive 
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Part 2 

 

An introduction to our Quality Account 

 

In 2009, the Department of Health (DoH) ruled that all NHS provider trusts must publish a Quality Account 

every year. The purpose of the Quality Account is to show our commitment to quality and for others to hold us 

to account. Quality is broken down into three areas: 

 Patient safety 

 Clinical effectiveness 

 Patient experience 

This Quality Account reviews our performance for 2011/2012 and sets out our main priorities for 2012/2013. 

 

Review of the 2010/2011 Quality Account Priorities: our performance in 2011/2012 

Patient safety 

Priority 1 2010/2011 2011/2012 

Stroke: the number of FAST positive 

patients arriving at a hyper-acute 

stroke centre within 60 minutes. 

 

Not available for comparison 86% 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line with 

standard national definitions 

Stroke: care bundle given to patients 

presenting with signs or symptoms of 

stroke (average) 

93% (January & July) 

Note: Data has been produced in line with 

standard national definitions 

 94% (April to December) 

Note: Data has been produced in line with 

standard national definitions 

Priority 2 2010/2011 2011/2012 

Safeguarding: rate of referral for child 

protection issues for every 1,000 calls 

0.58 (increased since the 2010/2011 

Quality Account was published due to 

delays in reporting) 

0.86 

Safeguarding: rate of referral for adult 

protection issues for every 1,000 calls 

1.09 (increased since the 2010/2011 

Quality Account was published due to 

delays in reporting) 

1.67 

   

Effectiveness 

Priority 3 2010/2011 2011/2012 
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The number of patients treated using 

alternative dispositions: Hear and 

treat 

3.8% 3.4% 

The number of patients treated using 

alternative dispositions: See and treat 

39.6% 33.1% 

   

Patient experience 

Priority 4 2010/2011 2011/2012 

Patient experience In 2010/2011 we worked to increase the 

number of surveys carried out and we 

found better methods of collecting 

patients’ views of their experiences 

(working with other trusts in the North East 

and our commissioners). 

96% of patients surveyed in March 2012 

rated the quality of our A&E service as 

excellent or good 

 

85% of patients surveyed in June 2011 

rated the quality of our PTS service as 

excellent or good 

 

Priority 5 2010/2011 2011/2012 

Number of advance care plans held by 

us for patients at the end of their life 

657 1081 

 

Priorities for the year ending 31st March 2012 

To make our Quality Account useful to, and include, all readers, we asked a wide range of organisations and 

stakeholders, including our Board of directors, our staff, the local involvement networks (LINks), our Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee and our commissioners, how we could make the three areas of quality (patient safety, 

clinical effectiveness and patient experience) meaningful to them.  

Our aim was to develop a Quality Account which was shaped by patients, the public and our staff so that they 

had an opportunity to contribute and understand and promote quality within NEAS. We considered their 

feedback and agreed on four local priority areas.  

 

Priority 1 

To develop better methods of  collecting patients’ views and  use a ‘net promoter score’ which would be used each year  

to assess how satisfied patients  are overall. 

 

 Baseline 2011/2012 Target 2012/2013 

We used a number of methods to get 

patients’ views of our services, doing 

so shortly after the patient received 

While the 2011/2012 patient 

experience surveys that we have 

carried out have been worthwhile and 

important, we have designed a new 
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their care. 

 

1) We carried out a telephone 

survey in Durham and Darlington 

for the single point of access 

(now NHS 111) service. 

2) We sent postal surveys to people 

who use our PTS (and we 

increased the number of surveys 

from once a year to three times 

a year). 

3) We held two focus groups for 

users of the PTS with patients 

from across the area. 

4) We gave questionnaires to 

people who used our A&E 

ambulances (but whose 

condition hadn’t been life-

threatening). 

5) With a patients’ association, we 

carried out a survey of renal 

dialysis patients who use the 

PTS.  

 

Our findings showed that; 

 

96% of patients surveyed in 

March 2012 rated the quality of our 

A&E service as excellent or good 

 

94% of patients surveyed in July 

2011 rated the quality of our A&E 

service as excellent or good  

 

83% of patients surveyed in 
January 2011 rated the quality of our 

PTS service as excellent or good 

 

85% of patients surveyed in 
June 2011 rated the quality of our PTS 

service as excellent or good 

 

way to help us measure these 

experiences more accurately than 

before. 

 

A patient’s experience covers                                                                                                                                         

access and waiting times, being 

treated with respect, feeling involved 

in their care and being treated in clean 

surroundings. 

 

In 2012/2013 we aim to develop a 

deeper understanding of these areas 

and will provide updates on: 

1) the work we have done to 

understand and assess the 

experience of a wide range 

of patients; and 

2) what the results of these 

assessments were. 

 

This year will be a year of setting 

baselines (starting points for collecting 

data) as the methods we are using to 

survey patients are new to us. 

 

As we are trying out new methods we 

may not be able to compare our 

surveys with surveys and evaluations 

we have carried out in previous years. 

Once we have collected consistent 

data and patient experiences we will 

develop plans for improvement.  

 

Some of the proposed methods mean 

we have to carry out surveys on acute 

hospital premises, so we will be 

working closely with our health-care 

partners to make sure this method is 

productive. 

Reason for including A good ambulance service will often carry out research into what its users think 

of its service and act on this feedback. But this is only one part of collecting and 
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measuring patient experience. Being able to show that we have made changes 

to the way we provide services because of what people told us is just as 

important. Equally, we need to be able to measure an improvement in our 

service after making a change. 

 

Priority 2 

To increase the number of appropriate referrals of patients to a wide range of community and primary services, making 

sure we achieve ‘right care, right place, right time’. 

 

The number of patients treated using 

alternative dispositions: Hear and 

Treat 

Baseline 2011/2012 Target 2012/2013 

3.4% 

Note: Data has been produced in line with 

standard national definitions 

Increase on 2011/2012 

Reason for including As we try to make improvements in an area where there are wide financial 

restrictions, the Operating Framework 2012/2013 asks us to consider quality in 

the wider context of healthcare and identify areas where our actions may 

benefit the NHS as a whole. One of our plans to contribute to this is to reduce 

the number of patients we take to A&E who could have their care needs met 

directly by us or by being referred elsewhere. 

 

Our contact centres currently redirect patients to appropriate services when the 

patient makes the first emergency call. This is known as ‘hear and treat’. It can 

include booking an appointment and arranging transport to an urgent-care 

centre if necessary. We do this through our Directory of Services (DoS). The DoS 

contains details of community services and allows us to offer alternative 

pathways of care for patients who contact us, either through 999 or the new 

non-emergency NHS 111 number. We use NHS Pathways’ clinical assessment 

tool to triage (assess) patients who contact us, and then try to match the patient 

to services which can meet their needs. We are helping to strengthen the DoS by 

developing more links between our system and the systems of urgent-care 

centres. These links will allow us to book appointments directly for patients at 

these centres. We will also continue to provide an urgent-care transport service 

for patients who need to be taken to urgent-care facilities in time for their 

appointment. We believe we can help to direct demand for emergency care to 

alternative pathways of care appropriately and safely. We can do this by making 

sure the patient receives the right care in the right place and within the right 

time, based on us assessing their needs. 

 

Throughout 2012/2013 commissioners will continue to update the directory with 

new and updated services from throughout the North East and we will continue 

to train our staff on how to discuss an alternative care provider with a patient. 

 

We can further strengthen the ‘hear and treat’ strategy through increasing the 

number of services in the DoS. Not all alternative care pathways are always 

available for us to refer patients to, particularly outside County Durham and 
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Darlington. We will continue to tell our commissioners when we could have 

referred a patient to an alternative service but it was not available, to help them 

plan future services.  

 

The number of patients treated using 

alternative dispositions: See and 

Treat  

Baseline 2011/2012 Target 2012/2013 

33.1% 

Note: Data has been produced in line with 

standard national definitions 

Increase on 2011/2012 

Reason for including We believe the UK has some of the toughest performance targets of any 

ambulance service in the world and demand continues to rise every year. This 

makes it challenging to meet our response targets - we could just look to 

continually increase our resources to cope with extra demand, but we know that 

a large proportion of the demand for our service could be managed more 

appropriately in the community.  

 

While we continue to respond to the growing number of patients quickly and 

effectively, we will also focus on achieving our vision of providing the right care, 

at the right place at the right time, which means using other care providers when 

hospital is not necessary.  

 

Our ‘see, treat and refer’ strategy means we can provide better patient care and 

care delivered closer to home.  It also means a reduction in patient journeys and 

fewer visits to A&E. Within the North East, facilities for urgent care are 
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increasing, so we and the public need, whenever possible, to use these 

community resources more.  

 

To further support our staff in referring patients to community services, we will 

carry out more training to help them identify patients who are suitable to be 

cared for closer to home. We will train more staff across the trust to increase the 

numbers of paramedics who are able to do this.  

 

We can further improve ‘see, treat and refer’ by increasing the number of or 

availability of alternative providers working in the community, and we will work 

with our health-care colleagues to increase the number of providers who will 

accept patients being directly referred to them.  

 

Patient safety 

Priority 3 

To continue to improve our A&E response in our more rural areas (up to our current national target of 75% of Category 

A incidents responded to within 8 minutes). 

Note: Data has been produced in line with standard national definitions 

Redcar and Cleveland 

2011/2012 Target 2012/2013 

77.53% 75%  

County Durham 66.95% 75% achieved by the year end and an 

average of 71% through the year 

Northumberland 67.79% 75% achieved by the year end and an 

average of 71% through the year 

Reason for including One of the main challenges that face ambulance trusts is making sure people 

living in rural areas have the same access to our services as those living in towns 

and cities.  We plan to work with our commissioners and other service providers 

to do this.  

 

One way in which we plan to do better in rural areas is through better use of 

First Responder schemes. First Responder schemes are set up in towns and 

villages where it would be challenging for the emergency ambulance to arrive 

within the valuable first few minutes. The first few minutes after some incidents 

have happened are crucial to the chances of the patient recovering.  The ‘first 

responders’ are sent to incidents at the same time as an ambulance. They are an 

important and reliable service and dedicate their time and skills voluntarily to 

support our service and their local community. A first responder is trained to 

deal with a specific list of emergencies and give the patient support and 

appropriate treatment until the ambulance arrives. The types of incident a first 

responder would be sent to include things such as:  

 breathing difficulties and respiratory arrest;  
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 chest pains;  

 heart attack;  

 cardiac arrest ; 

 unconsciousness (when not due to a trauma); and  

 collapse.  

We will encourage our staff to become first responders in our own areas. We 

will also put in place more effective methods of using first responders at 

appropriate incidents. This will involve using better communications technology 

to make sure responders can reach incidents as quickly as possible. 

We will continue to carefully assess the type of vehicle we send to incidents, to 

make sure that we only send emergency ambulances to the most serious cases.  

We will also continue to monitor our vehicles to make sure they are in the most 

appropriate places based on the demand that we receive. This will make sure we 

continue to respond appropriately to patients, and in good time. 

A common challenge that ambulance services face is delays at hospitals when 

trying to hand over a patient. We are committed to working with A&E 

departments and our commissioners to reduce these delays and to free up 

emergency vehicles to respond to other emergency incidents. If we can increase 

the number of patients that we appropriately see and treat we will be playing 

our part in reducing the congestion in A&E departments in the region. 

Effectiveness 

Priority 4 

To effectively use the new emergency-care trauma pathways within the North East 

Accuracy of triage Baseline 2011/2012 Target 2012/2013 

Does not apply Set a baseline 

Reason for including Since April 1st this year, patients who have suffered major trauma have been 

taken to major trauma centres instead of district hospitals. These specialist 

trauma centres provide round-the-clock lifesaving treatment for seriously 

injured patients such as those who have head injuries, stab wounds or have 

been in a car accident. Previously, patients who suffered major trauma were 

taken to the nearest hospital, but the hospital may not have had the skills, 

facilities or equipment needed to deal with such serious injuries. This meant that 

patients could end up being transferred to a more appropriate hospital, causing 

delays in receiving the right treatment. Ambulances now take seriously injured 

patients direct to a specialist centre where a full specialist trauma team will 

assess and treat them immediately. 

Part of our new role is to co-ordinate, monitor and audit all cases of major 

trauma. We will review all referrals to specialist trauma centres to check 

whether they were appropriate. And we will get feedback from the two major 

trauma centres in the region as to how the new system is working. 
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How we will measure, monitor and 

report on all of our priorities 

We will report our progress on the quality priorities for the year ahead to the 

Quality Committee. The Governance and Risk Committee will receive an update 

at each of its meetings and our Board of directors will monitor the progress of 

the priorities at their meetings twice a year. We will draw up an action plan for 

the Quality Account, to take action and report on any areas which need to 

improve, and this will be tracked by the Performance Team. Also, we will update 

our full council of governors, Overview and Scrutiny committees, local 

involvement networks and members. We will continue to build our quality 

dashBoard and our quality reporting infrastructure to monitor progress. 

 

Involving stakeholders 

The views of patients, public and 

staff 

We recognise the value of listening to patients, public and staff when setting our 

quality priorities, and when producing this Quality Account we have involved 

everyone who has an interest in our organisation. This process has continued 

throughout the financial year. 

Including the opinions of those with an interest in us 

We produced a short questionnaire to get feedback from the public and staff 

about what quality meant to them. 

 How do you rate the Quality Account? 

 How do you rate our involvement with stakeholders in producing the 

2010/2011 Quality Account? 

 How easy is the Quality Account to read? 

 Do you agree we have taken into account local views in setting our 

priorities for the Quality Account? 

 Do you feel any of the statements in part 2 (Statements of assurance) 

helped to tell the trust’s story of quality improvement? 

 Have you any suggestions for making the Quality Account easier to read 

(for example, plainer language, less jargon)? 

 Do you feel that the graphs and charts used were useful to illustrate the 

data included in the Quality Account? 

 Do you feel confident that the information presented was a true and 

accurate reflection of the trust? 

 Have you used the trust website to read the Quality Account or to leave 

feedback? 

 Do you have any general comments you want to make on the 2010/2011 

Quality Account? 

 Do you have any suggestions for the 2011/2012 Quality Account? 

Some of the comments we received said the latest Quality Account was too long, 

too wordy and too complicated and difficult to read with too many graphs. 

Some stakeholders felt improving the care of people with dementia should be a 

priority area.  

Throughout 2011/2012 we attended four LINks (local involvement network) 

meetings and one Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting to help us collect 

views on the priority areas for 2012/2013. We also set up a Governor Task and 
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Finish Group and a staff working group to involve people further. 

When making a shortlist of the priority areas we sent the draft list to all 

stakeholders and asked for feedback. All the feedback that we received agreed 

that the areas we had identified were areas where improving quality would 

further improve our services.  

What we have done as a result of the feedback we have received 

1. We have produced two versions of the 2011/2012 Quality Account: this longer 

version which has details of our priorities in full and meets Department of Health 

and Monitor requirements, and a shorter booklet-style version which contains a 

summary of the main points. 

2.  We have worked with Plain English Campaign to receive their Crystal Mark 

which shows the document is suitable for its intended audience, and included a 

‘jargon buster’ to help explain certain terms and technical language. 

3. We have illustrated the account with patients’ stories and introduced more 

feedback from patients through samples of complaints and compliments − this 

helps make the account more ‘real’ and accessible. 

4. We have used fewer graphs and tables to make the data included simpler to 

understand. 

5. We have included patient case studies to make it more visually attractive and 

interesting. 

6. Dementia has been linked to a Corporate Objective where we will work to join 

up the emergency and urgent care systems developing streamlined care 

pathways, scoping out a programme of action to address pathway gaps for 

patients with long term conditions and our vulnerable patients 

Quality assurance 

We commissioned the North East Quality Observatory to cross-check the 

content of our draft Quality Account with other information about us that is 

available to the public. The Observatory provided us with feedback which we 

listened to and made changes where necessary. The Observatory have since 

confirmed that they are assured of the quality and accuracy of the information 

contained within the Quality Account. 

 

Statements of assurance  

Plain English Campaign’s Crystal Mark does not apply to the blue text in this section as this is set out in 

regulations. 

 

The Department of Health identifies a number of mandatory statements that the Quality Account must report 

on. This content, in blue text, is common to all health-care providers, which means Quality Accounts can be 

compared between organisations and provides assurance that the Board has reviewed and taken part in 

initiatives which link strongly to improving services. 

During 2011/2012 the North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (NEAS) provided three NHS 

services. NEAS has reviewed all the data available to them on the quality of care in all three of these NHS 

services. 

The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2011/2012 represents 100 per cent of the total income 
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generated from the provision of NHS services by NEAS for 2011/2012. 

 

Clinical audit 

Clinical audit aims to improve patient care and outcomes by reviewing the care that we give. It tries to find out 

if things are being done correctly and asks ‘Are we following best practice?’. 

During 2011/2012 44 national clinical audits and 0 national confidential enquiries covered NHS services that 

NEAS provides. 

During 2011/2012 NEAS participated in 100% of national clinical audits and 0% of national confidential 

enquiries of the national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries which it was eligible to participate 

in. 

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that NEAS was eligible to participate in during 

2011/2012 are as follows:  

(Plain English Campaign’s Crystal Mark does not apply to the tables in this section.) 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line with standard national definitions 

 

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that NEAS participated in during 2011/2012 are 

as above. 

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that NEAS participated in, and for which data 

collection was completed during 2011/2012, are listed below alongside the number of cases submitted to each 

audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of registered cases required by the terms of that audit or 

enquiry.  
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The reports of 44 national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2011/2012 and NEAS intends to 

take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided: 

 Our newly appointed Quality Improvement (QI) Officer will carry out clinical audits and provide 

feedback to front-line staff where improvement is needed. They will organise forums to improve 

quality and workshops to discuss, identify, apply, test and monitor appropriate ways to  improve 

clinical outcomes and provide higher-quality patient care.   

 We will continue to communicate with staff through ‘The Pulse’ magazine on the topic ‘Delivering 

Quality Care for Patients through Care Bundles’, through clinical practice circulars and by putting 

promotional literature, such as leaflets and posters, in stations.  

 We will continue to produce information on how we are doing at divisional, station and individual 

staff level so that we can monitor our progress and make improvements where necessary.  

The reports of 8 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2011/2012 and NEAS intends to take the 

following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided; 

 Continue to audit how we process our paper patient report forms so that we are confident the 

methods used are accurate.  

 Continue to publish best-practice guidance in ‘The Pulse’ and clinical practice circulars for front-line 

staff.  

 Make changes to clinical practice where necessary to improve the care we give to patients and to 

keep to best practice. 

 Continue to give feedback to and receive it from front-line staff where clinical guidelines have not 

been followed, so that we know any improvements we suggest will be carried out.  

 Coach and mentor any front-line staff who need support. 

 Continue to audit call-handling in our contact centres so that we know patients are being prioritised 

correctly and the appropriate triage (assessment) given. 

 Carry out further audits of patient report forms and electronic patient report forms to make sure 
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there are no clinical risks when crews decide, based on a patient’s symptoms, not to take them to 

hospital or to treat a child under two years old. This audit will also show that front-line staff are 

correctly recording what they do. 

 Continue to audit Category A8 incidents, which had a response time of more than 20 minutes, to find 

out why there was a delay and where we can make improvements.  

 Continue to audit patients who: 

a) contact us again within 24 hours after they were given advice during their initial call; and 

b) contact us again within 24 hours after they have been treated at the scene of the incident, when the rate is 

above the national average, to make sure there was no risk to them. 

 

Research and Innovation  

 

Research helps the NHS to improve the current and future health of the people it serves. It is essential to 

successfully promoting health and plays a major part in the service continuing to improve, supporting safe and 

effective care. It identifies new ways of preventing, diagnosing and treating disease (see 

http://www.nihr.ac.uk/Pages/QualityAccounts.aspx /). Our involvement with clinical research shows our 

commitment to testing and offering the latest medical treatments and techniques. 

The number of patients receiving NHS services provided by NEAS that were recruited during that period to 

participate in research approved by a research ethics committee was 715. 

 

 

CQUIN 

 

“CQUIN is a national framework for locally agreed quality improvement schemes. It enables commissioners to 

reward excellence by linking a proportion of English healthcare provider’s income to the achievement of local 

quality improvement goals. The framework aims to embed quality within commissioner-provider discussions 

and to create a culture of continuous quality improvement, with stretching goals agreed in contracts on an 

annual basis” (Department of Health, 2011). We have agreed our CQUIN framework locally with our 

commissioners based upon areas where we feel we can improve quality and increase innovative working 

practices.  

A proportion of NEAS income in 2011/2012 was conditional upon achieving quality improvement and 

innovation goals agreed between NEAS and any person or body they entered into a contract, agreement or 

arrangement with for the provision of NHS services, through the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation 

payment framework. Further details of the agreed goals are as follows; 

 

CQUIN Scheme Values 

 2010/2011 2011/2012 

CQUIN value (£) £1.378 million £1.436 million 

http://www.nihr.ac.uk/Pages/QualityAccounts.aspx%20/
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CQUIN achieved (£) £1.268 million Forecast £1.375 million 

 

CQUIN Scheme 2011/2012 

Indicator 

1 Increase the number of patients referred or transported to alternative care providers rather than A&E 

2 Improve the use of the hear and treat strategy 

3 Improve care given to people who are at the end of their lives 

4 Improve the referral process to falls services for patients who repeatedly fall 

5 Improve the handover and turnaround process 

6 Improve our performance in rural areas 

7 Plan improvements to our service based upon patients’ experience 

 

CQUIN Scheme 2012/2013 

Indicator 

1 Show the measures we have taken to ask patients about their experience and develop improvement plans 

based on that feedback 

2 Increase the number of patients referred or transported to alternative care providers rather than A&E 

3 Improve our performance in rural areas 

 

Care Quality Commission 

NEAS is required to register with the Care Quality Commission and its current registration status is registered 

without conditions.   

The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against NEAS during 2011/2012. 

NEAS has not participated in any special reviews or investigations by the Care Quality Commission during the 

reporting period. 

 

Data Quality 

NEAS did not submit records during 2011/2012 to the Secondary Uses service for inclusion in the Hospital 

Episode Statistics which are included in the latest published data. 

NEAS Information Governance Assessment Report overall score for 2011/2012 was 84% and was graded 

green. 

NEAS will be taking the following actions to improve data quality: 
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 Develop procedures and working instructions for maintaining the data quality of individual systems 

used within the Trust which capture information. 

 Maintain a data quality issues list by system. 

 Develop data validation processes which confirm the accuracy of information. 

 Improve data cleansing which will involve detecting and correcting (or removing) incorrect or 

inaccurate records from a record, table, or database. 

 Carry out data auditing where data will be audited with the use of statistical methods to detect 

irregularities and inconsistencies. 

NEAS was not subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding audit during the reporting period by the Audit 

Commission. 

 

 

Part 3 

 

Quality review  

The following section sets out how we have improved, measured against the five priority areas in the Quality 

Account 2010/2011, and further areas in which we have made improvements. 

 

National priorities 

Category A 8-minute 

performance (Note: 

the final figures at the 

end of the year can 

alter by up to 0.5% as 

trusts finalise end-of-

year reporting and 

data. ) 

 

 

Source: 

http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Statistics/Performancedataandstatistics/Ambulance

QualityIndicators/index.htm 

Note: Data has been produced in line with standard national definitions 

Category A 19-minute 

performance  (Note: 

the final figures at the 

end of the year can 

alter by up to 0.5% as 

trusts finalise end-of-
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44 
 

year reporting and 

data.) 

 

Source: 

http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Statistics/Performancedataandstatistics/Ambulance

QualityIndicators/index.htm 

Note: Data has been produced in line with standard national definitions 

 2011/2012 National average 2011/2012 

2011 staff survey 

results  (higher the 

score the better) 

3.34 out of 5 

Source: 

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20110718105843

/http:/www.cqc.org.uk/aboutcqc/howwedoit/engagingwithp

roviders/nhsstaffsurveys/staffsurvey2010.cfm 

Note: Data has been produced in line with standard national 

definitions 

3.13 out of 5 

Source: 

http://nhsstaffsurveys.com/cms/index.

php?page=ambulance-trusts 

Note: Data has been produced in line 

with standard national definitions 

 The NHS staff survey includes the following statement: “If a friend or relative needed 

treatment, I would be happy with the standard of care provided by this Trust”, and asks staff 

whether they strongly agree, agree, neither agree nor disagree, disagree, or strongly 

disagree with the statement.  

The results show how involved staff feel and how members of staff rate the care that we 

provide, and is an important indication of the quality of care provided by staff.  

Possible scores range from 1 to 5, with 1 showing that staff would be unlikely to recommend 

the trust as a place to work or receive treatment, and 5 showing that staff would be likely to 

recommend the trust as a place to work or receive treatment. We did better than the 

national average in this question and slightly better than the results of the 2010 staff survey, 

in which we scored 3.33 out of 5 for this question. 

 2011/2012 National average 2011/2012 

Care bundle delivered 

to  patients presenting 

with signs or 

symptoms of a 

suspected heart attack 

(average) 

79% 

 

 

 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line with standard 

national definitions 

74% (average to December) 

 

 

 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line with 
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http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Statistics/Performancedataandstatistics/AmbulanceQualityIndicators/index.htm
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Statistics/Performancedataandstatistics/AmbulanceQualityIndicators/index.htm
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20110718105843/http:/www.cqc.org.uk/aboutcqc/howwedoit/engagingwithproviders/nhsstaffsurveys/staffsurvey2010.cfm
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20110718105843/http:/www.cqc.org.uk/aboutcqc/howwedoit/engagingwithproviders/nhsstaffsurveys/staffsurvey2010.cfm
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20110718105843/http:/www.cqc.org.uk/aboutcqc/howwedoit/engagingwithproviders/nhsstaffsurveys/staffsurvey2010.cfm
http://nhsstaffsurveys.com/cms/index.php?page=ambulance-trusts
http://nhsstaffsurveys.com/cms/index.php?page=ambulance-trusts
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Care bundle delivered 

to patients presenting 

with signs or 

symptoms of a stroke 

(average) 

93% 

 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line with standard 

national definitions 

94% (average to December) 

 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line with 

standard national definitions 

 

Local indicators 

Stroke treatment 

 2010/2011 Internal target for 2011/2012 2011/2012 

The number of FAST 

positive patients 

arriving at a hyper-

acute stroke centre 

within 60 minutes 

Not available for 

comparison 

92% 

 

 

 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line 

with standard national definitions 

86% 

 

 

 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line 

with standard national definitions 

Progress made We recruited a Quality Improvement Officer (QIO), who began working for us in June 2011, to 

help us improve how we care for patients who have had a stroke. . We are consistently 

performing above the national average for stroke treatment and continually try to improve. 

When crews respond to a patient who has symptoms of a stroke they assess the following: 

 FAST – this stands for Face, Arm, Speech and Time of onset of symptoms. The crew 

will look to see if the patient’s face is drooping, whether an arm is paralysed, and 

whether they have slurred speech, and try to find out when the symptoms began. If a 

patient is ‘FAST- positive’ this shows that the patient has all or one of the symptoms 

above and has had them for three hours or less and they have not gone. This patient 

could need thrombolysis (special stroke medication) and will need to be taken quickly 

to an A&E department or a stroke unit.  

 Blood pressure (BP) – this measures the amount of force needed to push the blood 

through the blood vessels. If a patient has a blood clot (blockage) then the force 

needed to try to get the blood past the clot is much higher. This is why a patient’s full 

blood pressure (systolic) when the heart is pumping the blood around the body, and 

diastolic (the resting phase of the heart), needs to be taken. Generally a patient with 

the symptoms of a stroke will have a high BP due to the clot in the brain making it 

harder for the blood to flow through the blood vessels normally. 

 Blood glucose (BM) – this is the measurement of sugar levels in the body. The crew 

have to measure blood glucose as the symptoms of hypoglycaemia (low blood sugar) 

can mimic the signs and symptoms of a stroke and so needs to be ruled out. 

 Time of onset of symptom – evidence has shown that a patient who has symptoms of 

a stroke has a better chance of a full recovery if they are taken quickly to hospital and 

are given treatment (thrombolysis) within six hours. We are given clinical guidelines 

from NICE (National Institute of Clinical Excellence) and JRCALC (Joint Royal Colleges 



46 
 

Ambulance Liaison Committee) which crews must follow. 

 These checks form the basis of the stroke care bundle.  

Thrombolysis – a stroke is caused by a blood clot being lodged in a part of the brain, causing 

one or all of the symptoms described above. Once at hospital the patient will have a brain scan 

to confirm they have had a stroke and the treatment they will receive will involve a ‘clot busting 

drug’. This is known as thrombolysis. 

This indicator shows that we are providing the best treatment possible to patients who have 

symptoms of a stroke. This is due to our staff following the guidance from NICE and keeping 

consistently to the care bundle. 

Each month, we monitor every patient report form and ePRF that the clinical department 

receives from every division. The QIO, who is a State Registered Paramedic, reviews all of the 

reports to make sure that staff are keeping to the NICE and JRCALC guidance.  

If we find that a member of staff has not provided the full care bundle, the QIO tells the station 

team leader, who has an informal discussion with the member of staff. This gives the member 

of staff an opportunity to think about the issue which has been highlighted and repeats how 

important delivering the stroke care bundle is. 

To remind staff of how important it is to treat a stroke patient correctly, they have been given 

station posters and personal issue cards illustrating the parts of the care bundle. This is a 

constant visual reminder of what care they are expected to give. Since the introduction of the 

personal cards and posters, performance has greatly improved and this has had a positive effect 

on the quality of care that we give to stroke patients.  

We have also introduced a regular article to our magazine, ‘The Pulse’. This again provides a 

constant reminder to staff that they must follow the care bundle when treating stroke patients 

and highlights the positive effect that this has on the patient’s outcome. 

 

Safeguarding 

 2010/2011 Internal target for 2011/2012 2011/2012 

Child rate of referral 

for every 1000 calls 

(year-to-date average) 

0.58 (increased since 

2010/2011 Quality 

Account due to 

delays in reporting) 

0.58 0.68 

Adult rate of referral 

for every 1000 calls 

(year-to-date average) 

1.09 (increased since 

2010/2011 Quality 

Account due to 

delays in reporting) 

1.09 1.67 

Progress made We have seen a steady increase in safeguarding referral rates (measures taken to protect 

patients) throughout 2011/2012. This has been put down to the introduction of a new 

safeguarding  e-learning package for all front-line staff and to the commitment of staff and 

managers to make sure staff complete this training.  

In 2011/2012 we introduced the logistics desk. This has had a positive effect on the increase in 

referrals, with staff now ringing a dedicated number in the contact centre from the scene of the 

incident or after the patient has been taken to hospital to tell the staff manning the desk about 

the safeguarding matter.  The Logistic Officer fills in an electronic form and emails it to the 

safeguarding team. The logistics desk is manned 24 hours a day and this referral process makes 

sure the safeguarding team are aware of vulnerable patients in real time instead of the 

previously delayed process of scanning a safeguarding referral form when staff returned to their 
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station. 

Feedback from frontline staff has been encouraging − they feel that by contacting the logistics 

desk to pass on the information, their concerns are being acted on. The safeguarding team 

acknowledge every referral by email, providing updates to staff to make sure they receive 

feedback.  Staff feel that their concerns are being listened to and acted upon in a positive and 

timely way.   

Use of alternative care pathways 

 2010/2011 Internal target for 2011/2012 2011/2012 

The number of patients 

treated using 

alternative 

dispositions:  Hear and 

treat 

3.8% Increase on 2010/2011 3.4% 

 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line 

with standard national definitions 

The number of patients 

treated using 

alternative 

dispositions: See and 

Treat  

39.6% Increase on 2010/2011 33.1% 

 

 

Note: Data has been produced in line 

with standard national definitions 

  

Progress made 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hear and treat 

See and  treat 
 

Hear and treat:  

The figures above have been calculated in line with the Department of Health guidance for 

reporting Ambulance Quality Indicators (AQIs) and rules on hospital locations and vehicle 

arrival on scene which have been applied throughout 2011/2012. As such, the figures do not 

reflect the actual number of successful referrals made to alternative providers. The figures 

provided below show the actual number of successful referrals we have made to alternative 

providers. The AQI  guidance for 2011/2012 set out how we calculate ‘hear and treat’ and ‘see 

and treat’, which differs from our previous method and so we cannot compare between 

2010/2011 and 2011/2012. 

 

2010/2011 Internal target for 2011/2012 2011/2012 

2535 Does not apply 3844 

74055 Does not apply 72734 

 

Throughout 2011/2012 we carried out a large quality audit to identify areas of weakness in our 

use of the Directory of Service (DoS) − the system we use in the contact centre to help us refer 

patients to the most appropriate local healthcare service. This audit led to several 

improvements, which are set out below. 

Call takers now have direct access to a search version of the DoS to allow them to look for 

available dental and pharmacy services when these final outcomes are reached. This was 
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introduced as an alternative to passing the call to a supervisor to carry out this search. This 

allows us to deal with calls more quickly, with patients spending less time on hold or waiting for 

us to call them back. 

When a patient or call taker does not want to use the DoS, for example, due to the service being 

unsuitable for the patient’s condition or the patient chooses to contact their own GP, a ‘reject 

reason’ is selected. The list of reject reasons was thought to be too general and so we have 

changed it to allow for more accurate analysis in the gaps in services that are unavailable or not 

suitable for the patient’s condition. This has helped us to identify areas where there are not 

enough local services to meet demand, or where services need to be open longer. And it has 

helped contribute to the future development of health-care services across the region. 

The ‘information highway’, a central information resource, gives call takers detailed guidance on 

how to get the best out of the DoS and makes sure we refer patients appropriately. 

We are continuously carrying out audits on quality and we give call takers feedback when they 

could have handled the call and the DoS search in a better way for the patient. The aim of this is 

to provide call takers with real examples and recommendations to help them. There is also a 

central issues log where call takers are encouraged to record any cases where they feel the DoS 

has not made an appropriate offer for the patient. We check this log weekly, investigate cases 

and give feedback on the same log to allow the call takers to see the outcome. 

We give refresher training to all call takers to update them on how the DoS has developed and 

to allow them to get more in-depth knowledge of the system and how it works with NHS 

Pathways, our telephone triage tool.  

Overall, there has been a consistent increase in the number of cases we are successfully 

managing through our hear and treat strategy. This means that more ambulances are available 

to respond to patients with life-threatening illness or injury.   

See, treat and refer: 

To support our front-line crews in making sure that we give our patients the most appropriate 

care at the best place for their needs, closer to home, we have trialled a new logistics desk 

within the contact centre which supports crews when referring patients to most community 

services, such as minor injuries units and walk-in centres. The logistics desk is a point of contact 

for staff who need guidance and advice on where to take or send non-emergency patients when 

the nearest A&E department is not appropriate. This service gives them immediate access to a 

member of staff in the contact centre who asks them simple questions using the search in the 

Directory of Service. This then gives staff options for the most appropriate place to refer the 

patient to. Since this was introduced in December 2011 we have seen an increase in the number 

of patients referred to community providers and have received positive feedback from people 

who use the service. We plan for staff to be able to continue to use the logistics desk until 

September 2013, when we will review the system and work with our commissioners to continue 

to use it.  We will continue to tell our commissioners about gaps in services within the 

community which have prevented us from referring a patient. 

We have also improved our see, treat and refer training programme, working with our clinical 

advisory group to plan how the programme is delivered and add to the course content. We have 

identified which staff should receive this training and aim to provide the two-week course in a 

way which does not affect the availability of our staff and vehicles.  

We will continue to make progress with this work by training appropriate staff throughout the 

trust during 2012/2013.  

 

Advance care planning 
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 2010/2011 Trajectory for 2011/2012 2011/2012 

Number of advance 

care plans registered 

with NEAS 

657 
An increase of 10% on 

2010/2011 
1081 

Progress made 2011/2012 has seen us continue our work with stakeholders from across the region to increase 

the number of advance care plans that are registered with us for patients nearing the end of 

their life. It is important for us to give the best care possible to all patients, including those who 

are nearing the end of their life. Having a copy of a patient’s advance care plan allows us to be 

aware of the type of care they would want to receive in an emergency situation. We have 

worked with all stakeholders in the region and now hold plans for patients across all trust 

divisions, apart from South of Tyne. Through the latter part of the year we began work with 

South of Tyne to begin accepting their advance care plans. However, work has been on-going 

throughout the region on the new Deciding Right documents which will replace the advance 

care plans that we hold. 

Developed by NHS professionals, Deciding Right creates one standard process to help patients 

and health-care professionals make shared health-care decisions ahead of the patient’s death. 

Crucially, for the very first time, Deciding Right will provide common regional documents which 

will be easily recognisable by all health and social care professionals. This will help our crews 

and contact centre staff when responding to the information in the advance care plan. 

We will begin to accept these forms throughout 2012/2013 and will train crews to help them to 

recognise and understand the new Deciding Right documents. 

Patient experience 

A&E and PTS feedback   

Throughout 2011/2012 we have collected patients’ views of our services. We have done so in 

the following ways. 

 Carried out a telephone survey in Durham and Darlington on the single point of access. 

 Sent postal surveys across the trust area for people who use our patient transport services 

(we use to send these out yearly, now we do it every three months)  

 Held two focus groups for people who use our transport in the region. 

 Carried out questionnaires of  people who have used A&E ambulances and who were not 

assessed as having a potentially life-threatening condition 

 Worked in partnership with a patients’ association, carrying out a survey of renal dialysis 

patients using our transport services in and out of Newcastle hospitals. 

We have also collected compliments and complaints and reported these in the integrated 

performance report which sets out main performance areas for the whole organisation and is 

presented to the Board of directors each month. More detailed analysis has been carried out at 

the Experience Complaints Litigation Incidents and PALs (ECLIPs) group meetings, held every 

three months, into trends and reasons for complaints and we have also reviewed contact with 

PALS (Patient Advice and Liaison service) at ECLIPs to make sure action is taken on appropriate 

issues. 

We carried out our surveys more frequently (every three months instead of once a year). We 

also expanded the A&E surveys to include those patients who were taken to hospital after 

calling 999, not just patients who were treated at the scene.  

Our telephone-based surveys asked callers to NHS 111 for their feedback on our contact centre. 

The surveys allowed us to gather a mix of both opinion and responses which we can measure, 
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which helped improve how we take calls. 

  

 

Patient experience – further information 

Meeting access-to-healthcare 

requirements for people with a 

learning disability 

Throughout 2011/2012 we have involved staff, patients and local communities to 

try to identify barriers to equality, and this has helped us to develop and confirm 

our objectives in this area. Specific departments within the trust will further 

develop how we are going to achieve these objectives. We will set up a patient 

forum for patients with learning disabilities, as well as those with complicated 

needs and their carers.  The forum will look at how we can best get the 

information we need to improve services for these groups of patients and how we 

can identify them for call takers and crew at the contact centre. The forum will 

also develop ways staff can assess the needs of individual patients to make sure 

our system has the correct information about them. 

We also aim to test new training materials for our staff to make sure the training 

is centred on the patient and that our staff feel confident and competent to 

overcome barriers with these patient groups.   

 

The Department of Health and Monitor have released guidance to those producing Quality Accounts, 

recommending that they include mandatory indicators to allow for comparison between other providers and 

to help the reader assess whether performance is good or bad. 

We will regularly monitor the national priorities as identified above, with the local priorities changing yearly 

based on agreement with stakeholders.  

As a result, the 2011/2012 Quality Account will not provide an update on the following areas that were 

reviewed in the 2010/2011 Quality Account, although we will still monitor, within the trust: 

 the availability of hand-washing materials and how thorough cleaning arrangements are; and  

 how we manage patients with asthma and hypoglycaemia. 

Also, in early 2011, the Government removed the Category B 19 minute response target for ambulance 

services, so we will no longer report this. 

 

Differences in data since the 2010/2011 Quality Account 

The adult safeguarding figures reported in the 2010/2011 Quality Account show an average rate of referrals of 

0.91 for every 1000 calls for the year. This has increased to 1.09, as reported in the 2011/2012 Quality 

Account, due to a number of referrals being reported to us after the previous version of the account was 

published. 

 

Complaints and compliments 
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We take any complaint, concern or comment we receive very seriously. We expect very high standards to be 

maintained in our trust, and if this is not the case we will deal with it appropriately. We have investigated, 

fairly and thoroughly, every complaint we have received, and have taken action to prevent the incident 

happening again and improve our service where necessary. 

We have a complaints policy and procedure which meets NHS complaints regulations. We work to the 

following principles which are set out in ‘Principles For Remedy’ (a publication from the Parliamentary and 

Health Service Ombudsman) when handling complaints. 

1. Getting it right 

2. Being customer focused 

3. Being open and accountable 

4. Acting fairly and proportionately 

5. Putting things right 

6. Seeking continuous improvement 

How we have dealt with complaints 

When we received a complaint, concern or comment we: 

 acknowledged it within three working days, either by phone or in writing; and  

 wrote to the person making the complaint within 25 days (or longer if agreed),  to explain how we 

were handling the complaint. 

Type of complaints 

The most common type of complaint received is about the attitude of our staff. Another common complaint is 

about our response given to emergency calls where we assess a patient as not needing an ambulance. If a 

clinical issue is involved, we carry out a full investigation and share what we have learned. Another common 

type of complaint received was about how long patients have to wait for transport after treatment. We have 

planned to cover staff attitude as part of training in 2012/2013 and we have put in place extra training and 

mentoring for staff and will carry out audits to review the effect of this training. 

  

  2011/2012 

Complaints received 289 

Compliments received 271 

Further achievements Our Complaints Department has worked throughout the latter part of 

2011/2012 to improve how we collect complaints data and report 

complaints. We have made improvements to complaint categories to 

better understand the reason behind the complaint, to allow for 

improvements in reporting and analysing trends. 

 

 

Patient case studies 
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Glyn, who has a history of ventricular fibrillation, 

began to feel unwell while at home with wife Cath. 

Cath said: “Glyn told me he felt funny and was going 

to sit down. Five minutes later I went to check him. 

His whole persona was wrong and he was very cold 

but damp. He wasn’t 100% coherent when I was 

talking to him, so I decided to phone 999. I explained 

to the lady what he was like and that he suffered 

from VF and had had a heart attack previously. She 

spoke to him herself and then asked me if he had a 

heart spray and to tell him to spray under his tongue 

which he did. At that moment the blue lights 

appeared outside and the paramedics arrived. They 

worked on him a good hour to stabilise him. We can’t 

thank Vince and Brian enough. They were absolutely 

wonderful.” 

 

The family of a Newcastle schoolboy have praised 

paramedics for saving their son by carrying out CPR 

for 45-minutes after he suffered a heart-attack. 

Joe, now 15, had been in his bedroom when he 

collapsed in October. Paramedics, Rapid Response 

and the Red Cross were called to the home and crews 

performed CPR for 45 minutes. 

Joe's family braced themselves for the worst when 

medical staff were forced to shock him 12 times 

before he came round. Mum Tracey, 44, said: "I'm 

just so happy that he's still here. It's a miracle. If the 

paramedics hadn't got there so quick, I don't know 

what the outcome would have been.” 

 

Feedback from our stakeholders 

 

In line with the Quality Account guidance, we have asked for comments on the draft Quality Account from our 

lead commissioning primary care trusts, the local involvement network (LINks) and Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee (OSC). These comments are set out below and we have not edited them in any way. Plain English 

Campaign’s Crystal Mark does not apply to these comments. 

Statement from our lead commissioner 

We very much welcome the opportunity to read and comment upon North East Ambulance Service NHS 

Foundation Trust draft Quality Account for 2011/12.  We are grateful to Mark Cotton who came recently to 

present the draft account and respond to questions with GP Leads, board members and other senior 

colleagues.  

The report clearly demonstrates a commitment to continuing to improve delivery of a quality service across 
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the North East.   

The year has not been without its challenges both clinically and financially. However, from a clinical 

perspective you are adapting well to the recent changes in pathways and performance measures introduced as 

a result of revised Department of Health guidelines.   Also your ongoing work with the 111 helpline for the 

public forms an integral part of the transformation agenda across the health economy. 

Your specific challenges associated with service delivery include:  

 the priority work undertaken to improve rural response times and associated implementation of 

other measures to provide a more responsive and patient focused service. 

 work to support the continued reduction of handover delays at hospital accident and emergency 

departments to maximise the use of resources. 

 the use of alternative patient pathways to support further reduction in activity at accident and 

emergency departments through either transporting patients to other community services or treating 

patients on the scene. 

You have continued to address these priority areas whilst maintaining ongoing engagement with the public 

and the utilisation of feedback from patients which is to be commended, including the use of IPSOS and MORI 

patient surveys.   

Your continued collaboration with key stakeholders and openness have also been warmly welcomed by 

partners.   

You have provided a helpful insight into the areas where further improvements need to be made and have 

outlined the intended actions in order to progress these matters.  Commissioners would also welcome, as this 

improvement work is taken forward, the opportunity to see greater use of benchmarking data to compare and 

contrast the organisation’s performance against other ambulance services. 

We recognise that there is still further work to be done to fully realise your organisation’s ambitions and we 

look forward to continuing to work in partnership with NEAS to progress these initiatives. 

During this year we will be handing over lead responsibility to Clinical Commissioning Groups and the North 

East Commissioning Service who we are sure will look forward to continuing to work with you to sustain 

improvement in care for North East residents.  

In conclusion, the quality account reflects the organisation’s performance and activities throughout 2011/12 

and supports the information that your organisation has shared with commissioners throughout the year.  

 

Statement from Local Involvement Networks  

North Tyneside LINk 

Thank you for the opportunity to view The North East Ambulance Service draft Quality Account for 2011/12. I 

have been asked by the Board of North Tyneside LINk to prepare a response to your Quality Account on behalf 

of North Tyneside LINk members.  

North Tyneside LINk feels that the North East Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust Quality Account is broadly 

representative of the quality of service provided by the Trust and gives a comprehensive coverage of the 

services delivered.  

They also feel that the information contained in the Quality Account seems accurate and they do not feel that 

there are any significant omissions of issues of concern that have been previously discussed with the Trust in 

relation to Quality Accounts.  
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The North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust Quality Account would suggest that the organisation 

is well run and audit’s regularly to meet national and locally agreed criteria and standards on patient safety, 

and user satisfaction. 

LINk members are pleased to see that the suggestions made last year to include reference to complaints and 

compliments and how this information is used as part of the quality assurance assessment is being acted upon. 

LINk would like to see this information included in the future along with the inclusion of patient stories to 

illustrate good practise which would increase the accessibility of the document and make it more meaningful 

for the public.   

I hope the NEAS will find the comments helpful. We look forward to working with you on next year’s Quality 

Account in the future. 

Sunderland LINk  

Thank you for providing the opportunity to comment on this year’s NEAS Quality Account, which is welcomed.  

We value the on-going connection between NEAS and the region’s LINk’s through the periodic meetings held 

with representatives of both sets of bodies. These provide a very useful on-going means of two-way 

communication which we feel sure is mutually beneficial.  

On this occasion, Sunderland LINk congratulates NEAS on its achievement of Foundation Trust status.  

We take pleasure in noting the good ratings from Monitor and initiatives such as the 111 Contract, the Quality 

Committee, the Clinical Governance, the Quality & Patient Safety Strategy, the Quality DashBoard, the booking 

by ambulance crews of appointments with other service providers, the attempts at more equity between rural 

& urban demands and the policy of greater use of specialist hospitals for trauma cases, whilst acknowledging 

that the latter can meet with some resistance in certain quarters. 

The current absence of updated figures however, makes a full critique of certain matters not possible and as 

regards CQUIN (pp 15/ 16), we would have welcomed greater precision concerning the quality improvements 

referred to. A brief statement as to the actual extent to which achievements were reached, or the failure to 

achieve the same, would have added to actual understanding, as would, in the latter case, a brief 

accompanying statement as to planned action to redress non achievement.  

Some re-emphasis in future reports towards the idea of ‘making good’ and further stressing of the principle of 

continual improvement would be most welcome. 

Stockton-on-Tees LINk 

Stockton-on-Tees LINk welcomed the opportunity to comment on the NEAS Quality Account. The LINk is 

encouraged to note that NEAS has endeavoured to improve the accessibility of the document with the use of a 

jargon buster and less reliance on spreadsheets. However, it was felt that further improvements can be made 

to ensure the document is understandable for the majority of its target readers, particularly in giving 

background information to figures displayed in tables to help contextualise and make the information 

meaningful for the reader. 

The LINk was restricted in its ability to comment on progress of priorities for the year 2011/12 as figures were 

not displayed, for future quality accounts it would be useful to have even part year figures to enable a more 

effective comparison. Therefore the LINk response is based on the priorities for 2012/13. 

Priority 1: The LINk were pleased to note that patient experience was the first priority and that NEAS will be 

strengthening relationships with the Acute Trust to further understand the patient experience by surveying 

patients in service settings. 

Priority 2: The LINk supports the drive to ensure that patients access the right service in the right location and 

the role that all stakeholders can play in advising and appropriately referring patients. However, the LINk 
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would seek on-going reassurance for members of the public that the quality of training and support for 

frontline staff (whether in the contact centre or ambulance crews) will be robust enough to adequately 

support staff making these decisions, addressing any potential liabilities in giving advice and maintaining a 

focus on patient centred choice. The LINk would also hope that on-going dialogue will be maintained with staff 

to discuss any concerns that may arise regarding this additional responsibility.  

Priority 3: Stockton LINk supports the development of first responder service where this will not impact on the 

quality and timeliness of the service received by patients in all areas. The LINk particularly welcomes 

awareness raising of the scheme so that the public have an opportunity to raise any concerns and can be 

reassured where necessary. 

The LINk would hope that NEAS will work interdependently with all stakeholders rather than just 

commissioners to reduce delays in hospital handovers. – e.g. Acute Trust provider staff and other agencies 

where they provide support staff that have contact/support role with patient at handover. 

Priority 4: The LINk look forward to receiving performance updates regarding referrals to the trauma centres 

in an accessible format so that the LINks can share the information with its participants.  

Additional comments 

The quality account highlights that dementia was highlighted as a particular concern of some stakeholders yet 

this is not elaborated on further, in terms of inclusion as a priority or reasoning for why it wasn’t. 

The account highlights that support will be given to staff that need it but there is no qualifying information 

given in respect of who will receive this support and how they will be identified. Considering a previous 

complaint highlighted in the media, the LINk would seek further supporting information.  

It was encouraging to note the delivery of care bundle for stroke care has improved but some concerns were 

raised as to whether station posters and article in the staff magazine are robust enough measures/ reminders 

for staff.  

The LINk welcomes the introduction of a patient forum for learning disabilities. As part of the LINks developing 

and active learning disability work group in Stockton they would look forward to input/working with this 

patient forum to ensure the needs of those with a learning disability are understood and responded to. 

Northumberland LINk 

We welcome the opportunity to respond to the Draft Quality account of North East Ambulance Service NHS 

Foundation Trust. 

Quality Priorities 

Priority 1: Patient Experience 

In relation to patient experience, we believe that more information is needed for the public concerning the 

procedure which is used when an emergency call is made. We suggest that a leaflet be produced setting out 

the procedure, particularly concerning the redirecting of patients to appropriate services during the initial 

emergency call, and what patients can expect when they call.   

Priority 2: Alternative dispositions 

We welcome this priority, providing the services to which the patients are directed are of good quality 

standard.  We believe that more information should be provided to the public about procedures for hear and 

treat and see, treat and refer.   

Priority 3: Rural Performance 

In relation to the priorities in general, there is little information on Patient Transport.  There is concern that 

people living in rural areas may have to spend a long time travelling by ambulance to and from hospital.  This is 
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an issue which should be addressed, particularly for people who may find it very uncomfortable having to sit in 

an ambulance for a long period of time.   

In relation to the First Responder schemes, we would like more information provided as to how the scheme 

works, the training the First Responders receive, and how First Responders are identifiable by patients who 

have made an emergency call.  

Priority 4: Trauma 

Statistics of ‘turn around’ times for ambulance crews at the trauma centres should be included in relation to 

the time that it takes for the crew to be available after they have taken a person to the trauma centre. 

Issues which have been omitted 

A section should be included in the Quality Account on equality.  Information should be provided about the 

Equality Strategy, and how NEAS evidences how they are compliant with Equality Act 2010 and the Human 

Rights Act.  Information should be given concerning the Equality Objectives which were published in April 

2012, where these are available to view, and how they will be monitored and assessed. 

Involvement of patients and the public in the production of the Quality Account 

As the timescale is short for response to the Quality Account, there should be on-going involvement with LINks 

and other stakeholders throughout the year.  This could be in the form of quarterly meetings to review the 

priorities and performance against these, and for the planning of future priorities. This would enable patients 

and the public to be more involved through LINks and third sector organisations.  

Presentation and accessibility 

An executive summary setting out clearly the main points of the Quality Account would make the document 

more accessible to patients and the public.  An executive summary should be provided in relation to the draft 

quality account as well as the final document.   

The Quality Account should also be made available in alternative formats, including large print, braille, audio 

version, British Sign Language, and Easyread, or in any format which is required.  Perhaps notice could be given 

as to when the draft Quality Account is to be published for comment, so that there is time for versions in 

alternative formats to be produced if requested.  

Redcar and Cleveland Local Involvement Network (LINk)  

The LINk welcomed the opportunity to comment on the NEAS quality account and was pleased to see that 

NEAS has made significant improvements over the last 12 months and that plans and initiatives are in place to 

continue striving for further improvements over the coming year. 

Initial feedback was that the complexity of the document would be difficult for some readers to understand 

and that a simpler version with clearer explanations would be beneficial when requesting feedback. 

The LINk values the good working relationship with the Trust and the opportunity to take part in activities 

including commenting on the Quality Account but also the involvement with the LINk forum and providing 

patient experience. 

It is good to see that raising awareness of the First Responder scheme is a priority for the Trust over the next 

12 months. However, it would also be beneficial to raise awareness of the scheme within the public domain as 

the LINk has recently received concerns from people who believe that the service will be running, not as a 

support to the ambulance service, but as an alternative in some areas.  

The LINk looks forward to continuing working in partnership with NEAS over the coming year and receiving 

regular updates on the progress made with the new priorities to enable this information to be shared with its 

members. 
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Newcastle LINk 

Newcastle LINk has considered NEAS’s Quality Account bearing in mind:  

 Newcastle LINk’s response to NEAS’s 2010/2011 Quality Account 

 NEAS’s progress on last year’s priorities 

 NEAS’s priorities for 2012/2013 

 Newcastle LINk’s reports from 2011/201 

General comments  

Newcastle LINk is pleased that NEAS is committed to providing both the draft and final versions of the account 

in various font sizes, Braille, audio and other languages upon request and hopes that NEAS receives a Crystal 

Mark for the final report. 

Newcastle LINk received standard and large print colour copies of the Quality Account. This is appreciated; 

although some members who do not have recognised visual impairments did struggle with the font size in the 

standard version and to read parts of the text that were highlighted in blue or pink. The red watermark (draft) 

beneath the text also caused problems. In future NEAS should consider changing the colour of text, rather 

than highlighting it. Any watermarks should also be faded out (as done in the large print version). 

The draft report was missing a lot of figures which is shame as it makes to hard to see how NEAS has improved 

in comparison to previous years. It also sometimes means that claims are being made with no evidence to 

back them up. The Quality Account was published quite early (17 April). The document ‘Quality Accounts – a 

Guide for LINks’ states that Trusts have until 30 April to send their draft Quality Account.  Newcastle LINk 

recommends that NEAS publish the draft version at a later date next year so that they are able to provide a 

more complete report. 

Newcastle LINk would like NEAS to include more information about their staff and how they are appreciated 

by patients and the Trust. 

Finally, Newcastle LINk would like to see the following included in the jargon buster: 

 FT 

 Category A19 

 NICE 

 IRCALC 

 QIO  

Co-ordinated consultation periods 

Newcastle LINk can respond to three NHS Trust Quality Accounts. Last year Newcastle LINk suggested that the 

three Trusts consider co-ordinating their 30 day period into the same 30 calendar days. Newcastle LINk still 

had some difficulties writing a response for all three Trusts so we would welcome a more co-ordinated 

approach next year. 

NEAS’S progress on last year’s priorities 

National priorities (pg 18) 

In the first table on page 18 it would be useful to insert a column showing 2010-11 data for comparison.  

Stroke treatment (pg 18 and 19) 

Newcastle LINk is pleased to see that the QIO monitors delivery of the stroke care bundle and gives feedback 
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to staff who do not deliver the care bundle when they could have done. Newcastle LINk looks forward to 

seeing the final figures for this priority, which will hopefully show improvements.  

Safeguarding (pg 19 and 20) 

There has been some very encouraging progress in relation to safeguarding referrals across the service. 

Newcastle LINk would like to know if there are any plans to release staff to take part in multi-disciplinary 

training in addition to the e-learning package. 

Use of alternative care pathways (pg 20 and 21) 

Newcastle LINk welcomes the use of the Directory of Services (DoS) system as a tool to find gaps in services 

and is pleased that this information is given to commissioners to inform future service provision. 

Last year Newcastle LINk said it would support the involvement of patients whenever reviews of alternative 

pathways and related systems/policies take place. On page 21 and 22 you briefly refer to receiving feedback 

from patients about referrals and the call centres. Newcastle LINk would welcome more information about 

how you involve patients in the review of the referral process and patient experience of these pathways. 

Advance care planning (pg 21) 

Newcastle LINk welcomes NEAS’s commitment to increasing the number of Advance Care Plans (ACP) 

registered with NEAS and also its commitment to the Deciding Right programme. Newcastle LINk is also 

pleased with NEAS’s commitment to train crews so they are able to recognise and understand ACPs and 

Deciding Right documents.  

Patient experience (pg 22 and 23) 

Last year members of the LINk said they knew of situations where a patient calling 999 had been unable to 

answer questions for reasons of their communication impairment. Additionally the call handlers did not always 

know how to deal with this. Because of this Newcastle LINk welcomes the establishment of a Patient Forum 

for people with learning disabilities, complex needs and their carers. Newcastle LINk also supports the 

development of a flagging system to notify a call taker or crew when someone with a specific need is in 

contact with them. Last year Newcastle LINk made specific reference to deaf/blind people. Could a similar 

Patient Forum be established for deaf/blind people and other groups (physical disabilities etc)?  

General comments on priority progress 

For the national priority, use of alternative care pathways and patient experience tables it is not clear what the 

percentages are measuring. It would be useful to have this defined somewhere within the tables. 

NEAS’S priorities for 2012/2013 

Newcastle LINk makes the following comments about the 2012/13 priorities. 

Patient experience (pg 9) 

Newcastle LINk welcomes NEAS’s commitment to gathering accurate patient experiences of their services on a 

regular basis (quarterly). It would be useful if NEAS was clearer about its patient experience target for 2012-

13. 

Alternative dispositions (pg 10 and 11) 

Newcastle LINk hopes that alternative dispositions will help patients get the right treatment, in the right place 

at the right time. Newcastle LINk suggests that NEAS includes information about if and how they monitor a 

patient as they progress through an alternative pathway. Newcastle LINk would also like assurance that NEAS 

has checked that any services included in the DoS have the capacity to deal with any referrals. 

Rural performance (pg 11) 
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For the final report it would be useful to have a clear description of what you are measuring. Currently it is 

unclear what the percentages mean. 

Statement from Overview and Scrutiny Committees (Max. 1000 words) 

Durham County Council Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

The Committee welcomes North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Accounts and the 

opportunity to provide comment on it.  

Last year a co-ordinated response to the NEAS Quality Account was facilitated through the Regional Joint 

Health Scrutiny Committee. However, given the implications of the proposed Reconfiguration of the Accident 

and Emergency Ambulance Service and the links with NEAS’s identified priorities, Durham County Council’s 

Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee wish to submit their own response to the 

Quality Account. 

The Committee particularly welcomes:- 

Priority 2: Patient Experience A&E and PTS – To trial and test new methods to capture patient views and 

experiences of all services. 

Priority 3: Rural Improvement – To establish a root cause analysis process to review all Category A8 delays 

over 15mins/20mins. 

The Committee have taken an active role in the Trust’s proposed Reconfiguration of the Accident and 

Emergency Ambulance Service and representations have been made around the proposals and their potential 

impact particularly on Rural Ambulance provision. County Durham is one of the areas where performance for 

Category A8 responses are below target and it is essential that this performance improves. 

The Committee also recognise the importance of A and E and the Patient Transport Service and is pleased to 

see that new methods to capture Service user views and experience are to be trialled. Again the proposed 

Reconfiguration of the Accident and Emergency Ambulance Service will undoubtedly impact upon this, as will 

any suggested changes to the eligibility criteria for accessing the Patient Transport service. In this respect, it is 

essential that service users are engaged and involved in any consultations on proposed changes. 

One comment which was noted at the last meeting of the Committee but does need emphasising, with quality 

accounts and their complexity and size, stakeholder involvement should be at a early stage.  To do properly 

and organise quality comment needs sufficient time to organise and implement.  A suggested way forward 

would be to have stakeholder engagement/development sessions early in the Quality Account production 

process. 

The Committee would also refer to the recent NHS Reforms introduced by the Government and place on 

record its desire to further develop its relationships with the Foundation Trust and continue the track record 

of co-operation and collaborative working. 

To conclude, the Committee agree that from the information received from the Trust that the identified 

priorities are a fair reflection of healthcare services provided by the Trust.  In addition, the Committee request 

to receive a six monthly progress report on delivery of 2012/13 targets. 

Northumberland County Council Care and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Members of Northumberland County Council’s Care and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

welcome the opportunity of submitting feedback on the Trust’s Quality Account.    

The Trust has been very proactive in engaging with the Committee over the course of the past year and 

members have had the opportunity of examining, challenging and scrutinising the information provided by the 

Trust on a number of occasions. These are summarised below and notes of these meetings can be made 
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available. 

19 May 2011 – Meeting at Hexham to discuss emergency ambulances to Hexham Hospital 

13 October 2011 – NEAS Annual Plan2011/12 

13 October 2011 – NEAS Annual Report 

13 October 2011 – Visit to Control Headquarters 

17 November 2011 - Ambulance Update: co-responders, First responders and ambulance response times 

19 January 2012 – Patient Transfer Service 

16 February 2012 – Public Meeting  - NEAS Service Review 

1 March 2012 – All Member briefing on Service review Proposals 

15 March 2012 – Implementation of 111 

17 May 2012 – Update on Service Review/ Quality Account 

The Service Review proposals attracted a great deal of Member and public concern and the Committee is 

grateful to the Trust for attending public meetings and briefings regarding their proposals when requested. 

They are pleased that the comments made at those meetings were listened to and discussed with 

commissioners resulting in a revision of the proposals to the benefit of Northumberland residents. 

In discussing the Quality Account, Members made the following comments: 

o It was noted that the draft short list of priorities had been drawn following extensive engagement 

with patients and focused on patient outcome and that this engagement would continue. 

o Members supported the priorities: 

 to develop enhanced patient experience capture methodology and establish the use of a ‘net 

performer score’ which would be used year on year to assess overall satisfaction;  

 to increase the number of appropriate referral of patients to wide ranging alternative 

community and primary services, achieving ‘right care, right place, right time’ priorities;  

 to deliver continuous improvements in A&E performance in more rural areas; and  

 to effectively implement the new emergency care trauma pathways within the North East.   

o They were particularly supportive of the performance indicator seeking 71% compliance with the A8 

target for Northumberland, whilst recognising that a response time within 8 minutes was unrealistic 

for some remote areas. 

o Members fully supported the 2012/13 indicators particularly the intention to further raise awareness 

of stroke symptoms. 

From the information available to the Committee, the Quality Account appears to be a fair and accurate 

reflection of the services provided by the Trust and also of the priorities of the local community.   

The Committee has an extremely positive and co-operative relationship with the Trust and appreciate the time 

and effort taken by a range of senior staff to keep the Committee fully aware of relevant issues. Members are 

reassured that any comments they make are taken into account by the Trust. 

Changes made and response to feedback received 

In the preparation of the Quality Account the Trust aims to give stakeholders as much time as possible to 

consider the document and have opportunity to provide feedback. To ensure that the mandated 30 days is 
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given to stakeholders to provide feedback to us, we must send the Quality Account without all of the year-end 

data included. Comments from Sunderland, Stockton-on-Tees, and Newcastle LINks reflect this lack of data. 

Stakeholders can be assured that the final draft will include all end of year data for 2011/12 and this data will 

allow the reader to better understand the position of the Trust at the end of the financial year. We will try to 

provide a more fulsome end of year picture in our Quality Account 2012/2013 where possible, whilst also 

taking into account the guidance for stakeholder feedback timescales. 

Stockton-on-Tees LINk also commented that dementia was highlighted as an area of concern for stakeholders 

but was not included within the Quality Account. NEAS considered this feedback and have now included some 

further information for the reader about our commitment to patients with dementia. Although dementia is 

not one of the quality priorities the Trust will monitor in the coming year, it forms part of our long term 

conditions corporate objective, which we feel reflects the high priority of dementia on the quality agenda for 

NEAS. 

Monitor (the independent regulator of Foundation Trusts) outline what content we must include in our Quality 

Account in their Annual Reporting Manual. Much of this content includes mandatory statements which all 

trusts must include in full. These statements can appear to be quite rigid and not easily understandable for the 

reader due to the technical language used, which is reflected in feedback from Redcar and Cleveland LINk. We 

cannot change the wording of these statements but we if given an opportunity to take part in a national 

consultation around the Quality Account, we will participate and ensure that comments from our local 

stakeholders are represented. 

 

Auditor’s limited assurance report 

To be inserted when received for June 2012 submission 

Statement of directors responsibilities  

Under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 our directors 

have to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. 

Monitor have issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of Quality Accounts 

and on the arrangements that foundation trust boards should put in place to be sure of the quality of the data 

used in preparing the account. 

 The content of the account must meet the requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 

Annual Reporting Manual 2011-12. 

 The content must not be inconsistent with internal and external sources of information including 

the following: 

o Board minutes and papers for the period April 2011 to June 2012 

o Papers relating to quality reported to the Board over the period April 2011 to June 2012 

o Feedback from the commissioners dated 29 May 2012 

o Feedback from governors  

o Feedback from LINks dated May 2012 

o The trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social 

Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated 31 May 2012; 
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o The 2008 [latest] national patient survey  

o The 2011 national staff survey  

o The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the trust’s control environment dated 

10 April 2012 

o CQC quality and risk profiles dated 10 April 2012 

 The Quality Account must present a balanced picture of our performance over the period 

covered. 

 The performance information reported in the account should be reliable and accurate. 

 There should be proper internal controls over collecting and reporting on the measures of 

performance included in the account, and these controls must be reviewed to confirm that they 

are effective. 

 The data supporting the measures of performance reported in the Quality Account must be 

reliable, meet specified data-quality standards and definitions, and be checked and reviewed. 

 The Quality Account must be prepared in line with Monitor’s annual reporting guidance (which 

includes the Quality Accounts regulations) (published at www.monitor-

nhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual) as well as the standards to support data quality in 

preparing the account (available at www.monitor-nhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual). 

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have kept to the above requirements in 

preparing the Quality Account. 

 Chairman 28 May 2012       

 

   Chief Executive 28 May 2012 

 

 

Jargon Buster (pull out page)  

Term Definition 

Advanced care plan A discussion to help people think about, and plan for, how they want to be cared 

for towards the end of their life.  

(http://www.endoflifecareforadults.nhs.uk/assets/downloads/pubs_Advance_Ca

re_Planning_guide.pdf) 

Call connect The point when the 999 call is connected to the ambulance control room, and 

which signals the beginning of the ambulance response time. 

Care bundle A care bundle is a group of between three and five specific procedures that staff 

must follow for every single patient, every time, and which will have a better 

outcome for the patient if done together within a certain time limit, rather than 
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separately. 

Care Quality Commission The independent regulator of all health and social care services in England. The 

commission makes sure that the care provided by hospitals, dentists, 

ambulances, care homes and services in people’s own homes and elsewhere 

meets government standards of quality and safety. 

Category A8 A life-threatening 999 call that must be responded to within 8 minutes. 

Category A19 If a Category A patient needs transport, this should arrive within 19 minutes of 

the request for transport being made, 95% of the time. 

Category B19 Calls  concerning patients whose condition is serious but not immediately life-

threatening and which must receive a response within 19 minutes in 95% of 

cases. 

Clinical audit A clinical audit mainly involves checking whether best practice is being followed 

and making improvements if there are problems with the way care is being 

provided.  A good clinical audit will find (or confirm) problems and lead to 

changes that improve patient care. 

Clinical effectiveness 

 

Clinical effectiveness means understanding success rates from different 

treatments for different conditions. Methods of assessing this will include death 

or survival rates, complication rates and measures of clinical improvement. This 

will be supported by giving staff  the opportunity to put forward ways of 

providing better and safer services for patients and their families as well as 

identifying best practice that can be shared and spread across the organisation. 

Just as important is the patient’s view of how effective their care has been and 

we will measure this through patient reported outcomes measures (PROMs). 

Clinical governance, 

quality and patient safety 

strategy 

A strategy that defines how we will demonstrate quality in patient safety, patient 

experience and clinical effectiveness. 

Clinical Practice Circular 

(CPC) 

The way that NEAS tell staff about clinical issues and guidance. 

Commissioning for 

Quality and Innovation 

(CQUIN) payment 

framework 

The Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework 

means that a part of our income depends on us meeting  goals for improving 

quality. 

Contact centres The first point of contact for 999, 111 and Patient Transport Services patients 

who need  frontline medical care or transport. 

Control environment This relates to the system of internal controls in the Trust. 

Core services Our core services are accident and emergency, NHS 111, community first 

responders, the Patient Transport Service and emergency planning. 
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Crystal Mark – plain 

English 

Plain English Campaign’s Crystal Mark shows that a document is as clear as it can 

be for its intended audience. 

Deciding Right Deciding Right is the UK’s first attempt to set up a scheme that helps patients of 

all ages (including children) and healthcare professionals make shared decisions 

about the patient’s care ahead of their death.  It is being introduced not only 

across NHS hospitals in the North East, with paramedics and in other NHS care 

settings, but in hundreds of nursing homes, care homes and hospices across the 

region.  

Directory of Services Once we have decided the appropriate type of service for the patient - so that we 

can direct them to a service which is available to treat them - the system is linked 

to a directory of service. This directory contains details of the services available, 

their opening times and what conditions and symptoms they can manage, within 

an area local to the patient. 

End-of-life patients Patients approaching the end of their life. 

Enforcement action Action taken against us by the Care Quality Commission if we do not follow 

regulations. 

e-PRF e-PRF uses laptops to replace paper patient report forms. Ambulance staff 

attending calls can now download information on the way, access patients’ 

medical histories, enter information in ‘real time’ and send information 

electronically to the accident and emergency department they are taking the 

patient to.  

Falls service A falls service can triage (assess and prioritise for treatment) older people who 

have fallen or are at high risk of falling. 

First responder A first responder is a volunteer who has had training to act on behalf of the 

ambulance service and can respond to emergency calls when sent by the contact 

centre. They deal with a specific list of emergencies and give the patient  support 

and appropriate treatment until the ambulance arrives. 

Foundation Trust Boards These make sure that trusts are effective, run efficiently and manage resources 

well and are accountable to the public. 

Governors Foundation Trust members have elected a Council of Governors. The council is 

made up of 21 public governors and four staff governors, plus nine appointed 

governors. 

Governance and Risk 

Committee 

This committee gives the Board an independent and objective review of, and 

assurances about: 

 all aspects of risk governance, risk management frameworks and our 

approach to risk management; 

 our internal control systems and risk management arrangements, to 

make sure they are fit for purpose, have enough resources and support 

our performance and reputation;  
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 the risk governance process, to make sure it is clear about current and 

future aspects of risk exposure; 

 the evidence to support our reports to Monitor; and 

 keeping to legislation, best practice and regulations.  

Governor Task and Finish 

Group 

A group set up to identify which priority areas and risks should be included in a 

specific document, such as the Annual Plan or Quality Account. 

Handover and 

turnaround process 

Handover is the point when all the patient’s details have been passed (verbally) 

from the ambulance staff to staff at the hospital, the patient is moved from the 

ambulance trolley or chair into the treatment centre trolley or waiting area and 

responsibility for the patient has transferred from the ambulance service to the 

hospital. 

Turnaround is the period of time from an ambulance arriving at hospital to an 

ambulance leaving hospital. 

Health Act 2009 An Act relating to the NHS Constitution, healthcare,  the control of the promotion 

and sale of tobacco products, and the investigation of complaints about privately 

arranged or funded adult social care. 

Hear and treat A triage system designed to assess patients over the phone and to provide 

alternative pathways of care, where appropriate, for members of the public 

calling 999. 

JRCALC JRCALC stands for the Joint Royal Colleges Ambulance Liaison Committee. Its role 

is to provide reliable clinical advice to ambulance services.  The JRCALC is best 

known for its regularly updated UK Ambulance Service Clinical Practice 

Guidelines.  

LINks Local involvement networks, or LINks, were set up by the Government in April 

2008 to give local people a stronger voice in how their health and social care 

services are provided.  

Logistics desk A new logistics desk in our contact centre, which will be a point of contact for 

A&E crews who need guidance and advice on where to take or send non-

emergency patients when the nearest A&E department is not appropriate. 

Major trauma Major trauma means multiple, serious injuries that could result in death or 

serious disability. These might include serious head injuries, severe gunshot 

wounds or road traffic accidents.  

Monitor The  independent regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts 

National ambulance 

quality indicators 

Measures of the quality of ambulance services in England, including response 

time targets, call abandonment rates, rates of patients contacting us again after 

initial care, time taken to answer calls, time to patient being treated, calls for 

ambulances dealt with by advice over the phone or managed without transport 

to A&E,  and ambulance emergency journeys. 

National clinical audit National clinical audit is designed to improve the outcome for patients  across a 
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wide range of medical, surgical and mental-health conditions. It involves all 

healthcare professionals across England and Wales in assessing their clinical 

practice against standards and  supporting and encouraging improvement in the 

quality of treatment and care.  

National confidential 

enquiries 

Confidential enquiries such as the Clinical Outcomes Report Programme (CORP) 

programme funded by Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership (HQIP) are 

not in themselves audits, although they have similar features. Similarly, national 

surveys of patients’ experiences and outcomes are not strictly audits although, 

again, they are closely related. 

NHS Operating 

Framework 

Sets out the planning, performance and financial requirements for NHS 

organisations and the basis on which they will be held to account. 

NHS (Quality Accounts) 

Regulations 2010 

Set out the detail of how providers of NHS services should publish annual reports 

– Quality Accounts – on the quality of their services. In particular, they set out the 

information that must be included in the accounts, as well as general content, the 

form the account should take and when the accounts should be published, and 

arrangements for scrutiny and assurance. The regulations also set out exemptions 

for small providers and primary care and community services. 

NHS Foundation Trust 

Annual Reporting Manual 

2011-12 

Guidance on the legal requirements for NHS Foundation Trusts’ annual report 

and accounts. 

NICE National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence set up in 1999 to reduce 

differences in the availability and quality of NHS treatments and care. Evidence-

based guidance and other products help settle uncertainty about which 

medicines, treatments, procedures and devices represent the best-quality care 

and which offer the best value for money for the NHS. 

Pathways NHS Pathways is a system developed by the NHS which is used to identify the 

best service for a patient and how quickly the patient needs to be treated, based 

on their symptoms. This may mean answering a few more questions than 

previously. All questions asked need to be answered as we use them to make 

sure patients are directed to the right service for their needs. Types of service 

may include an ambulance response, advice to contact the patient’s own GP or 

the out-of-hours service, visit the local minor injury unit or walk-in centre or 

home care. 

Patient experience Quality of care includes quality of caring. A patient’s experience includes how 

personal care feels, and the compassion, dignity and respect with which they are 

treated. It can only be improved by analysing and understanding how satisified 

patients are, which is measured by patient experience measures (PREMS). 

Patient report forms An up-to-the-minute record of a patient’s history, assessment and treatment 

provided by our staff.  

Patient safety Makes sure the environment the patient is being treated in is safe and clean, 

reducing  harm  from things that could have been avoided, such as drug 
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administration errors or rates of infections. Patient safety is supported by the 

National Patient Safety Agency ‘seven steps to patient safety’. 

The Pulse The Pulse is a magazine published once every two months that gives our staff 

information on a range of in-house topics such as clinical issues, good-news 

stories, project information and sporting events.  It also includes a letters page so 

that staff can see letters written by members of the public. 

Payment by Results The aim of Payment by Results is to provide an open, rules-based system for 

paying trusts. It will reward efficiency, support patient choice and diversity and 

encourage reductions in waiting times.  

 

The Payment by Result tariffs system means funding is fair and consistent rather 

than relying on past budgets and the negotiating skills of individual managers. 

Quality Committee This committee gives the Board an independent and objective review of, and 

assurances about, all aspects of quality, specifically clinical effectiveness, patient 

experience and patient safety, and monitors whether the Board keep to the 

standards of quality and safety set out in the registration requirements of the 

Care Quality Commission. 

 

Quality dashboard An easy-to-read, often single-page report showing the current status and 

historical trends of our quality indicators of performance. 

Research Ethics 

Committee 

Research Ethics Committees are the committees which give independent advice 

to the people who take part in research, the researchers, funders, sponsors, 

employers, care organisations and professionals on how far proposals for 

research studies meet recognised ethical standards. 

Rural performance Measurement of Category A8 response performance in all rural areas, as agreed 

at local level. 

Safeguarding referral The process crews follow if they suspect a patient (whether a child or an adult) is 

vulnerable or at harm. 

See and treat A face-to-face assessment by a paramedic that results in a patient being given 

care somewhere other than an  A&E department. 

Special reviews or 

investigations 

Special reports on the how particular areas of health and social care are 

regulated. 

Urgent care centre Urgent care centres help to prevent people going to hospital unnecessarily, for 

instance at walk-in centres patients can be treated for minor injuries and 

ailments instead of going to hospital. 
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If you would like a copy of this report in another format such as braille, audio tape, large print, 

another language or any other format, please contact: 

Email:  

Sahdia.hassen.neas.nhs.uk 

Address:  

North East Ambulance Service NHS Trust 

Ambulance Headquarters 

Bernicia House 

Goldcrest Way 

Newburn Riverside 

Newcastle Upon Tyne 

NE15 8NY 

 

 

We welcome feedback on this report. You can give your comments and suggestions in writing. 

Email:  

Rachel.lonsdale@neas.nhs.uk 

Address: 

Rachel Lonsdale 

North East Ambulance Service NHS Trust 

Ambulance Headquarters 

Bernicia House 

Goldcrest Way 

Newburn Riverside 

Newcastle Upon Tyne 

NE15 8NY 

 

Or, visit the NHS Choices website to leave feedback at: 

http://www.nhs.uk/Services/Trusts/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=29237 

 

  

mailto:Rachel.lonsdale@neas.nhs.uk
http://www.nhs.uk/Services/Trusts/Overview/DefaultView.aspx?id=29237
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Patient care 

The Trust has used our new Foundation Trust status as a springboard to further enhance the quality 

of patient care we deliver. With our Council of Governors representing patients in our region, our 

services can be developed with local opinions in mind.  Patients are able to direct and shape our 

organisation and to really influence how we operate. Decisions will be taken locally which means 

that we are more responsive to the needs of our patients. Our intention remains to build on the 

opportunities offered by NHS Foundation Trust status to nurture and continue our successful culture 

of innovation and achievement and to continue to exceed our high quality healthcare aspirations.  

Performance against key healthcare targets 

NEAS has contributed to two national audits; the National Clinical Performance Indicators (NCPI) and 

the Ambulance Quality Indicators (AQI).  The NCPIs measured the quality of care delivered to 

patients presenting with asthma or hypoglycaemia and the AQIs monitored the care delivered to 

patients presenting with cardiac arrest, stroke or STEMI (a type of heart attack). 

The introduction of the NHS Outcomes Framework and the new AQIs presented the Trust with the 

opportunity to evidence the quality of care we can provide for our patients. NEAS has demonstrated 

continuous quality improvement in the transportation of stroke patients to a hyperacute stroke 

centre within the appropriate timeframe.  In fact, NEAS is the best performing Ambulance Service in 

this indicator.  Patients presenting with a STEMI (heart attack) are also being transported in an 

appropriate timeframe for treatment and NEAS is performing above the national average in this 

indicator. 

We are continuing to push our staff to record the delivery of the appropriate care bundle to over 

95% of patients presenting with stroke, hypoglycaemia and STEMI. The Quality Improvement Officer 

clinically reviews those cases where the appropriate care bundle was not delivered or were not 

transported within the recommended timeframe to identify the time range, reasons for delay, 

identify any clinical risk that may have arisen and the divisions which are most responsible. 

The Quality Improvement Officer is also reviewing operational clinical performance on an individual 

basis and sharing this information with Operational Team Leaders so that clinical concerns can be 

resolved more effectively.  A lower than average ROSC (return of spontaneous circulation) rate in 

the Cardiac Arrest indicator suggests that this could be a reflection of our regional health profile but 

we do demonstrate an above average survival to discharge rate. 

How we monitor national and local targets 

We have a robust monitoring tool where key performance indicators from various departments 

within the Trust are recorded. This tool is called the Integrated Performance Report, and this 

contains information which allows us to build up a fulsome picture of Trust performance and identify 

quickly if there are areas where we need to make improvements. Our Integrated Performance 

Report has monitored progress every month for information such as; 

 Rate of complaints and appreciations received 

 Serious incidents 

 Call answer performance in our contact centres 
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 Response time performance for our emergency vehicles 

 Staffing levels 

 Staff sickness absence 

 Rate of staff training and staff appraisals  

 Financial performance and cost improvement savings 

In addition to our Integrated Performance Report, we also monitor our Quality Risk Profile (QRP) 

closely. The QRP is a document produced by our independent regulator, the Care Quality 

Commission (CQC). It holds information on various areas of performance within our Trust and 

highlights where we may need to make improvements in line with other NHS providers.  We have 

monitored the QRP every time the CQC have released one (there are around nine QRPs released 

every year) and implemented action plans which track any negatively rated risks at Board committee 

level. 

CQC Reviews 

NEAS underwent a periodic CQC review in April 2011, where we were found to be compliant in all of 

the essential standards of quality and safety which were inspected. The CQC found that the Trust 

had one improvement action, relating to Outcome 2 of the essential standards (capacity to consent 

to care and treatment). The full report from the review is available on the CQC website. The 

improvement action from the CQC was for the Trust to train patient facing staff in the Mental 

Capacity Act. The Trust put together a training plan to ensure this improvement action was 

delivered. 

This training has formed part of the statutory and mandatory training requirement throughout 

2011/12 for all patient-facing staff. The Trust has submitted a report to the CQC to tell them about 

the training we have provided for staff and to assure the CQC that our continued compliance with 

Outcome 2 is not a risk.  

The increased training for patient facing staff has improved our patient care as it was delivered to all 

frontline operational staff and all contact centre staff as part of the essential annual training for 

2011/12. The training included an introduction to the Mental Capacity Act’s code of conduct and 

training on how to conduct a mental capacity assessment. The Trust also introduced a NEAS 84 form, 

which is a form to record the capacity assessment of a patient. The training has been very successful 

in embedding the Mental Capacity Act into patient care, demonstrated by the large number of NEAS 

84 forms received by the Clinical Directorate. There have also been increased calls to the on-call 

clinician relating to mental capacity, which shows that our staff are increasingly aware of mental 

capacity issues.  

Progress against targets agreed locally with commissioners 

Since 2009 commissioners have rewarded the Trust for high quality service delivery in the form of a 

CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation) payment. During 2011/12 1.5% of the total 

contract value for the Trust was made available as an additional payment to reward the fulfilment of 

certain quality goals which the Trust agreed locally with commissioners.  

The 2011/12 CQUIN scheme final achievement has not been confirmed at the time of writing this 

report, but the details of potential payments and quality goals are detailed in the table below, along 

with our estimation of achievement of payment. 
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CQUIN Scheme 2011/12 

Indicator Indicator description Potential payment for 

successful achievement 

2011/12 

NEAS estimated 

payment 2011/12 

(yet to be 

confirmed) 

LS1 Increase the proportion of 999 

patients transported to 

alternative established 

community provided services 

rather than A&E 

£207,592 £207,592 

LS1a: Increase the proportion of 

999 patients treated on scene or 

referred to an alternative care 

provider rather than A&E when a 

vehicle has arrived on scene. 

£103,796 £103,796 

 

LS1b: Increase the proportion of 

999 patients transported to an 

alternative care provider rather 

than A&E when a vehicle has 

arrived on scene. 

£103,796 £103,796 

LS2 Increase the use of the ‘Hear & 

Treat’ strategy 

£138,395 £138,395 

LS3 Avoid unnecessary transport of  

End of Life Care (EoLC) patients 

to A&E 

£207,592 £207,592 

LS3a: NEAS to have a 

system/procedure in place to 

register palliative patients as well 

as increase the number of patients 

registered. 

£103,796 £103,796 

LS3b: To reduce inappropriate 

transport of EoLC patients to A&E 

£34,599 £34,599 

LS3c: Develop a baseline for the 

time it takes to respond to a 

request to transport a patient from 

a care facility to home who has 

chosen to die at home. 

£69,197 £69,197 

LS4 Develop a referral procedure to 

refer repeat patients to a falls 

service. 

£207,592 £207,592 

LS5 Analysis of cause of delayed 

handovers/turnarounds in A&E 

£207,592 £207,592 

LS5a: To develop and participate in 

a NE group to reduce turnaround 

times at hospitals. 

£69,197 £69,197 

LS5b: To set up a system that 

informs an appropriate PCT 

£69,197 £69,197 
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manager of delays at their local 

hospitals on the same day. 

LS5c: To provide patient level 

reports on delayed handover times 

(15 mins +) when requested. 

£34,599 £34,599 

LS5d: To report details of excessive 

turnaround times above 1 hour by 

Hospital 

£34,599 £34,599 

LS6 Work to improve rural 

performance 

£138,395 £138,395 

LS7 To plan a survey of service users 

in A&E to use the feedback to 

plan improvements to the 

service. 

£138,395 £138,395 

LS8 To plan a survey of PTS service 

users to use the feedback to 

plan improvements to the 

service. 

£138,395 £103,796 

Total: £1,383,949 £1,349,350 

Accident and Emergency 

HALO 

Durham and Darlington hospitals have jointly appointed with NEAS a Hospital Ambulance Liaison 

Officer (HALO). This post is aimed at improving the handover of patients from the ambulance to 

hospitals. The post holder works with ambulance crews to establish if there are alternative care 

facilities which are more appropriate for patients, and also works with hospitals to notify them of 

any delays at the earliest opportunity. If there are any delays the HALO works with hospital 

managers to look for alternative appropriate destinations for patients. The post is still being 

evaluated but appears to be successful in reducing delays. 

Winter Pressures 

We ensure that we always take into account seasonal trends or events which may impact upon our 

ability to consistently deliver services. Winter is typically a challenging time for us due to the 

increased demand from patients for our services, coupled with the worsening weather which can 

affect our response times and methods of response. 

Prior to  the winter period NEAS developed a winter plan including placing additional resources in 

Durham, North of Tyne and Teesside, where the rural areas are most heavily affected by poor 

weather conditions. Documentation and processes were put in place for NEAS staff to capture 

information when their response times were significantly challenged due to worsening weather. 

Fifteen 4x4 vehicles were hired by the Trust, to provide improved traction on snow and ice.  These 

vehicles had their locations regularly monitored to ensure they were deployed in the correct areas 

throughout the Trust to minimise any disruption to the service which could be caused by bad 

weather. Winter kit such as snow socks, metal snow-shovels and tow straps were purchased and 

delivered to each relevant Trust location. We had arrangements in place for extra support from 

voluntary organisations such as St John’s Ambulance Service and The British Red Cross Society 
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should conditions have demanded it. 

Winter planning workshops were carried out before and after winter planning to ensure NEAS was 

prepared for winter and procedures were in place to effectively deal with the effects of poor 

weather conditions. Both good and bad practices were noted to inform the planning for future 

winters.  

While the anticipated severe weather conditions did not occur in 2011/12, the Trust will use findings 

from our winter planning to inform the 2012/13 planning round. 

A&E Review 

The A&E review project aims to implement a new service model based on the outcomes of the A&E 

Modelling Project in order to provide the Trust with a robust and efficient service to manage future 

demand whilst achieving national 999 response time targets. New rotas based on a 37.5 hour week 

will be introduced for each band of staff to support management resources. Additional Urgent Care 

Ambulance resources will be included in the new model to expand the use of an intermediate tier 

for GP and Urgent incidents. Discussions have progressed with unions, stakeholders and staff and 

details are being finalised ahead of implementation in 2013. 

Patient Transport Services 

A Patient Journey Rapid Programme Improvement Workshop (RPIW) was held in February and 

focused upon the patient journey.  This produced a revised patient journey which will form the 

vision for the improvement of the service moving forward.  The workshop, involving patients, staff, 

Commissioners and hospital providers agreed key pieces of work which are now being undertaken.  

All of these pieces of work are focused upon improving the patient experience of PTS.  One of these 

focuses upon how we can improve the quality of the booking information PTS receives.  This will 

ensure that the correct vehicles arrive at a patient's home to transport them to hospital ensuring the 

service has been informed about their mobility. 

A text messaging service has been launched to remind patients of their booking two days before 

their journey and as the crew leave to collect the patient.  The service aim is to see a reduction in 

the number of aborted journeys. 

Service improvements following staff or patient surveys 

Patient surveys have been carried out in our A&E services; PTS services and 111 contact centres 

between November 2011 and March 2012. Patients using our transport services on Teesside told us 

about their experiences with a sub-contracted company. Further investigations into this company 

led to a decision to terminate our contract with the provider concerned in the interests of improving 

patient experience. 

Complaints Handling 

We take any complaint, concern or comment we receive very seriously. We expect very high 

standards to be maintained in our Trust, and any indication this is not the case is responded to 

appropriately. Every complaint that we have received has been investigated thoroughly and 

objectively, and relevant action has been taken to prevent reoccurrence and improve service 

delivery where required. 

We have a complaints policy and procedure which meets NHS complaints regulations. We work to 
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the ‘Principles For Remedy’ (a publication from the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman) 

when handling complaints, and reflect the document’s six principles in our complaints policy; 

7. Getting it right 

8. Being customer focused 

9. Being open and accountable 

10. Acting fairly and proportionately 

11. Putting things right 

12. Seeking continuous improvement 

How we have dealt with complaints 

When we received a complaint, concern or comment we; 

 acknowledged the complainant within three working days either by telephone or in writing  

 wrote to the complainant within 25 days or longer, when agreed,  to explain how the 

complaint was being handled.  

How many complaints we received 

From November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012, we received a total of 139 new complaints from people 

who wanted a written reply from the Chief Executive.  

Service Line Complaints Ratio of Complaints 

A&E Operations 37 0.29 per 1000 journeys 

PTS Operations 30 0.41 per 1000 journeys 

Contact Centres 72 0.2 per 1000 calls answered 

Other 0 0 

 

Of these complaints, 8 were not progressed as we did not receive the appropriate level of patient 

consent. 9 complaints were closed by discussing the problem with our investigating officer and 

feeding back to the complainant.  The following complaints (these also include complaints received 

prior to November 1st 2011, but still being processed during this reporting period) were investigated 

by our complaints team and the outcomes were as follows;  

 70 complaints were upheld (the reason for the complaint was found to be valid, and the 

Trust was at fault) 

 16 complaints were part upheld (an element of the complaint, but not all aspects of the 

complaint, was found to be valid and the Trust was partially at fault) 

 54 complaints were not upheld (the reason for the complaint was found not be the fault of 

the Trust) 

 42 complaints are currently still under investigation at the time of writing this report. (Note 

this includes complaints that have been reopened due to further contact). 

What  we receive complaints about 
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The complaints we received between November 1st 2011 and March 31st 2012 in relation to our A&E 

service were about the following; 

 The attitude of our staff 

 The quality of care we provided 

 The outcome of the triage (the initial assessment in the call centre)  

 The time waiting for an ambulance to arrive 

 The use of sirens on our vehicles. 

We also received complaints about the Patient Transport Service for the following reasons; 

 Vehicle was late to pick up patient for appointment 

 Patient had to wait for transport after their appointment  

 Vehicle failed to arrive 

 The attitude  of our staff  

We are keen to learn from complaints so that we can improve our service and we routinely share 

the lessons we have learned from complaints with staff.  Examples of Trust-wide learning following 

the investigation of complaints are: 

 Review of Mental Capacity Act training for contact centre staff 

 Multi-agency meeting held to identify lessons learned from a complaint with the aim of 

improving patient experiences at end of life.  

 Clinical Practice Circulars to operational staff to reinforce standard practices 

There is additional learning within the Trust, where we share patient experience and learning with 

the wider healthcare community. This includes sharing feedback with NHS Pathways and the 

commissioners of the NHS 111 service which the Trust operates for the County Durham and 

Darlington area. 

We are keen to engage with our staff on a regular basis aside from when a complaint has been 

received, and we do this via the regular publication of our Pulse magazine, through our weekly email 

‘The Summary’ and through posters in NEAS sites. 

The Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman (PHSO) 

If a complaint is made to us and the complainant is not happy with how we have attempted to 

resolve it, the PHSO can be asked to review the complaint. 

From November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012, the PHSO were asked to review two complaint files 

held by us. Following the review the ombudsman decided not to investigate either of these 

complaints further. In one case it was identified that the local resolution stage of the complaints 

process had not been completed and that a new issue (not previously brought to the Trust) was 

raised. The Trust was asked to contact the complainant to complete local resolution. In the second 

case, although the Ombudsman decided not to investigate, the Ombudsman suggested feedback be 

given to the attending crew as part of their professional development. The actions for both have 

been completed.   



76 
 

Improvements in information for patients and carers 

We have reviewed the information supplied to patients using our non-emergency patient transport 

service and replaced the single 12-page leaflet with four new 6-page leaflets tailored for specific 

service users. This is currently being evaluated by patient groups and our Experience Complaints, 

Litigation and Patient Advice and Liaison Service (ECLIPS) group prior to distribution. 

On 1st November 2011, we launched an upgrade of our website with a new URL, www.neas.nhs.uk 

and functions to engage with patients and public using social networks and new media tools. As a 

result, we have seen the number of web visitors to our service increase through engagement with 

interactive tools such as Twitter and online forms and surveys ranging from complaints, 

compliments and recruitment inquiries. 

Development of services involving other local agencies and services  

Involvement in local initiatives 

NEAS has worked with our local A&E departments and Commissioners to develop improvements to 

the process of handing a patient over from an ambulance to an A&E department. The amount of 

time it takes to hand over a patient following the arrival of an ambulance at hospital is dependent 

upon a number of factors; such as the availability of nursing staff at the receiving hospital, and the 

condition of the patient. This process differs in length of time depending on the number of patients 

waiting for treatment at the hospital at the time the patient is brought in from the ambulance. 

In common with other ambulance Trusts, we have seen the length of time in handover of patients 

increase in some parts of the region and have been working proactively with local hospitals and 

Commissioners to achieve the best handover times possible for patients.  

By communicating with each other daily, we try to forecast when peaks in demand may occur, and 

make appropriate plans. We also have a number of on-call officers who can be dispatched to local 

hospitals to help with handovers at times of peak activity. NEAS chairs a group which meets monthly 

to discuss patient handover and turnaround issues and includes membership from every A&E 

department in the region as well as local Commissioners and a Paramedic. The group has provided a 

forum for discussion of any issues or improvements which could speed up patient handover and 

further improve the experience for the patient.  

Partnerships to improve delivery of healthcare to our patients 

We always strive to optimise the services we offer to people in the North East region. In November 

2011 we won the bid to provide region-wide out-of-hours services to patients through the NHS 111 

service.  We have provided this service for residents in County Durham and Darlington since August 

2010. Delivery of the region-wide service will see us partner with Northern Doctors Urgent Care 

(NDUC). We have built up an excellent working relationship with NDUC and we feel this partnership 

offers the best service to the patients of the North East.  
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National staff survey  

2011/12 National Staff Survey (most recent survey) 

Every year a sample of our staff are given the opportunity to participate in an anonymous survey, as 

part of the NHS national staff survey. The top four ranking scores and lowest four ranking scores are 

shown below, with their comparison for the previous year: 

We take the results of our staff survey very seriously, and we are committed to listening to our staff 

and responding to their concerns. The full results of the survey can be found at 

http://www.nhsstaffsurveys.com/cms/. Every year after the survey has been conducted we put 

plans in place to address the areas of most concern.  During the last year the actions we have taken 

as a result of staff surveys included: 

 Reviewing how managers communicate with their staff and how managers acted on staff 

feedback. 

 Reviewing the appraisal system to produce a more streamlined appraisal process. 

 Arranging work streams to reduce the volume of work related injuries within the Trust, 

including; 

o Trialling a new bag for Paramedics working on Rapid Response vehicles  

o Raising staff awareness in relation to their surroundings and the importance of 

personal protective equipment, such as correct footwear. 

Total Staff Responses: 329 staff (41% of those asked to participate) 

Survey Finding NEAS Score 2010 

(using the 2010 

survey results) 

NEAS Score 2011 Ambulance 

Service National 

Average 2011 

Top four ranked scores in 2011 

Percentage of staff working extra hours (the 

lower the score the better) 

73% 74% 82% 

Percentage of staff having equality and 

diversity training in last 12 months (the higher 

the score the better 

74% 79% 37% 

Percentage of staff receiving health and safety 

training in last 12 months (the higher the score 

the better) 

82% 87% 54% 

Work pressure felt by staff (the lower the 

score the better) 

2.96 2.99 3.17 

Bottom four ranked scores in 2011 

Percentage of staff experiencing harassment, 

bullying or abuse from patients, 

relatives or the public in last 12 months (the 

lower the score the better) 

29% 

 

35% 29% 

Percentage of staff suffering work-related 

injury in last 12 months (the lower the score 

the better) 

41% 38% 33% 

Percentage of staff experiencing 

discrimination at work in last 12 months  (the 

lower the score the better) 

21% 27% 22% 

Percentage of staff appraised in last 12 

months (the higher the score the better) 

54% 58% 67% 
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o Painting floors within ambulance station garages with anti-slip paint 

 Implementing CCTV on some Trust vehicles to attempt to lower the volume of physical 

violence our staff experience from patients and their families and carers.  

 Implementing a new lone worker policy to support our lone-working staff in reducing 

physical violence. 

 Publicising the availability of counselling for our staff to support staff in times of stress.  

Our priorities for the year ahead are based around our lowest scoring areas within the survey, and 

establishing where we can make meaningful improvements to our practices.  

 

Directors’ report 

Board of Directors 

The composition of our Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors is responsible for formulating and driving strategy, ensuring accountability 

and shaping culture.  It is ultimately accountable for everything that goes on in the organisation and 

it is responsible for putting the right people, the right quality of information and the right systems in 

place to make decisions.  It operates through a scheme of delegation within a robust framework of 

systems and reporting which ensures that core business and risks are being controlled.  The Board 

gains assurance through its committee structure and sources of other assurance and it meets 

formally, both in public and private sessions throughout the year to discharge its duties and receive 

those assurances. Our Chairman and Chief Executive have complementary roles in leadership: 

 Our Chairman leads the Board of Directors and ensures its effectiveness and he chairs the 

Council of Governors 

 The Chief Executive leads our Executive Team and the organisation. 

The Executive Team is at the highest level of the organisation and has the day-to-day responsibility 

of managing the Trust; they hold specific executive powers conferred onto them with and by 

authority of the Board of Directors. All members subscribe to the ‘Codes of Conduct and 

Accountability in the NHS’.   

The Board of Directors has a range of skills and experiences gained from both the public and private 

sectors that complement all areas of our business including clinical, contact centre management, 

logistics, legal, finance, human resource management and operations management. This range of 

skills ensures balance, completeness and appropriateness of membership of the Board of Directors.  

The Board of Directors meets formally at least six times a year and members attend bi-monthly 

seminar events where a range of themed developmental sessions and briefings are delivered. 
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Board of Directors and Management Organisation Chart 

 

The roles of Executive and Non-Executive Directors 

Non-Executive Directors contribute to the development of strategy and play an important role in 

scrutinising the management in achieving agreed goals and objectives and monitoring the reporting 

of performance. Non-Executive Directors are drawn from the local community and can ensure that 

the voice of the public is heard in decision-making processes and that the interests of patients 

remain at the heart of Board discussions. Non-Executives also have a role in working with the 

Chairman in the appointment and remuneration of the Chief Executive and other Board members as 

members of the Trust’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee.  

Executive Directors share the same corporate responsibilities as Non-Executive colleagues but bring 

detailed knowledge of the organisation’s management systems and processes and of the health 

sector, as well as specialised clinical and managerial expertise. The Trust has six Executive Directors 

who are all employed by the Trust on permanent contracts with a six month notice period.   

All Non-Executive Directors are considered to be independent by the Trust 

All of the NHS Trust Non-Executive Directors continued as Non-Executive Directors of NEAS as a 

Foundation Trust.  As a new Foundation Trust, ‘initial’ appointments of the current Non-Executive 

Directors (and the Chairman) have been made in accordance with the NHS Act 2006 which provides 

for the ‘initial’ Chairman and ‘initial’ Non-Executive Directors to be appointed “for the unexpired 

period of his or her term of office as Chairman or Non-Executive Director but if, on any such 

appointment, that period is less than 12 months, he or she must be appointed for 12 months”.  As 

such, three Non-Executives have been appointed for one year, two Non-Executive Directors for a 

period of over one year and the Chairman’s appointment is due for review in June 2014.  The Trust 

had two ‘designate’ Non-Executive Directors and both were appointed for a period of three years. 

Under the Foundation Trust Constitution, removal of the Chairman or Non-Executive Directors 

requires the approval of three-quarters of the members of the Council of Governors.  Appointments 

will also be terminated if, in accordance with the Constitution, they become disqualified from 

holding their appointment or they resign from office by giving notice. 
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Board Profile 

The team of Executive and Non-Executive Directors during the period November 1st 2011 and March 

31st 2012 included: 

 

Tony Dell (Chairman) 

Tony is half way through a four year term as Chairman. He was the 

Chairman of the former ambulance service organisation and prior 

to that, a Director with the Government Office for the North East 

(GONE) for ten years, taking early retirement in 2000. 

Tony’s initial appointment term with the Foundation Trust runs to 

30th June 2014. 

 Simon Featherstone - Chief Executive 

A Chartered Accountant, Simon has worked for an insurance 

company in Bermuda, an aviation company in Luton, building 

societies in Bristol and Sunderland, before going to work for the 

NHS in Scotland as Director of Finance and then joining City Health 

(Community & Mental Health) Trust in Newcastle in 1997. Since 

October 1999, he has been Chief Executive of the North East 

Ambulance Trust, formed in April 1999 from the merger of 

Northumbria and Durham County Ambulance Services.  

He has been Chief Executive of the North East Ambulance NHS 

Trust since it was formed in 2006 from the merger of North East 

Ambulance Service with Teesside, East and North Yorkshire 

Ambulance Trusts. 

 

Roger French - Director of Finance 

Roger’s main areas of financial responsibility are advising the Trust 

Board on financial strategies, financial services including treasury 

management and procurement, financial planning and financial 

management including day to day budgetary control. He leads on 

commissioning, estates, the routine maintenance function, 

purchasing of goods and services, claims management and for the 

Trust’s insurances. He also has corporate responsibility for the 

Trust’s Assurance processes including Risk Management and 

Health and Safety. 

From 1st April 2012 roger’s responsibilities for his non-financial 

resource roles have expanded to include the Deputy Chief 

Executive role and responsibility for leading the Trust’s 

Information Management and Technology and Fleet functions, 

whilst continuing to provide leadership on the strategic estates 

http://www.neambulance.nhs.uk/The board/028.jpg
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and routine maintenance functions.  

From 1st April 2012 Roger relinquished his role on leading the 

Trust’s Contracting and Risk Management functions as this has 

transferred to the Strategy and Business Planning and the Clinical 

Care and Patient Safety directorates respectively. 

 Colin Cessford - Director of Strategy & Business Development 

Colin is a former Nurse and Paramedic who graduated in 1997 

with a BSc in Pre-hospital Care and attained a MSc in Health 

Science Management in 2003. He is widely travelled, and has 

managed healthcare projects in both the Middle East and 

Australia. His current role combines aspects of strategic and 

business development, performance management and 

operational management of the Trust’s three contact centres. At a 

national Ambulance Service level, Colin holds lead responsibility 

for the NHS 111 urgent care access telephone service. 

 

Paul Liversidge - Director of Operations 

Paul began work for Northumbria Ambulance Service in 1983, 

where he gained seven years of front line operational experience. 

He was appointed by the North East Ambulance Service as Senior 

Divisional Officer in 1999 following the merger of the former 

Northumbria and Durham services, with overall responsibility for 

the delivery of Accident and Emergency services for South of 

Tyne.  He progressed to become Director of Accident and 

Emergency and following the merger in July 2006, he was 

appointed to the role of Director of Ambulance Operations at the 

new North East Ambulance Service NHS Trust. 

 

Christopher Harrison - Director of Workforce & Organisational    

Development 

Chris has over 20 years Human Resource experience gained across 

the NHS and private sector. Prior to joining NEAS in 2002, Chris 

worked for Corus Construction and Industrial (formerly British 

Steel) for five years, in a number of operational and strategic HR 

roles.  He has held Human Resource Director posts in acute and 

community NHS organisations in the South Durham area. 

http://www.neambulance.nhs.uk/The board/020.jpg
http://www.neambulance.nhs.uk/The board/017.jpg
http://www.neambulance.nhs.uk/The board/026.jpg
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 Ann Fox - Director of Clinical Care and Patient Safety  

Ann has worked for the NHS for over 25 years in various roles at a 

clinical, operational management and strategic level. Ann took up 

her post in October 2009 and is the Director of Clinical Care & 

Patient Safety which covers all aspects of Clinical Governance, 

Clinical Risk, Complaints, Infection Prevention & Control and 

Research and Development. Ann is the Trust’s Caldicott Guardian, 

appointed to protect patient information. 

 

Kyee Han - Medical Director, Directorate of Clinical Care and 

Patient Safety  

Kyee Han is the Medical Director at NEAS. He provides strategic 

medical advice and leadership. Kyee has worked as a Consultant 

within A&E since 1990.  

He has had a close working relationship with the ambulance 

service both as a trainee and consultant. He commenced his post, 

which is part time, in January 2010. 

  John Pescott (Deputy Chair) 

 A Chartered Accountant, John is the Royal Danish Consul for 

Newcastle, Northumberland, Durham, Tyne and Wear, 

Middlesbrough and Stockton.  Prior to taking early retirement he 

was a director of a major international shipping company. 

John’s initial appointment term with the Foundation Trust is one 

year, expiring on 1st November 2012. 

John is Deputy Chair of the Board of Directors. 

 

 Helen Tucker  

Helen brings a wealth of diverse experience to the Board having 

worked within the NHS for forty years, starting her career as a 

Cadet Nurse and finally retiring from the post of Director of 

Patient Service and Nursing for a former local PCT. Helen retains a 

strong professional interest in the dignity of patient care and pain 

control. 

Helen’s initial term with the Foundation Trust runs to 30th 

September 2014. 
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 Peter Wood  

Peter spent 39 years working for Barclays Bank before his 

retirement. Since then Peter has been actively engaged in a range 

of community activities.  

Peter’s initial appointment term with the Foundation Trust is one 

year, expiring on 1st November 2012. 

 

Alison Fellows (Senior Independent Director) 

Alison is a solicitor and was formerly a partner, heading the 

Commercial Team at Dickinson Dees Law Firm. Alison is now the 

Head of Programmes and Major Projects within Newcastle City 

Council.  

Alison’s initial term with the Foundation Trust is one year, expiring 

on 1st November 2012. 

Alison is Senior Independent Director of the Board of Directors.  

 Wendy Lawson  

Following a long and successful career in sales and business 

development, Wendy moved into the contact centre arena where 

she worked at a senior level for several years. Wendy now runs 

her own contact centre consultancy based in Newcastle. Her main 

areas of interest include telemarketing and outsourcing, 

specialising in senior operations management and project 

management of high volume Contact Centres.  

Wendy was appointed to the Foundation Trust on 1st November 

2011 for a period of three years.  

 Jeff Fitzpatrick  

Jeff started his career in Human Resources and industrial relations 

and quickly moved on to general management. Jeff has a passion 

for investment and recently formed a new venture, World Class 

Investors Ltd. through which he is helping people with their 

pension investments. Jeff is a significant investor in the world’s 

stock markets himself and enjoys teaching others how to do so 

safely and successfully.  

Jeff’s initial appointment term with the Trust runs to 31st March 

2013. 
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Phil Murray 

Phil has a BA Honours in Accountancy and Marketing, and is also a 

chartered accountant. He is Group Finance Director at Gentoo, 

and is Managing Director at Romag Ltd. 

Phil was appointed to the Foundation Trust on 1st November 2011 

for a period of three years.  

 

Restructures 

During this reporting period, there were some changes to the membership of the Board of Directors. 

Chris Harrison, the Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development, accepted a post 

at another trust and left the North East Ambulance Service in January 2012. An interim director was 

appointed, with recruitment of a permanent replacement scheduled for later in 2012.  

The Director of Strategy and Business Development, Colin Cessford, announced his intention to 

retire in May 2012. The Trust wishes both Colin and Chris every success in their future endeavours 

and thanks them both for their hard work and commitment while on the Board of Directors at NEAS. 

An internal restructure has resulted from these changes to reorganise departments in order to 

facilitate maximum efficiency within all departments.  The Director of Strategy and Business 

Development post will not be retained by the Trust but an Associate Director of Strategy, 

Contracting and Performance post will be created, effective from April 1st 2012.  

The title of the Director of Operations will change from April 1st 2012 to Chief Operating Officer, in 

line with national practice and to reflect the responsibility for all core service lines within the Trust.  

Attendance at Board of Directors meetings from November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012. 

From November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012, there were 8 meetings of the Board of Directors, 

consisting of 5 closed meetings and 3 public meetings. Attendance at the meetings was as follows: 

Name of Board member Job role Attendance November 1st 

2011 to March 31st 2012 

(out of 8 meetings) 

Simon Featherstone Chief Executive 6 

Tony Dell Chairman 8 

Colin Cessford Director of Strategy and Business 

Development 

6 

Roger French Director of Finance 6 

Ann Fox Director of Clinical Care and Patient 

Safety 

8 

Paul Liversidge Director of Operations 8 

Chris Harrison (Chris was 

only eligible to attend 5 

meetings before leaving 

the post) 

Director of Human Resources and 

Organisational Development 

3 
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Kyee Han Medical Director 4 

John Pescott Non-Executive Director 6 

Helen Tucker Non-Executive Director 6 

Alison Fellows Non-Executive Director 8 

Jeff Fitzpatrick Non-Executive Director 8 

Wendy Lawson Non-Executive Director 8 

Peter Wood Non-Executive Director 8 

Phil Murray Non-Executive Director 7 

Dorothy Teasdale (Trust Secretary) and Mark Cotton (Assistant Director of Communications and 

Engagement) also attended all of the meetings in an advisory capacity.  

Our Board level committees 

The Trust has a robust committee structure, to provide assurance that our governance 

arrangements are strong and effective. The committees within the Trust are underpinned by 

numerous working groups, made up of members of operational staff, support services, directors and 

senior management. These groups can identify risks which are then raised at committee level. Our 

Board of Directors produces the strategic direction for the Trust, ratifies policies and procedures, 

reviews organisational performance, ensures the availability of adequate financial resources, 

approves budgets and is accountable to the public for the organisation’s performance. In addition to 

the routine committee meetings, the Executive Team meet every two weeks in a formal capacity to 

review organisational performance and other matters. In 2011/12 the Executive Team was made up 

of Executive Directors, the Trust Secretary and Assistant Director of Communications and 

Engagement.  

Attendance at Board level committees from November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012. 

During this period most Board committees met on a bi-monthly basis.  

Quality Committee 

Chair  Peter Wood, Non-Executive Director 

Membership Medical Director and Director of Clinical Care & Patient Safety, 

complaints, training and operational managers, Paramedic and other 

front-line staff, Patient Advice and Liaison services representatives, 

and Monitoring and Compliance Officer. 

Purpose To provide the Board of Directors with assurance that quality is 

considered and embedded throughout the organisation and to 

provide appropriate scrutiny on clinical effectiveness, patient safety 

and patient experience. 

Frequency of Meetings 

and Reporting 

Bi-monthly – accountable to the Board of Directors 

Attendance by members 

of the Board of Directors 

(from a total of 3 

meetings held November 

1st 2011 to March 31st 

2012) 

Name Designation Attended Attended (%) 

Ann Fox Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Kyee Han Executive 

Director 

1 33% 

Peter Wood Non-Executive 3 100% 
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Director 

Helen Tucker Non-Executive 

Director 

2 66% 

Simon 

Featherstone 

Chief Executive 1 33% 

Audit Committee 

Chair  John Pescott, Non-Executive Director 

Membership All non-executive directors (other directors and auditors by 

invitation) 

Purpose To act independently from the Executive, to provide assurance to the 

Board, based on a challenge of evidence and assurance obtained, 

that the interests of the Trust are properly protected in relation to 

financial reporting and internal control. To keep under review the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control; that is the systems 

established to identify, assess, manage and monitor risks both 

financial and otherwise, and to ensure the Trust complies with all 

aspects of the law, relevant regulation and good practice. 

To report to the Board on any matters in respect of which the 

Committee considers that action or improvement is needed, and to 

make recommendations as to the steps to be taken. 

Frequency of Meetings 

and Reporting 

Bi-monthly – accountable to the Board of Directors 

Attendance by members 

of the Board of Directors 

(from a total of 3 

meetings held November 

1st 2011 to March 31st 

2012) 

Name Designation Attended Attended (%) 

John Pescott Non-Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Alison Fellows Non-Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Wendy Lawson Non-Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Peter Wood Non-Executive 

Director 

2 66% 

Helen Tucker Non-Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Jeff Fitzpatrick Non-Executive 

Director 

2 66% 

Phil Murray Non-Executive 

Director 

1 33% 

Business Investment and Finance Committee 

Chair  Jeff Fitzpatrick, Non-Executive Director 

Membership Trust Board members (executive and non-executives) x 8, finance, 

business, performance management, and commissioning managers. 

Purpose To provide the Board of Directors with an objective review of, and 

assurances, in relation to: 

− Growth proposals, ensuring their alignment with Board approved 
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corporate strategy 

− Governance processes for all major investments and divestments 

− Business cases referred to it by the Capital Monitoring Group 

requiring major capital investment 

− Finance, contracting and commissioning issues; presenting reports 

and recommendations in relation to ensuring we maintain cash 

liquidity and are an effective going concern 

− Compliance with legislative, mandatory and regulatory 

requirements in terms of the Committee’s scope. 

Frequency of Meetings 

and Reporting 

Bi-monthly – accountable to the Board of Directors 

Attendance by members 

of the Board of Directors 

(from a total of 4 

meetings held November 

1st 2011 to March 31st 

2012) 

Name Designation Attended Attended (%) 

Jeff Fitzpatrick Non- Executive 

Director 

4 100% 

Phil Murray Non- Executive 

Director 

3 75% 

Alison Fellows Non- Executive 

Director 

2 50% 

Tony Dell Chairman 1 25% 

Simon 

Featherstone 

Chief Executive 4 100% 

Ann Fox Executive 

Director 

2 50% 

Colin Cessford Executive 

Director 

3 75% 

Chris Harrison 

(there were 

only 2 

meetings 

which Chris 

was eligible to 

attend) 

Executive 

Director  

2 100% 

Roger French Executive 

Director 

4 100% 

Paul Liversidge Executive 

Director 

2 50% 

Governance and Risk Committee 

Chair  Alison Fellows, Non-Executive Director 

Membership Members of the Board of Directors (executive and non-executives) x 

8, risk, finance, business and commissioning managers, Quality 

Assurance Officer, and Monitoring and Compliance Officer. 

Purpose To provide the Board of Directors with an objective review of, and 

assurances, in relation to: 

− Focus on all aspects of risk governance, risk management 
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frameworks and promotion of behaviours and cultures that drive 

approaches to risk management 

− The systems of internal control in relation to governance and risk 

management, in that these are fit for purpose, adequately resourced 

and underpin our performance and reputation 

− The overall risk governance process in that it gives clear, explicit 

and dedicated focus to current and forward-looking aspects of risk 

exposure 

− Compliance with law, best practice governance and regulatory 

standards 

Frequency of Meetings 

and Reporting 

Bi-monthly – accountable to the Audit Committee for assurances on 

risk and robust systems of internal control and the  Board of 

Directors 

Attendance by members 

of the Board of Directors 

(from a total of 3 

meetings held November 

1st 2011 to March 31st 

2012) 

Name Designation Attended Attended (%) 

Roger French Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Simon 

Featherstone 

Chief Executive 3 100% 

Colin Cessford Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Chris Harrison 

(Chris was only 

employed at 

the Trust for 2 

meetings) 

Executive 

Director 

2 100% 

Paul Liversidge Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Ann Fox Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Alison Fellows Non-Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Peter Wood Non-Executive 

Director 

2  

Workforce and Equality Committee 

Chair  Helen Tucker, Non-Executive Director 

Membership Members of the Board of Directors (executive and non-executives) x 

7, human resources, workforce development, and equality & 

diversity managers. 

Purpose To provide the Board of Directors with an objective review of, and 

assurances, in relation to: 

− The design, development and implementation of a Workforce 

Strategy that supports our vision and continues to maximise the 

potential of our workforce to deliver the highest quality of care to 

patients 
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− Effective management and leadership development 

− The quality and delivery of workforce plans 

− Organisational development 

− Health and well-being of staff 

− Equality and diversity 

-Compliance with employment legislation and the standards of 

relevant external professional bodies 

Frequency of Meetings 

and Reporting 

Bi-monthly – accountable to the Board of Directors 

Attendance by members 

of the Board of Directors 

(from a total of 3 

meetings held November 

1st 2011 to March 31st 

2012) 

Name Designation Attended Attended (%) 

Helen Tucker Non-Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Wendy Lawson Non-executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Chris Harrison 

(Chris was only 

employed at 

the Trust for 2 

meetings) 

Executive 

Director 

2 100% 

Roger French Executive 

Director 

2 66% 

Colin Cessford Executive 

Director 

1 33% 

Ann Fox Executive 

Director 

3 100% 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Chair  Tony Dell, Chairman 

Membership All Non-Executive Directors, Chairman. 

Purpose Has delegated authority to set remuneration for all executive 

directors, monitor their performance, consider nominations for 

executive director vacancies, and make recommendations on such 

appointments.  

Frequency of Meetings 

and Reporting 

At least once per year.  

Attendance by members 

of the Board of Directors 

(from a total of 2 

meetings held November 

1st 2011 to March 31st 

2012)   

Attendance by people in 

an advisory capacity 

Name Designation Attended Attended (%) 

Helen Tucker Non-Executive 

Director 

1 50% 

Wendy Lawson Non-executive 

Director 

2 100% 

John Pescott Non- Executive 

Director 

2 100% 

Alison Fellows Non- Executive 

Director 

2 100% 

Peter Wood Non- Executive 2 100% 



90 
 

Director 

Jeff Fitzpatrick Non- Executive 

Director 

2 100% 

Phil Murray Non- Executive 

Director 

1 50% 

Two meetings were held in this period, in January 2012 and in March 

2012.  

The Chief Executive (Simon Featherstone) and the Trust Secretary 

(Dorothy Teasdale) attended both of these meetings in an advisory 

capacity. 

 

Performance evaluation of our Board of Directors 

Executive Directors: the Chief Executive conducts quarterly appraisals of the performance of 

Executive Directors based on their key objectives which are derived, at the beginning of each year, 

from the Annual Plan.  The Board receives a position statement in August each year where progress 

is reported and the Trust’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee (consisting of Non-Executive 

Directors) takes account of the performance of each Director and that of the Executive arm of the 

Board as part of its annual salary review discussions. 

The Trust Chairman appraises the performance of the Chief Executive at quarterly intervals and the 

above process is also adopted for the setting of objectives albeit national considerations are taken 

into account. 

 

Non-Executive Directors: The Trust Chairman agrees a number of corporate and personal objectives 

with each non-executive director on an annual basis and formally appraises performance on a six-

monthly basis.  As a Foundation Trust, it will be the role of the Council of Governors to ensure there 

is an effective and meaningful performance assessment and appraisal process in place for both the 

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors and this will be in place for the year ahead.  

 

Committees: All Board Committees (and those groups reporting to them) conduct a formal ‘Review 

of Effectiveness’ on an annual basis.  Each Committee (and group) is required to demonstrate to 

the  Board (and the group to its committee) that it has fulfilled its remit, remained within its Terms 

of Reference and has satisfactorily discharged its duties; adding value in terms of assurances and 

identifying and mitigating risk. This process is led by the Non-Executive Chair of the Committee.   

 

Board of Directors: The Board of Directors undergo an annual performance evaluation in the form of 

a two-day Board development event every December where the Board evaluates how it has 

performed and where it can improve.  During its preparatory work for Foundation Trust status, its 

development programme has been supported by external consultants and it has assessed its roles, 

capacity and capability.   

The Board engaged external professional expertise in readiness for the rigorous assessment of its 

capability and capacity by Monitor and the process helped to equip it to more effectively meet 

future challenges by testing both clinical quality and financial viability.    More recently, it used the 

‘Board Governance Assurance Framework’ commissioned by the Department of Health, to self-
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assess itself current capacity and capability.   

Declaration of Interests 

It is a requirement that the Chairman and all members of the Board of Directors should declare any 

conflict of interest that arises in the course of conducting NHS business. Upon appointment, 

members of the Board of Directors are asked to declare any business interests, directorships, 

positions of authority in a charity or voluntary body in the field of health and any connection with 

contracting bodies for NHS services. The Chairman has no significant commitments to declare. All 

such declarations are entered in a register and are available for public scrutiny. You can obtain a 

copy of the register of interests by writing to our Trust Secretary, using the contact information at 

the end of this report.   

 

Council of governors 

Our Governors 

The Council of Governors is the accountability forum between the Board of Directors and its 

stakeholders.  It represents local interests and holds the Board to account, as well as exercising its 

statutory powers which include:  

 Appointing (and removing) the Chairman and other Non-Executive Directors, deciding on 

remuneration and allowances,  

 Appointing (and removing) the Trust’s Auditors and receiving the annual accounts and the 

annual report.   

 In preparing the Trust’s forward plan, the Board of Directors must have regard to the views 

of the Council of Governors.  It meets formally and in public four times a year and has 

constituted a number of Governor Committees to help it fulfil its role. 

Our Council of Governors has been operating in shadow format for the period leading up to our 

authorisation as a Foundation Trust. Now as a Foundation Trust, it is their role to hold the Board of 

Directors to account. The Council is now fully recruited and has met to ratify the appointment of 

the, now substantive, Non-Executive Directors and has appointed the two, now designate, Non-

Executive Directors. It has also ratified the initial appointment of the Chairman. The Council has 

formally approved the appointment of the Lead Governor and the Deputy Lead Governor and 

considered the role of the Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Director. Our Council of 

Governors has established two Committees, namely the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

and a Membership & Engagement Committee and the Council will seek to fully understand the 

Trust’s business and its various activities, so that Governors can fulfill their important role of 

engaging with the public and ensuring that our services continue to improve in line with the 

wishes of the membership. 

Events have been held to prepare our Governors for their role, including a number of well received 

induction sessions. The Trust held three induction sessions in the period prior to this Annual Report 

and in October we held a corporate induction where staff members from lots of different 

departments within the Trust presented to the Governors, and the Chairman provided some key 
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information about how we measure and report our performance as a Trust. 

How do we elect and appoint our Council of Governors?  

We did not elect any members of the Council of Governors during the period November 1st 2011 to 

March 31st 2012. The election process to vote for the staff governors of our Foundation Trust took 

place in the first quarter of 2011/2012, and was run by the independent election company UK 

Engage.  The Council operated in shadow format until we gained authorisation as a Foundation Trust 

on November 1st 2011.  

Of the elections in 2011, the election in Teesside was uncontested and the five candidates who were 

nominated were automatically elected. The term of appointment was allocated throughout the 

region based on which candidates had the most votes. In Teesside where the election was not 

contested, the first three candidates selected at random received a three year term, and the 

remaining two candidates a two year term. 

The table below shows the Council of Governors and each Governor’s term of election. 

Region or organisation Governor name Term of 

appointment 

North of Tyne Region Mary Mallatratt 2 years 

Kevin Mason 3 years 

Jane Tomlin 3 years 

Sid Walker 3 years 

John Temple 2 years 

Violet Rook 2 years 

South of Tyne Region James Falade 2 years 

Michael Glickman 3 years 

Bill Graham 2 years 

Stephanie Smith 3 years 

Shobha Srivstava 2 years 

Durham Region Robert Alabaster 3 years 

Ricky Clayton 2 years 

Michael Dalton 2 years 

Michael Hemingway 3 years 

Dorothy Maskery 3 years 

Teesside Region Ray Stephenson 2 years 

Mary Carter 2 years 

Mary Fletcher 3 years 

Jean McKenna 3 years 

Frederick Lewis-Bynoe 3 years 

North East Ambulance Service (Staff 

Governors) 

Claire Hardy (A&E) 3 years 

Chris Ward (PTS) 3 years 

Frazer Gregory (Control and 

Contact Centres) 

3 years 

Gemma Rodgers (Support 

Services) 

3 years 
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 Voluntary Organisations’ Network North 

East (Stakeholder Governor) 

Jo Whaley 3 years 

Association of North East Councils Lynne Caffrey 3 years 

Doreen Huddart 3 years 

Richard Dodd 3 years 

Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS 

Foundation Trust 

Chris Parsons 3 years 

Teesside University Eileen Martin 3 years 

North Tyneside Primary Care Trust Mary Coyle 3 years 

Northumbria Healthcare NHS Trust David Thompson 3 years 

Cleveland Emergency Planning Unit Andy Summerbell 3 years 

Meetings of the Council of Governors and attendance 

During the period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012 there was one meeting of the Council of 

Governors. The attendance of each Governor is shown in the table below. 

Region or organisation Governor name Attendance at meetings (from 

a total of 1 meeting) 

North of Tyne Region Mary Mallatratt 1 

Kevin Mason 1 

Jane Tomlin 1 

Sid Walker 1 

John Temple 1 

Violet Rook 1 

South of Tyne Region James Falade 1 

Michael Glickman 1 

Bill Graham 1 

Stephanie Smith 1 

Shobha Srivstava 1 

Durham Region Robert Alabaster 1 

Ricky Clayton 1 

Michael Dalton 0 

Michael Hemingway 1 

Dorothy Maskery 1 

Teesside Region Ray Stephenson 1 

Mary Carter 1 

Mary Fletcher 1 

Jean McKenna 1 

Frederick Lewis-Bynoe 1 

North East Ambulance Service 

(Staff Governors) 

Claire Hardy (A&E) 0 

Chris Ward (PTS) 1 

Frazer Gregory (Control and 

Contact Centres) 

1 

Gemma Rodgers (Support 0 
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Services) 

 Voluntary Organisations’ 

Network North East 

(Stakeholder Governor) 

Jo Whaley 0 

Association of North East 

Councils 

Lynne Caffrey 0 

Doreen Huddart 1 

Richard Dodd 1 

Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys 

NHS Foundation Trust 

Chris Parsons 1 

Teesside University Eileen Martin 1 

North Tyneside Primary Care 

Trust 

Mary Coyle 1 

Northumbria Healthcare NHS 

Trust 

David Thompson 0 

Cleveland Emergency Planning 

Unit 

Andy Summerbell 0 

Declarations of interest 

Similarly to our Board of Directors, all of our Governors must declare details of any company 

directorships or other significant interests which could conflict with their responsibilities as a 

Governor of the North East Ambulance Service. A Register of Interests is maintained by the Trust, 

and is available through request to the Trust Secretary. Address details can be found at the end of 

this report.  

The Board and Governor relationship 

Our Board of Directors recognises the importance of receiving and reacting to views of our Council 

of Governors.  

As a Foundation Trust from November 2011, the Board of Directors was keen to understand the 

statutory powers of the Council of Governors and to support it in creating the forums where the 

Council could hold the Board of Directors to account for its actions, decisions and behaviours 

through formal meetings and by providing all of the information that the Board has at its disposal.  

The forums established during this reporting period include: 

 A Governor Quality Account Task and Finish Group  

 An Annual Planning Group (Governors and Trust officers) specifically to ensure the views of 

Governors are captured and then taken into account in formulating plans for the year 

ahead.  

 

Non-Executive Directors have attended meetings of the Council and there will be joint-meetings or 

sessions of the Board and the Council during 2012/13. 
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Remuneration report 

Remuneration of senior managers 

The Council of Governors will decide on the remuneration of the Chairman and Non-Executive 

Directors and, in line with best practice and Monitor guidance, the Governor Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee, on behalf of the Council, will seek external professional advice (at least 

every three years) to market test the pay levels and the other terms and conditions.  Governors will 

use the outcome of that report to determine salary levels, taking account of the new duties and 

responsibilities and alignment with other Foundation Trusts in the North East. 

For Executive Directors, the Board’s own Nomination & Remuneration Committee, consisting of 

Non-Executive Directors, sets the policy and authorises the remuneration packages and contractual 

terms that are sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors whilst remaining cost 

effective.  Proper regard to the Trust’s circumstances, performance and comparative information 

from within the NHS and other public sector organisation will be taken into account. 

Performance conditions  

The Council of Governors approved a performance assessment and appraisal process for the 

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors and the Governor Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

decided on some of the key elements of that.  The Council was keen to ensure that best practice had 

been taken into account in its development and, prior to agreeing the process, it reviewed guidance 

which set out what a good process should encompass.  In particular, the Committee was keen that 

the system adopted would enable all Governors to have a ‘voice’ in the entire appraisal process.  

This was adopted by the full Council of Governors.  

The Lead Governor and Senior Independent Director have a role in the assessment and appraisal of 

the Chairman, including performance against clear objectives and the Executive Directors also have a 

role in participating in the assessment of Non-Executive Directors.  

The Executive arm of the Board of Directors is monitored both collectively and individually, on 

delivery of key objectives with the Chief Executive appraising performance of Directors on a 

quarterly basis, and the Chairman reviewing the Chief Executive’s performance on the same basis. 

Remuneration not subject to performance conditions 

Performance bonus payments have, historically, been in line with the levels set by the Department 

of Health.  There are no performance conditions for the current period and assessment and 

appraisal of performance will be undertaken against delivery of all objectives. 

Trust policy on senior management contracts 

The Trust’s Constitution provided for the remuneration and allowances and the other terms of 

conditions of office of the Chief Executive and Executive Directors, at the time of authorisation as a 

Foundation Trust, to remain the same as those applying to the former NHS Trust.  The only variation 

to that Contract was that basic pay and salary will be determined by the Foundation Trust’s 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee (and not in accordance with the ‘Pay Framework for NHS 

Very Senior Managers’).  Remuneration and allowances remain unchanged for this reporting period.  

This was also the case for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors save that the term of office was 
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in accordance with Monitor’s requirements. 

Service contracts for senior managers 

The details of the service contracts for our senior managers are shown in the table below. All senior 

appointments were required to be renewed as of November 2011, on the North East Ambulance 

Trust becoming a Foundation Trust. 

Senior Manager Designation Appointment date 

(including most recent 

re-appointment) 

Date term of office 

requires renewal 

Simon Featherstone Chief Executive November 2011 Permanent- no 

renewal 

Roger French Executive Director November 2011 Permanent- no 

renewal 

Paul Liversidge Executive Director November 2011 Permanent- no 

renewal 

Colin Cessford Executive Director November 2011 Permanent- no 

renewal 

Chris Harrison Executive Director November 2011 Permanent- no 

renewal 

Ann Fox Executive Director November 2011 Permanent- no 

renewal 

Kyee Han Executive Director November 2011 Permanent- no 

renewal 

Tony Dell Chairman November 2011 June 2014 

John Pescott Non-Executive Director November 2011 November 2012 

Wendy Lawson Non-Executive Director November 2011 November 2014 

Alison Fellows Non-Executive Director November 2011 November 2012 

Peter Wood Non-Executive Director November 2011 November 2012 

Phil Murray Non-Executive Director November 2011 November 2014 

Jeff Fitzpatrick Non-Executive Director November 2011 March 2013 

Helen Tucker Non-Executive Director November 2011 September 2014 

All of our Executive Directors are required to give six month’s notice upon deciding to leave the 

Trust, and any lesser period must be approved by the Board of Directors, which would assess the risk 

to the continuity of business.  Non-Executive Directors can terminate their contract at any time.  

The Trust has not given any significant awards to senior managers over the last year.  

Signed 

 

Simon Featherstone 
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Audit committee 

The Trust’s Audit Committee has responsibility to act independently from the Executive, to provide 

assurance to the Board, based on a challenge of evidence and assurance obtained, that the interests 

of the Trust are properly protected in relation to financial reporting and internal control. To keep 

under review the effectiveness of the system of internal control; that is the systems established to 

identify, assess, manage and monitor risks both financial and otherwise, and to ensure the Trust 

complies with all aspects of the law, relevant regulation and good practice. 

The Audit Committee is to report to the Board on any matters in respect of which the Committee 

considers that action or improvement is needed, and to make recommendations as to the steps to 

be taken. 

The chair of the Audit Committee is John Pescott. All Non-Executive Directors are members of the 

committee, and Executive Directors and Auditors can attend by invitation.  

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Trust Board and met on a bi-monthly basis during the 

period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012. The attendance at the meetings was as follows: 

 

Name Designation Attended 

(from total of 

3 meetings) 

Attended 

(%) 

John Pescott Non-Executive Director 3 100% 

Alison Fellows Non-Executive Director 3 100% 

Wendy Lawson Non-Executive Director 3 100% 

Peter Wood Non-Executive Director 2 66% 

Helen Tucker Non-Executive Director 3 100% 

Jeff Fitzpatrick Non-Executive Director 2 66% 

Phil Murray Non-Executive Director 1 33% 
 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

This committee has delegated authority to set remuneration for all executive directors, monitor 

their performance, consider nominations for executive director vacancies, and make 

recommendations on such appointments. 

All Non-Executive Directors are members, including the Trust Chairman, who is the committee Chair.  

The committee meets at least once per financial year, and has held two meetings in the period 

November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012, during January 2012 and March 2012. 

Name Designation Attended Attended 

(%) 

Helen Tucker Non-Executive Director 1 50% 

Wendy Lawson Non-executive Director 2 100% 

John Pescott Non- Executive Director 2 100% 
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Alison Fellows Non- Executive Director 2 100% 

Peter Wood Non- Executive Director 2 100% 

Jeff Fitzpatrick Non- Executive Director 2 100% 

Phil Murray Non- Executive Director 1 50% 

The Chief Executive and Trust Secretary also attended both of the meetings of this committee in an 

advisory capacity.  

 

Foundation Trust membership eligibility and constituency boundaries 

There are no limits to how many members we can have as a Foundation Trust. Anyone who is over 

16 years of age and lives in the North East region can join. We can request that certain people do 

not become members, for example, somebody known to us as a ‘vexatious’ individual, someone 

who has threatened, harassed, harmed or abused NHS staff, patients or visitors in any way, and 

members of staff who have submitted their notice of resignation (though if eligible they may apply 

to become a public member rather than a staff member).  Our membership is split into four public 

constituencies which match the current operating divisions of our Trust, these are: 

North of Tyne: Newcastle upon Tyne, Northumberland and North Tyneside 

South of Tyne: Gateshead, South Tyneside and Sunderland 

Durham: County Durham and Darlington 

Teesside: Hartlepool, Stockton, Middlesbrough and Redcar & Cleveland 

Membership levels  

Our current membership level is 11,723 (as of March 31st 2012). 

We are looking to increase our membership, although we have already exceeded our target level of 

10,000 members within three years of authorisation as a Foundation Trust. Maintaining membership 

of 10,000 and above should ensure our membership is representative of the constituencies we serve 

across the region.  

We have undertaken targeted recruitment throughout 2011/12 to increase membership of those 

groups that are currently under-represented when compared to the demographics of the 

population.  

Membership profile 

The profile of NEAS public membership is compared against the records held by the Office of 

National Statistics (ONS) to determine how representative NEAS membership is of the North East 

population.  
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Age Profile 

Public 

Constituency 

Number of 

members 

Eligible 

population in 

North East 

Over or under 

representation 

index 

0-16 3 33,289 2 

17-21 684 163,479 108 

22+ 8,115 2,312,249 91 

 

Gender Profile 

Public constituency Number of members Eligible population in 

North East 

Over of under 

representation index 

(100 = ideal 

representation) 

As of 31
st

 March 2012 9,670 2,509,017  

New members 2,527   

Members leaving 184   

Male 4,725 1,216,238 100 

Female 4,917 1,293,997 98 

 

Staff constituency Number of members 

As of 31
st

 March 2012 2,053 

New members 331 

Members leaving 189 

 

Ethnicity Profile 

Public 

constituency 

Number of 

members 

Eligible 

population in 

North East 

Over or under 

representation 

index 

(100 = ideal 

representation) 

WHITE 9,019 2,449,873 95 

MIXED 110 12,231 233 

ASIAN 210 33,589 162 

BLACK 31 3,867 208 

OTHER 53 10,176 135 
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Socio economic sub group profile 

Public constituency Number of members Eligible population in 

North East 

Over or under 

representation index 

(100 = ideal 

representation) 

ABC1 5,110 85,1203 155 

C2 2,849 318,575 232 

D 339 402,739 21 

E 1,270 399,010 82 

 

Membership by constituency 

Constituency Number of members 

Staff- A&E 1047 

Staff- PTS 416 

Staff- Contact Centres 281 

Staff- Support Services 309 

Public- Durham 2168 

Public- North of Tyne 2747 

Public- South of Tyne 2602 

Public- Teesside 2153 

Total Members 11,723 

Our membership strategy 

We have increased our membership by over 2,300 members since November 1st 2011. One indicator 

of the appropriateness of the size of the member base is to establish the ideal sample size for the 

region, using data from the Office of National Statistics. On the current member base, we have a 

statistical 95% confidence level with a standard deviation of one that our membership is 

representative and credible. Further work, focussing on recruiting 150 members from County 

Durham and 150 members from North of Tyne area, under the age of 33 and evenly split between 

men and women, would improve the spread of representation further. We are developing targeted 

recruitment strategies to target these areas and hope to increase representation in the coming 

years.  

Members aged 33 or younger and Chinese and White British ethnic members remain under-

represented in the Trust in comparison with the population of the North East region. The under-

representation of White British, however, is considered reasonable in view of the predominance of 

the group as a whole (at 96% of the member base). It demonstrates that we are catering for all 

ethnicities. 

Members who wish to contact their Governor should email governors@neas.nhs.uk or alternatively 

write to our Membership Officer who will direct the contact to the appropriate Governor, using the 

address at the end of this report. 

Members who wish to contact a Director should either address a letter to the Director concerned, at 

the address on the last page of this report, or alternatively call our switchboard on 0191 4302000. 

mailto:governors@neas.nhs.uk
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We operate in an open and transparent manner and members are welcome to get in touch if they 

have a query or comment.   

 

Regulatory ratings  

NEAS was authorised as an NHS Foundation Trust on 1 November 2011 and achieved the following 

risk ratings for 2011/12 (quarter 4 is our forecasted risk rating, whilst we await confirmation from 

Monitor): 

  Quarter 3 2011/12 

ACTUAL RISK RATING 

Quarter 4 2011/12 

FORECASTED RISK RATING 

Financial Risk Rating 4 4 

Governance Risk Rating Green Green 

As we were not a Foundation Trust when we published our Annual Plan 2011/12, we did not make 

forecasts within the Annual Plan as to what these risk ratings would be.  

Financial risk ratings are allocated comparing key financial information across all Foundation Trusts. 

A rating of 5 reflects the lowest level of financial risk and a rating of 1 the greatest risk. When 

assessing financial risk, Monitor assigns quarterly and annual risk ratings using a system which looks 

at four criteria: achievement of plan, underlying performance, financial efficiency and liquidity. 

During the first year of being authorised as a Foundation Trust, the highest level of Financial Risk 

Rating that Monitor will award is four, so we are very proud of being awarded this for our first 

quarter as a Foundation Trust. We predict we will maintain this standard for quarter 4, and are 

awaiting confirmation of this from Monitor at the time of publishing this report. 

Monitor use the term ‘governance’ to describe the effectiveness of an NHS Foundation Trust's 

leadership. They use performance measures such as whether Foundation Trusts are meeting 

national targets and standards as an indication of this, together with a range of other governance 

measures such as clinical quality. The governance rating of green indicates the Trust is meeting the 

standard of performance required in respect of specified key measures and has not identified 

significant challenges to the governance of the organisation. 

We have not been subject to any formal regulatory action, or proposed action, from Monitor. 

 

Other disclosures in the public interest  

Consultation with our employees 

During the period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012 we consulted with our employees on 

various areas, one of the most important being the review of the A&E service which the Trust has 

been developing. Staff presentations were held where staff were given the opportunity to ask 

questions to Trust managers about the impact of the review.  

The Trust also consulted with staff about our Equality Delivery strategy, and about our Quality 

Account priorities. 
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We ensure we share information with staff routinely through the regular email called ‘The 

Summary’, which is sent to all members of staff at least once per week.  The Summary contains 

information on key policies, work-streams, significant appointments and promotions or offers 

available to staff. We also produce a bi-monthly magazine called ‘The Pulse’ which is used as a tool 

for informing staff about key areas of work for the Trust. 

Equality in the North East Ambulance Service 

The Equality Act and Public Sector Equality Duty  

The Trust works within a legal framework set out by the Equality Act 2010 which protects people 

who are considered to have a protected characteristic. For example, gender, ethnicity, sexual 

orientation, age, disability, religion or belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity and 

marriage and civil partnership. The Equality Duty encourages us to engage with the diverse 

communities affected by our activities to ensure that policies and services are appropriate and 

accessible to all and meet the different needs of our population. Further information about this is 

included in our Equality Report on page 57. 

To help us understand and respond to the issues which affect our staff and patients protected by the 

Equality Act we have adopted the Equality Delivery System. 

The Equality Delivery System (EDS) 

The Equality Delivery System (EDS) is a framework developed by the NHS to help us review and 

assess our equality performance to ensure there are better health outcomes for patients and 

communities, better working environments for staff, and legal compliance. The EDS is aligned to 

support the Equality Act and those individuals considered as having a protected characteristic. In 

addition to the nine protected characteristics mentioned above we will also consider the needs of 

any other disadvantaged people, for example homeless people. At the heart of the EDS there are 

four goals to consider and we measure and grade our performance by consulting with patients, staff 

and communities. The four goals are:- 

1. Better health outcomes for all

 

2. Improved patient access and 

experience 

 

3. Empowered, engaged and included 

staff 

 

4. Inclusive leadership 

 

Our equality objectives have been developed through consultation and ratified by our grading panel. 

The actions will be further developed with specific departments and overall governance will sit 

within mainstream business process. The EDS is a key business objective which is demonstrated 
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within our annual plan. Ownership of the equality actions will sit within relevant business areas and 

additional patient and staff involvement will be sought through a proposed Patient Forum and Staff 

Diversity Forum.  

Our equality objectives will: 

 Set specific, measurable and realistic actions detailed within a four year plan;  

 Analyse the effect of our policies and practices on equality and consider how they further the 

equality aims;  

 Meet our legal requirements under the Equality Act by publishing sufficient information to 

demonstrate we have complied with the general equality duty on an annual basis; 

 Be  re-graded annually by our grading panel to ensure performance is progressive and our 

objectives are appropriate to meet the needs of our staff, patients and communities today and 

in the future.  

Equality Objectives 

The Trust has identified three equality objectives to overcome the barriers and issues raised 

throughout the consultation with our staff, patients and local communities. Whilst the objectives will 

have a key focus on specific protected characteristics the work will aim to include work that adds 

benefit for everyone accessing our services or working for the Trust.  

Our equality objectives are:- 

1. Patients report a positive experience where their needs are understood, respected and 

adjustments are made to ensure there are no barriers to service and they receive the right 

care.  

 

2. The Trust will promote an inclusive working culture that works to eradicate harassment, 

bullying and violence and improves working lives and staff wellbeing. 

 

3. The Trust will improve engagement levels by demonstrating a fair and inclusive employment 

opportunities, career progression and development for all staff. 

 

Externally the Trust also works with other groups to ensure our practices remain fair and inclusive. 

For example:-  

Stonewall Diversity Champion 

The Trust is a Stonewall Diversity Champion. Stonewall is Britains lesbian, gay, bisexual and 

transgender (LGBT) equality charity who campaign to make changes in legislation to promote  

fairness and equality for the LGBT community.  

Diversity Champions bring together employers from across the UK to promote diversity in the 

workplace and demonstrate our commitment to out staff , communitities and patients.  

The Trust has developed an action plan to be addressed within our objectives in the Equality Delivery 

System and will aim to become a Top 100 Employer in 2013.  
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Disability Accreditation Award Scheme 

The Trust achieved the Two-Tick symbol awarded by Jobcentre Plus in recognition of our 

commitment to disability equality. To achieve this award we demonstrated equality in employment, 

retention, training and career development of disabled employees. 

The symbol also indicates we guarantee to interview anyone with a disability provided their 

application meets the minimum requirements of the job. 

Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Policies 

We have several policies in place to ensure staff are treated fairly, for example: 

 Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Policy 

 Disability Equality Policy 

 Religious Observance Policy 

 Age Equality Policy 

 Race Equality Policy 

 Policy on Gender Equality 

These policies illustrate the Trust’s commitment to providing an inclusive culture which treats all 

individuals with dignity and respect. The Trust values diversity highly and recognises that different 

people bring different perspectives, ideas, histories, opinions, knowledge and culture to our 

organisation, which makes our organisation stronger.  

Dignity at Work 

The Trust’s Dignity at Work Policy promotes the respectful treatment of staff and the protection of 

our employees from bullying and harassment at work. Dignity at Work Officers provide informal, 

confidential and impartial support to employees who feel they are being bullied or harassed.  

Work Life Balance 

The Improving Working Lives through Employee Friendly and Flexible Practices Policy is in place to 

support staff in maintaining their work life balance.  The policy enables employees to maintain a 

healthy balance between their personal commitments and work, and provides a support mechanism 

for carers and those staff with dependants. 

Childcare / Dependants / Carers 

The Trust’s Carers Policy explains the support that is available for staff with caring responsibilities. 

The Trust offers leave for staff to deal with certain unexpected or sudden emergencies such as a 

break down in childcare arrangements, and also offer maternity, paternity, adoption and parental 

leave. Employees of the Trust benefit from using childcare vouchers to pay for childcare, which are 

non-taxable and exempt from National Insurance contributions.  

North East NHS Staff Networks 

The Trust actively supports the North East NHS BME (Black and Minority Ethnic) and Religion / Belief 

Staff Networks which provide an opportunity for staff who share one of more aspects of their 

identity such as their sexual orientation, race or disability status, to communicate, network, meet 

and support each other.  
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NEAS LGBT (lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender) Group  

The purpose of this group is to be a focal point for all sexual orientation and transgender equality 

and assists the Trust to promote an inclusive culture.  

Equality Report 

This report highlights the work we have undertaken in line with the Public Sector Equality Duty. The 

Equality Act (2010) places an Equality Duty on public bodies such as the Trust. This Duty replaces the 

three former public sector equality duties for disability, race and gender and covers the following 

protected characteristics: 

 

• Disability 

• Age 

• Race – this includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality 

• Sex 

• Sexual orientation 

• Religion or belief – this includes lack of belief 

• Gender reassignment 

• Pregnancy and Maternity 

• Marriage and Civil Partnership 

 

The Equality Duty encourages us to engage with the diverse communities affected by our activities 

to ensure that policies and services are appropriate and accessible to all and meet the different 

needs of the communities and people we serve. 

 

The following data shows our workforce broken down by some of the nine protected characteristics 

listed above, and compared with the North East regional demographic, national average for 

ambulance sector workers and England as a whole where possible. 

 

Readers should note that these figures are based on findings released in January 2012, rather than 

any statistics in other parts of this report, which were true as of March 31st 2012. This will result in 

some differences between the two sets of figures.  

Gender 

Gender North East Ambulance 

Service 

North East National Average 

for Ambulance 

Sector Workers 

Women 39% 52% 40.9% 

Men 61% 48% 59.90% 

We are aligned to the national average for gender split within the workforce. 

 

Race 

Race North East Ambulance 

Service 

North East England 

White British 78% Not available Not available 

Non-white 1% 4.14% 6.7% 
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Any other white 

background 

1% Not available Not available 

Not stated 20% Not available Not available 

 

 

 

Disability 

Disability North East Ambulance 

Service 

North East (working 

age population) 

England (working 

age population) 

Yes 3.7% 25% 20% 

 

Age 

 

Age North East Ambulance 

Service 

National average 

ambulance sector  

England 

16 - 20 1.36% 

Not available 

 

21 - 25 4.90% 

26 - 30 8.48% 

31 - 35 14.01% 

36 - 40 17.00% 

41 - 45 15.00% 

46 - 50 13.74% 

51 - 55 11.83% 

56 - 60 8.79% 

61 - 65 3.94% 

66 - 70 0.68% 

 

Sexual Orientation 
 

Sexuality North East Ambulance 

Service 

North East  

Lesbian, gay or bi-

sexual 

1.76% 6.16% 

 

Religion and belief 

Race North East Ambulance 

Service 

North East 

Christian 47% 80.1% 

Religion other than 

Christianity 

4.58% 1.9% 

*Many staff did not disclose a religion  

 

We have identified that more work needs to be done within local communities to promote the 
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North East Ambulance Service as an employer of choice and we will consult on this through our work 

to embed the Equality Delivery System. 

 

We are aware that a large percentage of staff do not wish to disclose their sexual orientation and we 

are trying to increase confidence by working with the organisation Stonewall to improve our 

practices and we are using their national benchmark to help us identify improvement areas.  

 

On a local level we have access to staff networks including a LGBT group, BME network and Religion 

and Belief network which gives us an opportunity to open dialogue with these communities. 

On a national level we will continue to work with the National Ambulance Diversity forum to share 

learning and consider new recruitment methods. 

Health and safety performance in our Trust 

We are committed to improving the health and safety of our staff across all sites within our Trust. 

We have continued to monitor and establish trends in health and safety incidents. The top three 

incident types are consistently ‘violence and aggression’, ‘manual handling’, and ‘slips, trips, and 

falls’. The following sections provide an overview of these incident types. 

Violence and Aggression 

Violence and aggression is the single most reported incident type within the Trust. These incidents 

include cases of physical violence and verbal abuse faced by frontline staff. Reported incidents vary 

during each quarter with a quarter 4 increase expected due to the increased activities witnessed 

during the festive period. The overall high levels of incidents of violence and aggression are 

attributed to the ongoing improvements and cultural changes brought about by improved 

management of incident reporting.  A high level of incidents of violence and aggression against staff 

is in line with the national statistics for ambulance Trusts, which show a steady increase in this area. 

This area of work is under continuous scrutiny and development by the Trust’s Local Security 

Management Specialist (LSMS). 

Manual Handling 

Manual handling has remained the second highest incident type reported by our staff. This is mainly 

due to the environment in which staff work, whilst having to deliver life-saving treatment and care. 

Work in this area continues to develop with changes in equipment and improved information, 

instruction and training. The project to improve the Trust’s bariatric provision (care of obese 

patients) will contribute to helping reduce these types of incidents. Manual handling incidents 

remain the highest cause of legal action against the Trust which has remained a constant trend 

throughout the financial year. 

Slips, Trips and Falls 

This particular incident type is very difficult to control due to environmental factors. However work 

in relation to preventing these types of incidents on Trust premises is ongoing and the focus is now 

upon preventing incidents in other environments which are not within the control of the Trust; this 

may be done via information, instruction and training or the use of personal protective equipment. 

Summary of Serious Incidents  
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A Serious Incident (SI) is an incident that results in a range of outcomes such as unexpected or 

avoidable death, serious harm, permanent harm or abuse. During the period November 1st 2011 to 

March 31st 2012 the Trust has reported two SIs. One SI related to our contact centre and the second 

related to A&E operations. The Trust investigates all SIs fully and ensures that any training needs or 

wider learning which are identified are implemented to reduce the risk of reoccurrence.  

We did not have any SIs which involved data loss or confidentiality breach.   

Countering fraud and corruption 

We are committed to taking all necessary steps to counter fraud and corruption within NEAS and 

have adopted the seven-stage approach developed by NHS Protect.  Our primary aim is to create an 

anti-fraud culture.  Central to this is our Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) who promotes our 

Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy and Raising Concerns at Work Policy during staff induction and 

throughout the year.   

Staff are able to report suspicions of fraud directly to the LCFS, Director of Finance or to the Fraud 

and Corruption Reporting Line.  All allegations of fraud are taken seriously and professionally 

investigated.  The LCFS conducts work on fraud prevention and deterrence as well as proactive 

exercises into areas of high risk.  The Counter Fraud Plan is approved by the Director of Finance and 

the Audit Committee and the Committee also receive regular updates on counter fraud work 

throughout the year. 

Consultations  

We are currently engaging with communities over our proposals to restructure our A&E services 

across the region, as demand continues to rise on our 999 system.The new proposals would mean 

relocating some ambulances across the region to meet current and future demand on services. 

An expanded, non-emergency tier is also being proposed to respond to urgent care patients who are 

not 999 emergencies but still require a level of clinical care during transfers between hospitals or 

transport at the request of GPs. 

The proposal would see an increase of additional staff and ambulances across the North East from 

those currently in post to continue to meet response time targets and improved quality care 

indicators for patients. 

Our objective is to ensure a Paramedic is sent to every 999 patient who needs one; that there are 

more front line Paramedic-crewed A&E vehicles available for life-threatening emergency calls; and 

that we provide a service which allows us to meet the demand from non-emergency patients. 

Occupational health; maintaining a healthy workforce 

The health and wellbeing of our employees is a constant priority for us, and we strive to do all we 

can to maintain and improve it. The Occupational Health department achieved the NHS Public 

Health North East Better Health at Work Award Bronze Award in 2009 & the Gold Award in 2010. 

During the period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012 there has been an increase in the number 

of people seen by the Occupational Health department against the same period from the previous 

year.  

 Occupational Health Department Visits 
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 2009/2010 2010/2011 April 1st -

October 31st 

2011 

November 1st 

2011- March 

31st 2012 

Number of people seen 

within the Occupational 

Health department 

3,803 2,548 

 

3,883 

 

2632 

The total visits for the year 2011/12 have exceeded the previous year’s visits substantially. This is 

due to the increase in promotional activity undertaken by the Trust to make staff aware of health 

promotions, vaccination availability, driver medicals and pre-employment checks to name but a few. 

All staff have been provided with an opportunity to have a flu vaccination during the winter period 

which also vaccinates against the H1N1 virus. The mobile vaccination unit also visited Trust sites 

across our patch to ensure more availability for flu vaccinations.   

Public and patient involvement 

We have engaged with the Local Involvement Networks (LINks) from across the region regularly 

during the period November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012. LINks groups are made up of individual and 

community groups who work together to improve services. Their job is to find out what people like 

and don’t like about local services and then work with the people who plan and run these services to 

make them better. There are 12 LINks within the North East Ambulance Service area, one for each 

local authority in our service area.  

This is an area of more than 3,200 square miles and we have sought to bring the LINks together 

through an ambulance forum to discuss issues which are common to everyone in the North East. The 

forum meets once every two months and has considered the NEAS Quality Account, looked at 

complaints and PALS (Patient Advice and Liaison Service) reports, raised questions on mobility aids 

and hospital discharge and sought assurances around NEAS procedures on safeguarding vulnerable 

people. 

In addition to working with the LINks, we have continued to meet with groups and representatives 

of some of the most rural areas within the Trust in Northumberland and County Durham. In 

partnership with the Primary Care Trusts for both areas, we have held regular community meetings 

to oversee the implementation of our services. We also continue to maintain good working 

relationships with the local authority Overview and Scrutiny Committees (OSC) that cover the NEAS 

area and hold all NHS Trusts to account for the services provided. We are grateful for the time and 

effort that all these organisations have taken to listen to and feedback comments on the work and 

services of the NEAS. 

Sickness absence 

The Trust has worked hard towards reducing sickness absence for staff in all areas of the Trust, and 

promoting health and wellbeing among our workforce. The Trust’s sickness absence for the period 

November 1st 2011 to March 31st 2012 is shown in the table below; 

 November 

2011 

December 

2011 

January 

2012 

February 

2012 

March 2012 

Threshold level of 

sickness absence 

5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 
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Actual level of sickness 

absence 

6.48% 6.35% 6.86% 6.61% 6.32% 

We have set a desired level of sickness absence at 5%, to be achieved by 2014. We have taken many 

measures to contribute to this long-term target during the reporting period,  such as: 

 Developed a new attendance management policy which is more ‘fit for purpose’ for 

managing sickness. 

 Worked with Zeal Solutions, a renowned health and wellbeing consultancy firm, to help 

identify reasons for absence. 

 Extended our Physiomed trial which provides the Trust with quick access to physiotherapy 

solutions.  

 Conducted data cleansing on our GRS (rostering) system and issued best practice guidelines 

to management within the Trust to ensure the correct management information and use of 

GRS. 

 Proposed a new means of fitness testing to ensure staff who are able to work can work. 

 Process-mapped a Rapid Process Improvement Workshop (RPIW) for combatting stress in 

the workplace.  

These  measures have resulted in improvement in our level of staff sickness absence which can be 

seen improving over the last 3 years: 

Sickness Rate % of Trust Total Full Time Equivalent Days 

2009/2010 6.60% 

2010/2011 6.48% 

2011/2012 5.85% 
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Part year accounts 2011/12; 1st November 2011 to 31st March 2012 
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Annual Governance Statement for the part-year November 2011 to March 2012 

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that 

supports the achievement of the NHS foundation trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst 

safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally responsible, in 

accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS 

foundation trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied 

efficiently and effectively.  I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation 

Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 

eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore, only provide 

reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on 

an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, 

aims and objectives of North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the 

likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them 

efficiently, effectively and economically.  The system of internal control has been in place in North 

East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust for the part-year November 2011 to March 2012, and 

up to the date of approval of the Part-Year Report and Part-Year Accounts.   

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK 

The authority to develop and oversee the Trust’s strategic Risk Management arrangements is 

delegated to the Director of Finance.  The Governance and Risk Committee and Quality Committee 

consider non-clinical and clinical risks on behalf of the Board.  The Directors of the Trust have the 

responsibility for leadership in Risk Management for their Directorates.  Trust managers are 

responsible for the management of day-to-day risks of all types within their management structure 

and budget allocation.  They are charged with ensuring that risk assessments are undertaken 

throughout their area of responsibility on a pro-active basis and that remedial action is carried out 

where problems are identified.  

It is the policy of the Trust to provide and maintain, so far as is reasonably practicable, all plant, 

systems of work (including safe use, handling, storage and transport of substances and articles), 

places of work and working conditions, such that they are safe and with minimal risks to employees, 

as well as to non-employees, and to provide such information, instruction and training as is 

necessary for this purpose.   

Risk Management is incorporated in the Trust’s Induction and Essential Annual Training 

Programmes.  The Risk Management Strategy, policies and procedures and responsibilities are also 

set out in the Risk Management File, held on the IT network for future and on-going reference.  

General risk awareness/health and safety training is also provided to all staff on an annual basis 

according to their level of need/responsibility.  

The Trust has representation on the National Ambulance Risk & Safety Forum and various other 

national and regional groups which promote active benchmarking and learning from good practice. 
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THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK 

The arrangements in place to manage the organisations risk include the Trust’s Board Assurance 

Framework.  The Board Assurance Framework identifies the strategic aims and objectives of the 

Trust and its Directors, taking account of the CQC Compliance and Monitoring Framework and the 

requirements under the Essential Standards of Quality and Safety.  The principal risks which may 

impact on the delivery of the objectives and the key controls to manage these risks, have been 

identified.  Action plans to address any gaps in controls have been produced.  A Governance and Risk 

Committee has been established.  Part of the remit of this Committee, which is accountable to the 

Audit Committee and Board of Directors, is to oversee and monitor the implementation of the CQC 

Essential Standards of Quality and Safety, the Board Assurance Framework and the Organisational 

Risk Register. 

The Risk Management framework is set out in the Board approved Risk Management Strategy.  The 

Trust recognises that it is impossible and not always desirable to eliminate all risks and that systems 

of controls should not be so rigid that they stifle innovation and imaginative use of limited 

resources, in order to achieve health benefits for patients. 

The strategy describes how risks are identified, via the system of Risk Registers and an incident 

reporting system and how they are quantified, using a Risk Scoring Matrix.  This allows 

standardisation of risk assessment across the Trust, utilising a common currency.   The strategy also 

requires action plans to be determined and implemented for those risks that are inadequately 

controlled.  The Trust also has a number of associated policies and procedures embedded in the 

organisation including an Incident Reporting Policy, Serious Incident Policy, Complaints Policy and 

Claims Policy. 

Risk Management is embedded within the organisation in a number of ways.  All departments within 

Directorates maintain up to date Risk Registers that are linked to Directors objectives and monitored 

on a regular basis.   

Risks are escalated via Departmental and Directorate Risk Registers to the Organisational Risk 

Register which identifies the major risks to the whole organisation both within year and for the 

foreseeable future.  The highest scoring risks relate to the level of commitment and support from 

internal stakeholders in relation to the Cost Improvement Program and potential industrial relation 

issues. 

Action plans to minimise the possibilities of these risks being realised are co-ordinated via the 

relevant directorate leads and include continuous monitoring via the appropriate group or Board-

level committee. 

Business cases must include a full risk assessment prior to formal approval.   

All Cost Improvement Schemes have processes in place to identify and mitigate risks to quality.  

Management and operational structures are in place to manage the risks that the Trust faces.  All of 

the groups working within the risk management and organisational controls framework are remitted 

to identify and where appropriate escalate all risks emerging from the business transacted.  The 

Groups/Committees report through Committees of the Board in a structured manner ultimately to 

the Board. 



114 
 

The remit of five Committees of the Board cover risk (both clinical and non-clinical) these are:  

 Audit Committee 

 Governance and Risk Committee  

 Quality Committee  

 Workforce and Equality Committee 

 Business Investment and Finance Committee  

All of the Committees are chaired by a Non-Executive Director of the foundation trust.  

The Governance and Risk Committee oversees the creation of appropriate risk assessment systems, 

including a prioritised Risk Management plan and reviews and reports progress against this plan, to 

the Audit Committee and the Board.   

It reviews incident trends from financial / non-financial / non-clinical areas and prepares the Board 

Assurance Framework, for review by the Audit Committee and approval by the Board. 

Clinical Risk is monitored via the Trust’s Quality Committee.  The Trust’s Medical Director chairs the 

Clinical Advisory Group.  Both groups have access to expert professional opinion from specialist 

Medical Advisers and Clinicians.  

Clinical Risk whilst being everyone's responsibility is managed by operational staff and specialist 

managers.  All clinical practices are carried out using the best available clinical evidence base. This 

includes; advice that is given to patients over the telephone and advice and skills performed 

when the paramedic is in a face to face situation.  In the former, the evidence base is largely taken 

from papers published in the UK and for the latter the evidence base is the Joint Royal Colleges 

Ambulance Liaison Committee’s latest Clinical Guideline.  Clinical competence is a matter for the 

Trust's Root Cause Analysis Panel which reviews clinically related complaints, claims and concerns, 

looking for opportunities to learn lessons and protect patients.  

The Quality Committee is authorised by the Board to oversee all activity relating to monitoring the 

quality of patient’s care (i.e. safety, effectiveness and experiences). This includes for example, 

overseeing their involvement in the activities of the Trust as well as learning lessons from patient 

complaints and letters of appreciation.  The Committee also receives reports regarding the outcome 

of patient surveys and reports published by the Trust’s Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS). 

These reports are discussed in detail in the Experience, Complaints, Litigation, Incidents and PALS 

group (ECLIP) which facilitates a thorough and robust discussion of all aspects which could affect the 

quality of the service received by patients.  

The Audit Committee reviews the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of 

integrated governance, risk management and internal control, across the whole of the organisation’s 

activities.  This includes activities that are both clinical and non-clinical. This integrated approach to 

governance supports the Trust in achieving its organisational objectives. 

The Trust manages its information (including information and data security) risks on an ongoing 

basis via the Information Governance Working Group.  The Trust regularly completes the 

Information Governance (IG) Toolkit.  As at 31st March 2012 the Trust scored 84% compliance.     

Between 1st November 2011 and 31st March 2012, there were no Serious Incidents reported for 
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Information Governance.  

The Board Assurance Framework provides the Trust with a comprehensive method for effective 

management of the principal risks to meeting its objectives and links to the Trusts’ Mission 

Statement and Strategic Intentions.  It provides a structure for evidence to support the Annual 

Governance Statement and as a result, simplifies Board reporting and the prioritisation of action 

plans.   

The Board Assurance Framework includes the following key elements: 

 strategic objectives of the Trust by Directorate linked to the relevant individual CQC Essential 

Standards for Quality and Safety 

 risks to achieving the objectives 

 key controls in place to manage the risks 

 assurances for the key controls 

 evidence of the controls and assurance 

 any gaps in control 

 any gaps in assurance 

 action plans to address the control gaps 

The Board Assurance Framework is approved by the Board of Directors at the beginning of the 

financial year.  The Board reviews the Board Assurance Framework mid-way through the year and 

approves the final version at the end of the year. 

There were a limited number of gaps in assurance and / or control in the areas of operations, clinical 

and patient safety, finance and commissioning and plans were put in place to mitigate or eradicate 

the gaps. The gaps in control were not assessed as being significant. 

The foundation trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality 

Commission  

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are 

in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied 

with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments in 

to the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records 

are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations. 

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality, 

diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. 

The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans are in 

place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, as based on 

UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this organisation’s obligations under the Climate 

Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with. 

REVIEW OF ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVE USE OF RESOURCES 

The Board receive and review a monthly Integrated Performance Report (IPR) which draws together 
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the main Risk, Quality, Activity, Performance, Financial and Workforce positions against plan. 

The Foundation Trust’s Improvement Steering Group reviews and monitors the effectiveness of 

performance against the Trust’s Service Improvement and Cost Improvement programmes and as 

part of this process, the Trust participates in benchmarking in key front-line and back-office metrics 

compared with other similar organisations and uses this information to inform its cost improvement 

programmes. 

The foundation trust has the lowest reference cost and cost per incident of all English Ambulance 

Trust’s which provides assurance in its economical use of resources. 

The remit of the Foundation Trust Board committees includes ensuring the effective use of 

resources and responsibility for investigating specific areas contributing to the Integrated 

Performance Report, for example, the Quality Committee reviews the progress against Ambulance 

Quality Indicators whilst the Business Investment and Finance Committee reviews the monthly 

financial reports. 

The Foundation Trust has developed Service Line reporting for its key Business services and is 

extending the scope of its review from finance and activity information to include Quality, 

Performance and Workforce measures of effectiveness by Service Line. 

Internal Audit as part of its annual plan includes audits of the major areas of resource utilisation.  

ANNUAL QUALITY REPORT 

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality 

Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year.  

Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of annual 

Quality Reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual 

Reporting Manual. 

Overall responsibility for production of the foundation trust’s Annual Quality Report rests with the 

Directorate of Strategy and Business Development working closely with the Clinical Care and Patient 

Safety Directorate to identify indicators for patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient 

experience to measure progress and improvement throughout the financial year. 

The Trust has taken robust steps to assure the Board that the Quality Report presents a balanced 

view and that there are appropriate controls in place to ensure the accuracy of data. These steps 

include: 

Governance and leadership; the quality priorities within the report have been monitored and 

presented at the Quality Committee and Governance and Risk Committee throughout the year. A 

summary report and the minutes of these meetings are presented to the Board of Directors on a 

quarterly basis. The Board also receives a bi-annual update on progress against the priorities. The 

trust has regularly reported progress to Local Involvement Networks (LINks) and has shared progress 

with local Overview and Scrutiny Committees. The trust’s Council of Governors and staff have been 

involved in the development of quality priorities for the Quality Report and they have received 

progress updates against the priorities on a quarterly basis. The trust has maintained an open 

approach to sharing data and progress with stakeholders regarding the Quality Report. The Trust 

Audit Committee has a position of oversight and challenge on the Quality Account, and receives a 

checklist of mandatory content from the trust Monitoring and Compliance Officer. This checklist is 



117 
 

cross-referenced with page numbers to ensure all necessary content is included. A summary report 

and minutes of the Audit Committee are then sent to the Board of Directors as assurance. 

 

Policies; The trust maintains a Data Quality Log where any data quality issues are monitored. If data 

quality issues are discovered the data owner is responsible for making the necessary improvements 

to the data.  All data owners and staff have access to all trust policies via the quality management 

system. For example, the End of Life Care (EOLC) Transport Policy outlines trust’s requirements in 

relation to delivering services to patients within this group, and supports delivery of the end of life 

care priority.  

 

Systems and processes; The trust has robust processes around data quality. The data owner 

provides the data, which is then checked by the Performance team before being entered into the 

Quality Account dashboard and later being shared either internally or externally. Quality Report data 

is pulled from systems such as the Ulysses Safeguard system, or directly from our Contact Centre 

CAD system. Data is reviewed when presented at the Quality Committee and any queries are fed 

back to the data owner to rectify or justify. Our Informatics team that produce much of the data for 

the Quality Account has a daily data quality report which it submits to our emergency Contact 

Centre for review. This report highlights any potential issues and offers the opportunity for 

correcting data, as well as highlighting any general problems with certain procedures. Informatics 

also log any issues that become apparent whilst reporting, and these are raised with the data owner 

and reviewed at the data quality assurance group. The data quality assurance group is a newly 

formed working group whose purpose is to provide assurances to the Information Governance 

Working Group, through its direct reporting arrangements and ensure the Trust’s compliance with 

legislative, mandatory and regulatory requirements in terms of the Group’s scope. 

 

People and skills; Data owners providing information for the Quality Report are the members of 

staff with expertise in that particular area. For example, figures regarding safeguarding referrals are 

taken from the Ulysses Safeguard system and checked by our Safeguarding Manager before being 

supplied to the Performance team. The Performance team then reviews all data from an objective 

standpoint to ensure the data is concurrent with forecasts or established baselines. Progress against 

the quality priorities is then communicated back to staff across the trust to ensure they are aware of 

best practice. This is done through articles in the trust’s regular magazine as well as weekly staff 

email, and the trust’s performance wall-board in our headquarters building. When agreeing 

priorities to be included in the Quality Report the trust ensures that not only are staff involved, but 

members of the public through the LINks forums, and our Council of Governors. This ensures a 

balanced approach, where different opinions are represented. We established a Quality Account 

staff working group where staff with clinical and non-clinical skills had input into our priority 

process. They helped us shortlist our priorities, and then the relevant staff lead for each shortlisted 

priority presented in detail to the staff and governor working groups once the shortlist was agreed. 

The shortlist, and later the final list of priorities, was then presented to the Board of Directors to get 

their feedback. 

 

Data use and reporting; Data is reported to internal Board-level committees only after it has been 

checked first by the data owner, and then by the Performance team. The Board-level committees 
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are then given the opportunity to scrutinise the data, before it is reported externally to LINks groups 

and Overview and Scrutiny Committees. Both of these external groups have the opportunity to 

question anything about the data and demand rationale for data. They are also given the 

opportunity to provide feedback through our Quality Account survey, as well as direct and open 

contact with the Quality Account author. We also provide these groups with the final version of the 

Quality Account before it is published so they have an opportunity to feedback on any element of 

the document, and their feedback statements are included in the final Quality Account.  

 

All of this input ensures a balanced view is presented in the final Quality Account document, with 

sufficient controls to ensure accuracy of data. 

 

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 

control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of 

internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS 

foundation trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control 

framework.  I have drawn on the content of the quality report attached to this annual report and 

other performance information available to me.   My review is also informed by comments made by 

the external auditors in their management letter and other reports.  I have been advised on the 

implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the 

Board, the Audit Committee and Governance and Risk Committee and a plan to address weaknesses 

and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

Brief summaries of the main responsibilities of the above Committees are outlined below: 

The Board 

The Chief Executive and Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the Trust’s Risk 

Management programme.  

It is the Trust Board that endorses and resources all formalised Risk Management plans. 

The Audit Committee’s remit includes:- 

To act independently from the Executive, to provide assurance to the Board, based on a 

challenge of evidence and assurance obtained, that the interests of the Trust are properly 

protected in relation to financial reporting and internal control.   

To keep under review the effectiveness of the system of internal control; that is the systems 

established to identify, assess, manage and monitor risks both financial and otherwise, and to 

ensure the Trust complies with all aspects of the law, relevant regulation and good practice. 

To report to the Board on any matters in respect of which the Committee considers that action 

or improvement is needed, and to make recommendations as to the steps to be taken. 

The Governance and Risk Committee’s remit includes:- 

To provide the Board with an objective review of, and assurances, in relation to: - 

 The sharp focus on all aspects of risk governance, Risk Management frameworks and 

promotion of behaviours and cultures that drive approaches to Risk Management. 
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 The systems of internal control in relation to governance and Risk Management, in that 

these are fit for purpose, adequately resourced and underpin our performance and 

reputation. 

 The overall risk governance process in that it gives clear, explicit and dedicated focus to 

current and forward-looking aspects of risk exposure. 

 Compliance with law, best practice governance and regulatory standards. 

The Quality Committee’s remit includes:- 

To provide the Board with an independent and objective review of, and assurances, in relation 

to: 

 The focus on all aspects of quality, specifically: clinical effectiveness, patient experience 

and patient safety; monitoring compliance against the essential standards of quality 

and safety set out in the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission 

 Probity, quality improvement and patient safety issues, ensuring these are central 

components of all the activities of the Trust 

 Governance processes for driving and monitoring the delivery of high quality, clinically 

safe, patient-centred care  

 Performance against internal and external quality and clinical improvement targets, and 

directing management on actions to be taken on sub-standard performance 

 The overarching Clinical Governance, Quality & Patient Safety Strategy 

 To provide the Board with assurance on safeguarding quality and to provide 

appropriate scrutiny to clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient experience. 

The Workforce and Equality Committee’s remit includes:- 

To provide the Board with an objective review of, and assurances, in relation to: 

 The design, development and implementation of a Workforce Strategy that supports our 

vision and continues to maximise the potential of our workforce to deliver the highest 

quality of care to patients. 

 Effective management and leadership development. 

 The quality and delivery of workforce plans. 

 Organisational development 

 Health and wellbeing of staff. 

 Equality and diversity. 

 Compliance with employment legislation and the standards of relevant external 

professional bodies. 

The Business Investment and Finance Committee’s remit includes:- 

To provide the Board with an objective review of, and assurances, in relation to: - 



120 
 

 Growth proposals, ensuring their alignment with Board approved corporate strategy. 

 Governance processes for all major investments and divestments. 

 Business cases referred to it by the Capital Monitoring Group requiring major capital 

investment. 

 Finance, contracting and commissioning issues; presenting reports and 

recommendations in relation to ensuring we maintain cash liquidity and are an effective 

going concern. 

 Compliance with legislative, mandatory and regulatory requirements in terms of the 

Committee’s scope. 

Executive Managers within the organisation who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the system of internal control provide me with assurance.  

The Board Assurance Framework itself provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls 

that manage the risks to the organisation achieving its principal objectives have been reviewed. 

My review is also informed by external assessments and achievements between 1st November 2011 

and 31st March 2012 as follows:- 

 Internal Audit reports 

 Monthly performance reports covering all Directorates in the form of an Integrated 

Performance Report. 

 External Audit reports including the Value for Money conclusion, Part-Year Audit Letter, Part-

Year Governance Report 

 External Quality Audits and Continuous Certification to ISO 9001:2000 Standards  

 Monthly Quality Risk Profile update 

 Achievement of Level 1 NHSLA Risk Management Standards for Ambulance Trusts.  

CONCLUSION 

No significant internal control issues have been identified during the period.  

 

Simon Featherstone                                                         

Chief Executive 

29th May, 2012 
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FOREWARD TO THE ACCOUNTS 

On the 1st November, 2011 the Trust was successful in its application to become a Foundation Trust. 

These accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2012 have been prepared by the North East 

Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust under paragraphs 24 and 25 of schedule 7 to the National 

Health Service Act 2006 and in accordance with directions given by Monitor, the Independent 

Regulator of Foundation Trusts and have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

 

Simon Featherstone 

Chief Executive 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 

1ST NOVEMBER 2011 TO 31 MARCH 2012 

   

Part Year End 

 

   

2011-12 

 

 

NOTE 

 

£000 

 

     Operating Income from continuing operations 2 

 

45,248 

 Operating expenses from continuing operations 3 

 

(44,240) 

 Operating surplus 

  

1,008 

 

     Finance costs: 

    Finance income 8 

 

13 

 Finance expenses 9 

 

(46) 

 Public dividend capital dividends payable 

  

(482) 

 Net Finance Costs 

  

(515) 

 

     Surplus from continuing operations 

  

493 

 

     Other comprehensive income 

    Gains on revaluations 

  

391 

 Total comprehensive income for the period 

  

884 

 

     

     The notes on pages 17 to 40 form part of these accounts. 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 

 31 MARCH 2012 

  

31 March 

2012  

31 October 

2011  

 

NOTE £000 

 

£000 

 Non-current assets 

     Property, plant and equipment 12 41,298 

 

44,530 

 Intangible assets 11 125 

 

91 

 Trade and other receivables 22 701 

 

741 

 Total non-current assets 

 

42,124 

 

45,362 

  

Current assets 

     Inventories 21 811 

 

853 

 Trade and other receivables 22 5,311 

 

3,644 

 Cash and cash equivalents 25 9,576 

 

6,802 

 Non-current assets held for sale 18 1,073 

 

435 

 Total current assets 

 

16,771 

 

11,734 

 

      Total assets 

 

58,895 

 

57,096 

 

      Current liabilities 

     Trade and other payables 26 (5,298) 

 

(3,937) 

 Borrowings 27 (346) 

 

(454) 

 Provisions 31 (416) 

 

(429) 

 Other liabilities 

 

0 

 

(28) 

 Total current liabilities 

 

(6,060) 

 

(4,848) 

 

    

  

 Net current assets/(liabilities) 

 

10,711 

 

6,886 

 

      Total assets less current liabilities 

 

52,835 

 

52,248 

 

      Non-current liabilities 

     Borrowings 27 (5,852) 

 

(6,038) 

 Trade and other payables 26 (930) 

 

(928) 

 Provisions 31 (2,182) 

 

(2,295) 

 Total non-current liabilities 

 

(8,964) 

 

(9,261) 

 

      Total assets employed 

 

43,871 

 

42,987 

 

      Financed by taxpayers' equity: 

     Public dividend capital 

 

34,617 

 

34,617 

 Retained earnings 

 

4,814 

 

3,965 

 Revaluation reserve 33 4,440 

 

4,405 

 Total taxpayers' equity 

 

43,871 

 

42,987 
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The financial statements on pages 13 to 40 were approved by the Board on 29th 

May, 2012 and signed on its behalf by:  

      

Signed: …              

………………………………(Chief Executive) 

 

29th May, 

2012 

 
 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY 

 FOR THE PERIOD 1ST 

NOVEMBER 2011 - 31ST MARCH 

2012 

       Public dividend 

capital (PDC) 

Retained 

earnings 

Revaluation 

reserve 

Total 

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 

2011-12 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 31 October 2011 as 

previously stated 

 

34,617 3,965 4,405 42,987 

Transfers between reserves - 

Prior Period Adjustment 

 

0 0 0 0 

Restated balance as at 1 April 

2011 

 34,617 3,965 4,405 42,987 

     

 Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 

2010-11: 

    

 Total comprehensive income for 

the year: 

    

 Retained surplus for the year   493  493 

Revaluations - property, plant 

and equipment 

   391 391 

Asset disposals   161 (161) 0 

Other reserves movements   195 (195) 0 

Balance at 31 March 2012 

 

34,617 4,814 4,440 43,871 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 

31 MARCH 2012 

  

Part Year 

  

2011-12 

  

£000 

Cash flows from operating activities 

  Operating surplus 

 

1,008 

 

  Non-cash income and expense 

  Depreciation and amortisation 

 

3,099 

Impairments and reversals 

 

616 

Dividends accrued and not paid or received 

 

(22) 

Decrease in inventories 

 

42 

Increase in trade and other receivables 

 

(1,667) 

Increase in trade and other payables 

 

1,547 

Decrease in other liabilities 

 

(10) 

Decrease in provisions 

 

(126) 

Net cash inflow from operating activities 

 

4,487 

   Cash flows from investing activities 

  Interest received 

 

13 

(Payments) for property, plant and equipment 

 

(1,495) 

Proceeds from disposal of plant, property and equipment 

 

516 

(Payments) for intangible assets 

 

0 

Dividends paid 

 

(502) 

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities 

 

(1,468) 

Net cash inflow before financing 

 

3,019 

   Cash flows from financing activities 

  Interest paid 

 

(118) 

Capital element of finance leases and PFI 

 

(127) 

Net cash (outflow) from financing 

 

(245) 

  

  

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

 

2,774 

Cash (and) cash equivalents (and bank overdrafts) at the beginning of the 

financial period 

 

6,802 

Cash (and) cash equivalents at the end of the financial period 

 

9,576 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS  

1. Accounting Policies 

The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS Foundation 

Trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trusts Annual Reporting 

Manual (ARM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial 

statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2011-12 NHS Foundation Trusts ARM 

issued by Monitor, the independent regulator of Foundation Trusts.  The accounting policies 

contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that 

they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is 

advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the NHS Foundation Trusts ARM 

permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most 

appropriate to the particular circumstances of the Foundation Trust for the purpose of giving a 

true and fair view has been selected.  The particular policies adopted by the Foundation Trust 

are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered 

material in relation to the accounts.   

1.1. Accounting convention 

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to 

account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories 

and certain financial assets and financial liabilities. 

1.2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Foundation Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 

relevant.  Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying 

assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 

the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the 

period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 

periods. 

1.2.1  Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) 

that management has made in the process of applying the Foundation Trust’s accounting 

policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements. 

The critical judgements made by the Foundation Trust’s management relate to: 

- the accounting impact of the valuation of assets as described in Note 14. 

- the judgement around the classification of operating leases as described in Note 5.  

1.2.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of 

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of 

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
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next financial year:- 

Income has been deferred where is believed that funds provided were to roll over into the 

following year.   

1.3. Revenue 

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, 

performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.  The 

main source of revenue for the Foundation Trust is from commissioners for healthcare 

services.  

 

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, 

that income is deferred. 

 

The Foundation Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, 

designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals to whom personal injury 

compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer.  The Foundation Trust 

recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and 

Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a compensation 

claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the 

injured individual, less a provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful 

debts. 

 

1.4. Employee Benefits 

1.4.1 Short-term employee benefits 

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which 

the service is received from employees.  The cost of leave earned but not taken by 

employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent 

that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.  

 

1.4.2 Retirement benefit costs 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  

The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General 

Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England 

and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to 

identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is 

accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of 

participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for 

the accounting period.   

 

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are 

not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged 

to expenditure at the time the Foundation Trust commits itself to the retirement, 

regardless of the method of payment. 

 

1.5. Other Expenses 
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Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or 

services have been received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration 

payable. 

 

1.6. Property, plant and equipment 

 

1.6.1 Recognition 

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if: 

 it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes; 

 it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be 

supplied to, the Foundation Trust; 

 it is expected to be used for more than one financial year; 

  the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and 

 the item has cost of at least £5,000; or 

 Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a 

cost of more than £250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had 

broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal 

dates and are under single managerial control; or 

 Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or 

unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost. 

 

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with 

significantly different asset lives, the components are treated as separate assets and 

depreciated over their own useful economic lives. 

 

1.6.2 Valuation 

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost 

directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location 

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 

management.  All assets are measured subsequently at fair value. 

 

Land and buildings used for the Foundation Trust’s services or for administrative purposes 

are stated in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair 

value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses.  Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that 

carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined at the 

end of the reporting period.  Fair values are determined as follows: 

 Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use 

 Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost 

  

Until 31 March 2008, the depreciated replacement cost of specialised buildings has been 

estimated for an exact replacement of the asset in its present location.  HM Treasury has 

adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern 

equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of the service being 
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provided, an alternative site can be valued.   

 

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried 

at cost, less any impairment loss.  Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, 

which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair 

value.  Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use. 

 

Until 31 March 2008, fixtures and equipment were carried at replacement cost, as assessed 

by indexation and depreciation of historic cost.  From 1 April 2008 indexation has ceased.  

The carrying value of existing assets at that date will be written off over their remaining 

useful lives and new fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this 

is not considered to be materially different from fair value. 

 

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it 

reverses an impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which 

case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there.  A 

revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential 

is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there 

is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  Impairment losses 

that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. 

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive 

income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

 

1.6.3 Subsequent expenditure 

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the 

directly attributable cost is capitalised.  Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset 

to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of 

the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses. 

 

1.7. Intangible assets 

1.7.1 Recognition 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of 

sale separately from the rest of the Foundation Trust’s business or which arise from 

contractual or other legal rights.  They are recognised only when it is probable that future 

economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Foundation Trust; 

where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5000. 

 

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.  Software that is 

integral to the operating of hardware, for example an operating system, is capitalised as 

part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not integral to 

the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible 

asset.  Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in 

the period in which it is incurred.  Internally-generated assets are recognised if, and only if, 

all of the following have been demonstrated: 

 the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for 
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use 

 the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it 

 the ability to sell or use the intangible asset 

 the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential 

 the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the 

intangible asset and sell or use it 

 the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its 

development 

 

1.7.2 Measurement 

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the 

expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria above are initially met.  Where no 

internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in 

the period in which it is incurred. 

 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an 

active market, or, where no active market exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern 

equivalent assets basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value.  

Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of 

increases in development costs and technological advances.   

 

1.8. Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated. 

  

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of 

property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, 

over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic 

benefits or service potential of the assets.  The estimated useful life of an asset is the period 

over which the Foundation Trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential 

from the asset. This is specific to the Foundation Trust and may be shorter than the physical 

life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year 

end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis.  Assets held under 

finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives  

  

At each reporting period end, the Foundation Trust checks whether there is any indication 

that any of its tangible or intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If 

there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated 

to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.  Intangible assets not yet 

available for use are tested for impairment annually.   

  

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service 

potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent 

that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.  

Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken 
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to expenditure. This is a change in accounting policy from previous years where all 

impairments were taken to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a balance was held 

for that asset and thereafter to expenditure.  Where an impairment loss subsequently 

reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the 

recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had there 

been no initial impairment loss.  The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to 

expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the 

revaluation reserve. 

 

1.9. Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 

principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  This condition is 

regarded as met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale 

in its present condition and management is committed to the sale, which is expected to 

qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.  

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying 

amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Fair value is open market value including 

alternative uses. 

  

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds 

and the carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  On 

disposal, the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained 

earnings. 

 

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for 

recognition as held for sale.  Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic 

life is adjusted.  The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished. 

 

1.10. Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership are transferred to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

 

1.10.1 The Foundation Trust as lessee 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the 

inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 

payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease payments 

are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to 

achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance 

charges are recognised in calculating the Foundation Trust’s surplus/deficit. 

  

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 

lease term.  Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a 

reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

  

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
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Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated 

and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases.  

 

1.10.2 The Foundation Trust as lessor 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount 

of the Foundation Trust’s net investment in the leases.  Finance lease income is allocated to 

accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Foundation 

Trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

  

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of 

the lease.  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are 

added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term. 

 

1.11. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the weighted 

average formula.  This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to 

the high turnover of stocks.   

 

1.12. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty 

on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 

months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known 

amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.   

  

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts 

that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Foundation Trust’s cash 

management. 

 

1.13. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Foundation Trust has a present legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Foundation Trust will be 

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation.  The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure 

required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the 

risks and uncertainties.  Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to 

settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM 

Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms  (Pension Liabilities e.g. Injury Benefits and 

Early Retirements are discounted at [2.9%, 2.8% from 31 March 2012]). 

  

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 

that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 

reliably. 
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Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a 

provision.  An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Foundation Trust has a 

contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract 

exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. 

  

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Foundation Trust has developed a detailed 

formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it 

will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main 

features to those affected by it.  The measurement of a restructuring provision includes 

only the direct expenditures arsing from the restructuring, which are those amounts that 

are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities 

of the entity. 

 

1.14. Clinical negligence costs 

The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the 

Foundation Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return settles all 

clinical negligence claims.  The contribution is charged to expenditure.  Although the NHSLA 

is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with 

the Foundation Trust.  The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA 

on behalf of the Foundation Trust is disclosed at note 31.  

  

1.15. Non-clinical risk pooling 

The Foundation Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to 

Third Parties Scheme.  Both are risk pooling schemes under which the Foundation Trust 

pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives 

assistance with the costs of claims arising.  The annual membership contributions, and any 

excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and 

when they become due. 

 

1.16. Contingencies 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Foundation Trust, or a present 

obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required 

to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently 

reliably.  A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.  

  

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will 

be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the Foundation Trust.  A contingent asset is disclosed 

where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.   

  

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present 

value. 
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1.17. Financial assets 

Financial assets are recognised when the Foundation Trust becomes party to the financial 

instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have 

been delivered.  Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired 

or the asset has been transferred. 

  

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.   

  

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss; held to maturity investments; available for sale financial assets, and 

loans and receivables.  The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the 

financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. 

  

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments which are not quoted in an active market.  After initial recognition, they are 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

 

1.18. Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the 

Foundation Trust becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument 

or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received.  Financial 

liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has 

been paid or has expired. 

  

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost.  Otherwise, financial 

liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. 

 

1.19. Value Added Tax 

Most of the activities of the Foundation Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, 

output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable.  Irrecoverable VAT 

is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost 

of fixed assets.  Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are 

stated net of VAT. 

 

1.20. Foreign Currencies 

The Foundation Trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling.  

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange 

rate ruling on the dates of the transactions.  At the end of the reporting period, monetary 

items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 

March.  Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are recognised in the 

Foundation Trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise. 
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1.21. Third party assets 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not 

recognised in the accounts since the Foundation Trust has no beneficial interest in them.  

The Trust holds no third party assets. 

 

1.22. Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend 

Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS Foundation Trust.  At any 

time the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the 

Foundation Trust.  PDC is recorded at the value received.  As PDC is issued under legislation 

rather than under contract, it is not treated as an equity financial instrument. 

  

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Foundation Trust, is payable 

to the Department of Health as public dividend capital dividend.  The charge is calculated at 

the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all 

assets less liabilities, except for donated assets and cash balances with the Government 

Banking Services.  The average carrying amount of assets is calculated as a simple average 

of opening and closing relevant net assets. 

 

1.23. Losses and Special Payments 

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when 

it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation.  By their nature they are items 

that ideally should not arise.  They are therefore subject to special control procedures 

compared with the generality of payments.  They are divided into different categories, which 

govern the way that individual cases are handled. 

  

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure 

on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance 

cover had NHS Foundation Trusts not been bearing their own risks (with insurance 

premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure). 

 

1.24. Research and Development 

Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is 

incurred, except insofar as development expenditure relates to a clearly defined project 

and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured.  Expenditure so deferred is 

limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit from the 

project. It should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on 

the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis. 

 

1.25. Government Grant Reserve and Donated Asset Reserve 

The Treasury FReM for 2011-12 changed the accounting treatment for the funding elements 

of capital non-exchange transactions (i.e. government grants, donations and lottery grants). 
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This reflects an interpretation of IAS 20 and SIC 10 set out in the Treasury FReM paras 6.2.69 

et seq. 

The main change under re-statement was the requirement to "clear out" the Government 

Grant reserve and Donated Asset reserve balances to the General Fund or I&E reserve. There 

will however be revenue transactions to adjust, particularly where grants and donations 

have been received in 2010-11 and so need to be accounted for as income receipts. For 

NEAS this resulted in the Prior Period Adjustment in the part year accounts 1st April 2011 to 

31st October 2012. 

 

1.26. Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 

The IASB has issued amendments to accounting standard which have not yet been formally 

adopted as follows:-  

IFRS 7 & 9 Financial Instruments; IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; IFRS 11 Joint 

Arrangements; IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities; IFRS 13 Fair Value 

Measurement; IAS 12 Income Tax Amendment; IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, 

on other comprehensive income; IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements; IAS 28 Associates 

and Joint Ventures. 

Treasury has granted the NHS a divergence from the consolidation requirements of IAS 27 in 

respect of NHS charitable funds, the Charity is a subsidiary because of corporate trustees.  

Any consolidation would not materially impact the accounts. 

2.1   Operating Income (by classification) Part Year 

 

Part Year 

 

2011-12 

 

2011-12 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

Total 

 

Business with FT's 

Income from activities 

     A&E Income 29,660  

    PTS Income 9,629  

 

489 

  Other Income 4,386  

 

10 

Sub Total Income from activities 43,675  

 

499 

    Other operating income 

   Research and Development 112 

 

0 

Education and Training 347 

 

3 

Non patient care services to other bodies 589 

 

0 

Other  400 

 

2 

Rental revenue from finance leases 4 

 

0 

Rental revenue from operating leases 38 

 

0 

Reversal of impairments to property plant and equipment 83 

 

0 

Sub Total Other operating income 1,573 

 

5 

    Total Operating Income 45,248 

 

504 
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   2.2 Private Patient Income 

   
    The Trust had no private patient income during the reporting period. 

  
    2.3 Operating Lease Income Part Year 

  

 

2011-12 

  

 

£000 

  

    Rents recognised as income in the period 27 

  

 

27 

  

    Future minimum lease payments due 

      on leases of buildings expiring 66 

      - not later than one year 264 

      - later than one year and not later than five years 36 

      - later than five years 366 

   

 

 

2.4   Revenue from patient care activities 

 

 

Part Year 

 

2011-12 

 

Total 

 £000 

 

 Strategic health authorities 140  

NHS trusts 217  

Primary care trusts 42,620  

Foundation trusts 499  

Local authorities 0  

Department of Health 0  

NHS other 0  

Non-NHS:      Injury costs recovery 199  

                     Other 0  

 

43,675  

 

 

 

3.  Operating expenses 

 

 

 

Year End 

2011-12 

 

£000  
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4.1 Employee expenses Part Year 

 

2011-12 

 

Total 

 

Permanent

ly 

employed 

 

Other 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

      

Salaries and wages 

(25,11

3) 

 

(25,113) 

 

0 

Social security costs (1,926) 

 

(1,926) 

 

0 

Pension cost - defined contribution plans Employers 

contributions to NHS Pensions (2,847) 

 

(2,847) 

 

0 

  Services from foundation trusts (78) 

Services from trusts (33) 

Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies (264) 

Employee expenses - Executive directors (349) 

Employee expenses - Non-executive directors (26) 

Employee expenses - Staff (29,678) 

Drug costs (128) 

Supplies and services - clinical (161) 

Supplies and services - general (226) 

Consultancy services (333) 

Establishment (1,249) 

Transport (3,408) 

Premises (1,968) 

Inventories write down 16 

Inventories consumed (765) 

Depreciation  (3,081) 

Amortisation (18) 

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment (616) 

Audit fees - statutory audit (67) 

Clinical negligence (114) 

Research and development (29) 

Education and Training (798) 

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (89) 

Legal fees (149) 

Redundancy (54) 

Hospitality (2) 

Publishing (14) 

Insurance (343) 

Losses and ex-gratia payments (191) 

Other (25) 

 

(44,240) 
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Pension costs - other contributions 0 

 

0 

 

0 

Termination benefits (54) 

 

(54) 

 

0 

Agency/contract staff (303) 

 

0 

 

(303) 

Employee benefits expense 

(30,24

3) 

 

(29,940) 

 

(303) 

      less income in respect of salaries and wages where netted 

off expenditure (128) 

 

(128) 

 

0 

less income in respect of social security where netted off 

expenditure (17) 

 

(17) 

 

0 

less income in respect of pensions where netted off 

expenditure (17) 

 

(17) 

 

0 

Total Income where netted off expenditure (162) 

 

(162) 

 

0 

Of the total above: 

     Charged to capital 0 

 

0 

 

0 

Employee benefits charged to revenue 

(30,08

1) 

 

(29,778) 

 

(303) 

 

(30,24

3)   (29,940)   (303) 

 

 

     4.2 Average number of people employed Part Year 

 

2011-12 

 

Total 

 

Permanent

ly 

employed 

 

Other 

 

Numbe

r 

 

Number 

 

Numb

er 

      Medical and dental 0 

 

0 

 

0 

Ambulance staff 1,680 

 

1,657 

 

23 

Administration and estates 259 

 

253 

 

6 

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 62 

 

62 

 

0 

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 26 

 

26 

 

0 

Other 5 

 

5 

 

0 

Total 2,032 

 

2,003 

 

29 

 

 

     4.3 Employee Benefits 

     There were no employee benefits during the period 

     

      4.4 Early Retirements due to ill-health 

     There were 7 early retirements due to ill-health at a cost 

of £535k 
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      4.5 Analysis of termination benefits 

     There was one case at a cost of £54K. 
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4.6 Pension Costs 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  Details 

of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at 

www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers 

NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of 

State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable 

NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the 

scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of 

participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the 

accounting period. 

 

The scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) 

and an accounting valuation every year.  An outline of these follows: 

 

a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation 

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under 

the scheme (taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the 

contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The last such valuation, which 

determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2004 and covered the 

period from 1 April 1999 to that date. The conclusion from the 2004 valuation was that the 

scheme had accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3 billion against the notional assets as at 31 

March 2004. 

In order to defray the costs of benefits, employers pay contributions at 14% of pensionable pay 

and most employees had up to April 2008 paid 6%, with manual staff paying 5% 

Following the full actuarial review by the Government Actuary undertaken as at 31 March 2004, 

and after consideration of changes to the NHS Pension Scheme taking effect from 1 April 2008, 

his Valuation report recommended that employer contributions could continue at the existing 

rate of 14% of pensionable pay, from 1 April 2008, following the introduction of employee 

contributions on a tiered scale from 5% up to 8.5% of their pensionable pay depending on total 

earnings. 

On advice from the scheme actuary, scheme contributions may be varied from time to time to 

reflect changes in the scheme’s liabilities. 

b) Accounting valuation 

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of 

the reporting period by updating the results of the full actuarial valuation. 

Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member data-set 

is provided to the scheme actuary. At this point the assumptions regarding the composition of 

the scheme membership are updated to allow the scheme liability to be valued.  

The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2011, is based on detailed membership data 

as at 31 March 2008 (the latest midpoint) updated to 31 March 2011 with summary global 

member and accounting data. 

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, 



144 
 

which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account, 

published annually.  These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website.  Copies can also 

be obtained from The Stationery Office. 

c) Scheme provisions  

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an 

illustrative guide only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the 

specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be obtained: 

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 

1995 section and of the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 

1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are 

practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total 

pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service. 

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an 

additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new 

provision is known as “pension commutation”. 

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 

1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the 

previous calendar year. 

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are 

permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity.  A death 

gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual 

pension for death after retirement is payable. 

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not 

funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the 

statement of comprehensive income at the time the Trust commits itself to the retirement, 

regardless of the method of payment. 

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase 

AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary 

Contributions (FSAVC) providers. 

5. Accounting Policies 

 

5.1 As lessee 

 North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust has 3 main operating lease liabilities, 

namely Land, Buildings and Vehicles.        

Land & Buildings include Ambulance stations and office buildings.    

Vehicle leasing exclude A&E vehicles which are purchased outright (future vehicle lease 

payments are shown in the "Other" category below). 

The future lease payments for land relate to the 10 Finance Leases which are disclosed in 

Note 36. 
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The categorisation of land as an operating lease was reviewed during 2010-11 with no 

change in classification.  

Contingent rent relates to Land & Buildings only and reflects increases in rent that were 

unknown at the inception of the lease and also include finance lease rental increases.  

Payments recognised as an expense 

      

Part 

Year 

       

2011-12 

       

£000 

        Minimum lease payments 

      

(482) 

Contingent rents 

      

(159) 

Less sub-lease payments received 

      

13 

       

(628) 

 

5.2 Arrangements 

 

Part Year 2011-12 

        Total future minimum lease payments Buildings 

 

Land 

 

Other 

 

Total 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

Payable: 

       Not later than one year 283 

 

116 

 

753 

 

1,152 

Between one and five years 775 

 

421 

 

410 

 

1,606 

After 5 years 1,300 

 

724 

 

0 

 

2,024 

Total 2,358 

 

1,261 

 

1,163 

 

4,782 

 

An ex-control building has been sublet at £31k per annum until 8th Mar 2016    

 

5.3 Limitation on Auditors Liability 

 There was no limitation on auditors liability for the period.  

5.4 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 

There was no interest payable during the period.  

5.5 Auditors Remuneration 

 There was no additional auditor remuneration other than for the statutory accounts.  

6. Discounted operation 

There were no discontinued operations for the period.   

7. Corporation Tax 

Corporation tax was not due in the period. 
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8.  Finance Income Period End 

 

2011-12 

 

£000 

Interest revenue: 

 Bank accounts 13 

Total 13 

 
 

 

9.  Finance costs Period End 

 

2011-12 

 

£000 

  Interest on obligations under finance leases (46) 

Total interest expense (46) 

   

  

10.   Impairments 

 

 

Period End 

 

2011-12 

 

Property, plant and equipment 

 

£000 

  Changes in market price (616) 

Reversal of impairment 83 

Total (533) 

      

 

 

31 March 2012 
 

31 October 2011 

 

£000 

 

£000 

    11.  Intangible assets 

   

 

Computer  

 

Computer  

 

software - 

 

software - 

1st April to 31st October 2011 internally 

 

internally 

 

generated 

 

generated 
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£000 

 

£000 

    Gross cost at November 2011 230 

 

191 

   Additions purchased  52 

 

32 

   Additions internally generated 0 

 

0 

   Additions donated 0 

 

0 

   Additions government granted  0 

 

0 

   Reclassifications 0 

 

7 

Gross cost at 31 March 2012 282 

 

230 

    Amortisation at  November 2011 139 

 

118 

Charged during the year  18 

 

21 

Amortisation at 31 March 2012 157 

 

139 

    Net book value 

   Purchased 125 

 

91 

Total at 31 March 2012 125 

 

91 
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12.1. Property, plant and equipment 
               

Part Year 2011-12 

Land  

 

Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings 

 

Assets 
under 

construct 
and poa 

 

Plant and 
machinery  

 

Transport 
equipment  

 

Information 
technology  

 

Furniture 
& fittings  

 

Total 

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

                Cost or valuation at 1st November 2011 3,536 
 

19,776 
 

620 
 

8,535 
 

28,302 
 

6,358 
 

548 
 

67,675 
Additions purchased  0 

 
0 

 
856 

 
205 

 
0 

 
170 

 
0 

 
1,231 

Additions donated  0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
Additions government granted  0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Reclassifications 0 
 

699 
 

(975) 
 

0 
 

276 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
Reclassified as held for sale (408) 

 
(665) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(1,073) 

Disposals 0 
 

(175) 
 

0 
 

(1,138) 
 

(1,348) 
 

0 
 

0 
 

(2,661) 
Revaluation/indexation  gains (13) 

 
404 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
391 

Transferred to disposal group as held for sale 0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
Impairments  0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Reversal of impairments 0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 

At 31 March 2012 3,115 
 

20,039 
 

501 
 

7,602 
 

27,230 
 

6,528 
 

548 
 

65,563 

                Depreciation at 1st November 2011 0 
 

1,350 
 

0 
 

4,529 
 

13,800 
 

3,233 
 

234 
 

23,146 
Provided during the year 0 

 
642 

 
0 

 
400 

 
1,486 

 
525 

 
28 

 
3,081 

Impairments  141 
 

475 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

616 
Reversal of impairments  0 

 
(83) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(83) 

Transferred to disposal group as assets held for 
sale 0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Disposals 0 
 

(9) 
 

0 
 

(1,138) 
 

(1,348) 
 

0 
 

0 
 

(2,495) 

Depreciation at 31 March 2012 141 
 

2,375 
 

0 
 

3,791 
 

13,938 
 

3,758 
 

262 
 

24,265 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

Net Book Value at 31 March 2012 2,974 
 

17,664 
 

501 
 

3,811 
 

13,292 
 

2,770 
 

286 
 

41,298 
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 12.2 Property, plant and equipment continued 
               

Part Year 2011-12 Land  
 

Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings 

 

Assets 
under 

construct 
and poa 

 

Plant and 
machinery  

 

Transport 
equipment  

 

Information 
technology  

 

Furniture 
& fittings  

 
Total 

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

 
£000  

                Cost or valuation at 1st April 2011 3,628 
 

19,776 
 

397 
 

8,637 
 

26,900 
 

6,055 
 

533 
 

65,926 
Additions purchased  0 

 
0 

 
3,793 

 
0 

 
0 

 
365 

 
15 

 
4,173 

Additions donated  0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
Additions government granted  0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Reclassifications 0 
 

0 
 

(3,570) 
 

396 
 

3,111 
 

56 
 

0 
 

(7) 
Reclassified as held for sale 0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(22) 

 
(1,590) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(1,612) 

Disposals - other than by sale 0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

(476) 
 

(119) 
 

(118) 
 

0 
 

(713) 
Revaluation/indexation  gains 0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Transferred to disposal group as held for sale 0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
Impairments  0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Reversal of impairments 0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 

At 31st October 3,628 
 

19,776 
 

620 
 

8,535 
 

28,302 
 

6,358 
 

548 
 

67,767 

                Depreciation at 1st April 2011 0 
 

478 
 

0 
 

4,450 
 

13,380 
 

2,649 
 

195 
 

21,152 
Reclassified as held for sale 0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(22) 

 
(1,590) 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(1,612) 

Disposals - other than by sale 0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
Impairments  92 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
92 

Charged during the year 0 
 

872 
 

0 
 

577 
 

2,066 
 

702 
 

39 
 

4,256 

Depreciation at 1st November 2011 92 
 

1,350 
 

0 
 

5,005 
 

13,856 
 

3,351 
 

234 
 

23,888 

                Net Book Value at 31 October 2011 3,536 
 

18,426 
 

620 
 

3,530 
 

14,446 
 

3,007 
 

314 
 

43,879 
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12.3 Property, plant and equipment financing 
               

 

Land 

 

Buildings 
excluding 
dwellings 

 

Assets 
under 

construct 
and poa 

 

Plant and 
machinery 

 

Transport 
equipment 

 

Information 
technology 

 

Furniture 
& fittings 

 

Total 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

Net book value 
               Owned 2,974 

 
12,525 

 
501 

 
3,811 

 
13,292 

 
2,770 

 
286 

 
36,159 

Finance leased 0 
 

5,139 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

5,139 
Government granted 0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

Total at 31 March 2012 2,974 
 

17,664 
 

501 
 

3,811 
 

13,292 
 

2,770 
 

286 
 

41,298 

                

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

Net book value 
               Owned 3,536 

 
13,051 

 
620 

 
4,005 

 
14,500 

 
3,128 

 
315 

 
39,155 

Finance leased 0 
 

5,375 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

5,375 

Government granted 0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 

Total at 31 October 2011 3,536 
 

18,426 
 

620 
 

4,005 
 

14,500 
 

3,128 
 

315 
 

44,530 
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13. Intangible assets acquired by government grant 

There were no intangible assets acquired by government grant during the period. 

 14.1 Economic life of intangible assets 

The Trust only holds software which has an economic life of 5 years 

14.2 Economic life of property, plant and equipment Min Life 

 

Max Life 

 

Years 

 

Years 

Land 1 

 

104 

Buildings - excluding dwellings 1 

 

104 

Plant and machinery 5 

 

15 

Transport equipment 4 

 

10 

Information technology 5 

 

5 

Furniture and fittings 5 

 

15 

 

 

15.1 Analysis of property, 

plant and equipment in the 

revaluation reserve at 31 

March 2012 

Land  

 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 

Assets 

under 

construct 

and poa 

 

Plant and 

machinery  

 

Transport 

equipment  

 

Information 

technology  

 

Furniture 

& fittings  

 

Total 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

                Unprotected assets 2,974 

 

17,664 

 

501 

 

3,811 

 

13,292 

 

2,770 

 

286 

 

41,298 
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16.  Investments 

 There were none during the period 

 

  17. Jointly Controlled Operations 

 There were none during the period 

 

18. Non -current assets for sale and assets in disposal 

groups at 1st November 2011 

Property, Plant 

and Equipment 

 

£000 

At 1st November 2011 435 

Plus assets classified as available fo sale in the year 1,073 

Less assets sold in the year (435) 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal 

groups at 31 March 2012 1,073 

  19.  Other assets 

 There were none during the period 

 

  20. Other financial assets 

 There were none during the period 

 21.1 Inventories 31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

 

£000 

 

£000 

    Consumables 588 

 

646 

Energy 223 

 

207 

Total 811 

 

853 

    Of which held at net realisable value: 0 

 

0 
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21.2   Inventories recognised in expenses 31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

 

£000 

 

£000 

    Inventories recognised as an expense in the period (765) 

 

(1,025) 

Write-down of inventories (including losses) 16  

 

(2) 

Reversal of write-downs that reduced the expense 0 

 

0 

 

(749) 

 

(1,027) 

 

22.1 Trade and other receivables Current 

 

Non-current 

 

Current 

 

Non-current 

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

 

31 October 2011 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

        NHS receivables-revenue 943 

 

701 

 

1,158 

 

741 

Non-NHS receivables-revenue 390 

 

0 

 

391 

 

0 

Provision for the impairment of receivables (21) 

 

0 

 

(21) 

 

0 

Operating lease receivables 0 

 

0 

 

9 

 

0 

Prepayments 1,824 

 

0 

 

1,754 

 

0 

Accrued income 1,262 

 

0 

 

288 

 

0 

PDC dividend receivable 22 

 

0 

 

2 

 

0 

VAT 81 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

Other receivables 810 

 

0 

 

63 

 

0 

Total 5,311 

 

701 

 

3,644 

 

741 

        The great majority of trade is with Primary Care and Foundation Trusts, as commissioners for NHS patient care services.  As Primary Care and Foundation 

Trusts are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary. 
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23.1  Provision for impairment of receivables 31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

 

   

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

   

     
   

At start of the period (21) 

 

(21) 

 

   

(Increase) in receivables impaired 0 

 

0 

 

   

Balance at end of the period (21) 

 

(21) 

 

   

     
   

23.2  Analysis of receivables 

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 March 2012 

    

 

£000 

 

£000 

    Aging of impaired receivables Trade 

 

Other 

     Over 180 days 21 

 

0 

    

        Aging of non impaired receivables past their due date 

       0-30 days 234 

       30-60 days 373 

 

4,576 

     60-90 days 9 

       90-180 days 57 

       Over 180 days 61 

 

22 

    

 

755 

 

4,598 

    

        

        24. Finance lease receivables 

There were none during the period 

       

        25. Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

    

 

£000 

 

£000 

    

        Balance at 1 November 6,802 

 

3,440 

    Net change in year 2,774 

 

3,362 

    Balance at 31 March 2012 9,576 

 

6,802 

    

        Made up of 

       Cash with Government banking services 9,576 

 

6,765 

    Commercial banks and cash in hand 0 

 

37 

    Current investments 0 

 

0 

    Cash and cash equivalents 9,576 

 

6,802 

    Bank overdraft - Government banking services 0 

 

0 

    Bank overdraft - Commercial banks 0 

 

0 

    Cash and cash equivalents 9,576 

 

6,802 
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26.1  Trade and other payables Current 

 

Non-current 

 

Current 

 

Non-current 

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

 

31 October 2011 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

        Receipts in advance 38 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

Interest payable 0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

NHS payables-revenue 871 

 

0 

 

926 

 

0 

NHS payables-capital 0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

Non NHS trade payables - revenue 287 

 

0 

 

224 

 

0 

Non NHS trade payables - capital 37 

 

930 

 

256 

 

928 

Accruals and deferred income 4,057 

 

0 

 

2,530 

 

0 

Other 8 

 

0 

 

1 

 

0 

Total 5,298 

 

930 

 

3,937 

 

928 

 

26.2 Early retirements in NHS payables above 

         There were no payables to the pensions agency in respect of the buy-out of early retirements over 5 years. 

  

          27.   Borrowings Current 

 

Non-current 

 

Current 

 

Non-current 

  

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

 

31 October 2011 

  

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

  

          Finance lease liabilities (346) 

 

(5,852) 

 

(454) 

 

(6,038) 

  Total (346) 

 

(5,852) 

 

(454) 

 

(6,038) 

  

          The Finance Lease liabilities relate to the capital principal repayments due on the finance leases. 

  The most significant finance lease is for the Foundation Trust Headquarters building which is not due to expire until 2025/26. 
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28.   Prudential Borrowing Limit 

         

          The NHS Foundation Trust is required to remain within a prudential borrowing limit, which is made up of two elements 

          - the maximum cumulative amount of long-term borrowing.  This is set by reference to the four ratio tests set out in Monitors Prudential Borrowing Code.  

the financial risk rating set out under Monitors Compliance Framework determines one of the ratios and therefore can impact on the long-term Borrowing 

limit. 

          -the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor.  Further information on the Prudential Borrowing Code for NHS Foundation Trusts can be 

found on Monitors website. 

          The Trust had a Prudential Borrowing Limit of £30,200,000 in the period ended 31st March, 2012.  The Trust had no borrowings in the period other than 

finance leases.  The working capital facility was opened with the Royal Bank of Scotland at a value of £8.5m but did not make use of this facility during the 

period. 

   

31 March 2012 

      

   

£000 

      
Total long term borrowing limit set by Monitor (per Schedule 5 of Trust's terms of 

Authorisation)  

  

21,700 

      
Working capital facility limit agreed by Monitor (per Schedule 5 of Trust's terms of 

Authorisation) 

  

8,500 

      Actual (contracted) working capital facility 

  

8,500 

      Total Prudential Borrowing Limit 

  

30,200 

      
Borrowing (as defined in the Prudential Borrowing Code) at start of period for new FTs 

  

6,198 

      Net actual borrowing/(repayment) in period 

  

0 

      



157 
 

Long term borrowing at 31 March 

  

6,198 

      Working capital borrowing at 31 March 

  

0 

      

   

 

 

      

   

Actual Ratios 

 

Approved PBL Ratios 

  Minimum dividend cover 

  

9.1 

 

>1x 

    Minimum interest cover 

  

36.3 

 

>3x 

    Minimum debt service cover 

  

17.4 

 

>2x 

    Minimum debt service to revenue 

  

0.6% 

 

<2.5% 

    

          29.   Other liabilities 

         There were none during the period 

         

          30.   Other financial liabilities 

         There were none during the period 

          

31.1   Provisions Current  Non-current 

 

Current  Non-current 

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

 

31 October 2011 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

        Pensions relating to former directors 12 

 

122 

 

12 

 

128 

Pensions relating to other staff 66  585  84  629 

Legal claims 235 

 

0 

 

232 

 

0 

Redundancy 0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

Other (Injury Benefits/frozen leave) 103 

 

1,475 

 

101 

 

1,538 

Total 416 

 

2,182 

 

429 

 

2,295 
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31.2   Provisions for liabilities and charges 

analysis 

Pensions 

relating to 

former 

directors 

 Pensions 

relating to 

other staff 

 Legal 

claims 

 Other  Tot

al 

 

 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£000 

 

£00

0 

  

            At 1st November 2011 140  713  232  1,639  2,7

24 

 

 Arising during the year 0  0  164  0  164  

 Used during the year (6)  (34)  (85)  (61)  (18

6) 

 

 Reversed unused 0  (28)  (76)  0 

 

(10

4) 

 

 Unwinding of discount 0  0  0  0 

 

0  

 At 31 March 2012 

134 

 

651 

 

235 

 

1,578 

 

2,5

98 

   

           Expected timing of cash flows: 

           Within one year 12 

 

66 

 

235 

 

103 

 

416 

  Between one and five years 45 

 

264 

 

0 

 

383 

 

692 

  

After five years 77 

 

321 

 

0 

 

1,092 

 

1,4

90 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

The 'other' class of provisions includes Injury Benefit provisions to ex-employees and Banked/Frozen Leave 
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The former director’s pensions, other staff pensions and injury benefits provision balances are calculated by using an estimate of life expectancy based on 

the Office of National Statistics Life Tables. The future payments for early retirements and injury benefits are also discounted to take into account the time 

value of money using HM Treasury's recommended discount rate of 2.9% for pension liabilities (2.8% from 31 March 2012) 

             Pensions relating to former Directors and some of the injury benefit provisions are under "Back to Back" agreements with local Primary Care trusts. 

These amounts are shown as non-current receivables. 

 
             The injury benefit payments assume a constant payment, however, as the individual loses or gains other state benefits these payments would alter 

and a revision to the carrying amount recorded. 

   

             £149,000 is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of the 

Foundation Trust (31/03/2011 £326,000). 

            

            32.  Contingencies 

         

          32.1   Contingent liabilities 31/03/12 

 

31/10/11 

      

 

£000 

 

£000 

      

          Other (employers liability claims) (186) 

 

(192) 

      Total (186) 

 

(192) 

      

          

Each employers liability claim is given a probability of the claim being successful, the remaining percentage is multiplied by 

the total liability to give the contingent element. The Foundation Trust's maximum exposure per claim is limited to a £10k 

excess, the remainder is the liability of the NHSLA. The 'legal claims' total of £186k given in Note 29. is the corresponding 

provision element of these same claims. The Foundation Trust is likely to settle these liabilities within 12 months. 
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32.2   Contingent assets 

         The Foundation Trust has one contingent asset, which it has had since 2002 and it may have this until expiry of a legal 

document in 2022. In September 2002, NEAS sold its interest in the Framwellgate Moor site to Durham County Council (on 

behalf of the Fire service). 

The nature of the Foundation Trusts claim on any future sale by Durham County Council is such that it is linked to indices. 

The current value of this contingent asset is negligible but will be reviewed each year. 
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33 Revaluation Reserve 

     

Part Year 2011-12 

Revaluation 

Reserve 

 

Revaluation 

Reserve 

 

Total 

 

Property 

plant and 

equipment 

 

 

 

 

 

£000  

 

£000  

 

£000  

      Cost or valuation at 1st November 2011 4,335 

 

70 

 

4,405 

Revaluations 391 

 

0 

 

391 

Transfers to other reserves (380) 

 

380 

 

0 

Asset disposals (91) 

 

(70) 

 

(161) 

Other reserves movements (195) 

 

0 

 

(195) 

At 31 March 2012 4,060 

 

380 

 

4,440 

 

34.  Related party transactions 

Senior employee Jim Baines has contracted a close relative to carry out training duties in a 

department for which they have overall responsibility.  The value of the transaction is £5,460.00 

which is material to the related party rather than to the Foundation Trust. 

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During the period North East Ambulance 

Service NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with the 

Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent 

Department.   

The entities that the Foundation Trust has material or significant transactions with are 

Strategic Health Authorities 

North East Strategic Health Authority 

 

NHS trusts 

Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust 

West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust 
 

NHS Foundation Trusts 

City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust 

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 

Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust 

Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 

South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

South Tyneside NHS Foundation Trust 
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Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust 

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 
 

Primary Care Trusts 
  

County Durham PCT   

Cumbria PCT     

Darlington PCT    

Gateshead PCT    

Hartlepool PCT    

Middlesbrough PCT   

Newcastle PCT    

North Tyneside PCT   

North Yorkshire and York PCT  

Northumberland Care Trust   

Redcar and Cleveland PCT   

Stockton PCT     

South Tyneside PCT   

Sunderland Teaching PCT   

 

Other NHS Bodies 

    NHS Pensions Agency 

    NHS Business Services Authority 

    NHS Litigation Authority 

     

    In addition, the Foundation trust has had a number of significant transactions with other 

government departments and other central and local government bodies. Those bodies are listed 

below: 

Durham County Council 

    Gateshead Council 

    Newcastle upon Tyne City Council 

    Northumberland County Council 

    Sunderland City Metropolitan Borough Council 

    Dept of Work and Pensions 

    HM Revenue & Customs 

    The Audit Commission 

    
 

The Foundation trust has also its own registered charity, certain members of the trustees are also 

members of the NHS trust board. 

 

 

Income 

 

Expenditure 

 

£000  

 

£000  

Value of transactions with other related parties during the period 

    Other NHS bodies 44,311 

 

291 
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Receivables 

 

Payables 

 

£000  

 

£000  

Value of balances transactions with other related parties as at 31 

March 2012 

     Other NHS bodies 2,873 

 

999 

  Other 102 

  

 

2,975 

 

999 
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35. Contractual Capital and other Financial Commitments 

      The Foundation Trust had capital commitments for property plant and equipment to the value of £1.302 

million 

 

36   Finance lease obligations 

31 March 2012 

 

31 October 2011 

 £000 

 

£000 

  

  Gross lease liabilities 8,495 

 

9,014 

of which liabilities are due  

    - not later than one year 582 

 

778 

  - later than one year and not later than five years 2,853 

 

2,939 

  - later than five years 5,060 

 

5,297 

Finance charges allocated to future periods (2,297)  (2,297) 

  

  Net lease liabilities 6,198 

 

6,492 

  - not later than one year 556 

 

746 

  - later than one year and not later than five years 2,449 

 

2,508 

  - later than five years 3,193 

 

3,238 

 

37. On SOFP PFI 

The Trust has no PFI schemes 

 

38. Off SOFP PFI 

The Trust has no PFI schemes 

 

39. Events after the reporting period 

There were none 
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40.   Financial instruments 

       

        40.1   Financial assets At fair value 

through profit and 

loss 

 Loans and 

receivables 

 Available 

for sale 

 Total 

 £000  £000  £000  £000 

        

Embedded derivatives 0  0  0  0 

NHS Receivables 0  2,867  0  2,867 

Non NHS Receivables 0  1,300  0  1,300 

Non current assets held for 

sale 

0  0  0  0 

Cash at bank and in hand 0  9,576  0  9,576 

Total at 31 March 2012 0  13,743  0  13,743 

        
Embedded derivatives 0      0 

Receivables 0  1,874  0  1,874 

Cash at bank and in hand 0  6,802  0  6,802 

Total at 31 October 2011 0  8,676  0  8,676 

 

40.2   Financial liabilities At fair value through profit and loss  Other  Total 

 £000  £000  £000 

      
Embedded derivatives 0    0 

NHS Payables   (992)  (992) 

Non-NHS Payables   (4,344)  (4,344) 

PFI and finance lease obligations   (6,198)  (6,198) 

Total at 31 March 2012 0  (11,534)  (11,534) 

      
Embedded derivatives 0    0 

Payables   (4,085)  (4,085) 

PFI and finance lease obligations   (6,492)  (6,492) 

Other financial liabilities 0    0 

Total at 31 October 2011 0  (10,577)  (10,577) 

 

40.3  Fair value of financial assets at 31 March 2012 

The book value of the Foundation Trusts financial assets is the same as the fair value. 

 

40.3  Fair value of financial liabilities at 31 March 2012 

The book value of the Foundation Trusts financial liabilities is the same as the fair value 
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40.4  Financial risk management 

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments 

have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its 

activities.   

Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the NHS Foundation Trust has 

with primary care trusts and the way those primary care trusts are financed, the NHS 

Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.  

Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than 

would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly 

apply.  The NHS Foundation Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and 

financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than 

being held to change the risks facing the NHS Foundation Trust in undertaking its activities. 

 

The Foundation Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance 

department, within parameters defined formally within the Foundation Trust’s standing 

financial instructions and policies agreed by the Board of Directors.  Foundation Trust 

treasury activity is subject to review by the Foundation Trust’s internal auditors. 

Currency risk 

The Foundation Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of 

transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based.  The Foundation Trust 

has no overseas operations.  The Foundation Trust therefore has low exposure to currency 

rate fluctuations. 

Interest rate risk 

The Foundation Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure.  The borrowings 

are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at 

the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan.  The Foundation Trust therefore 

has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations. 

Credit risk 

Because the majority of the Foundation Trust’s income comes from contracts with other 

public sector bodies, the Foundation Trust has low exposure to credit risk.  The maximum 

exposures as at 31 March 2012 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade 

and other receivables note. 

Liquidity risk 

The Foundation Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with primary care 

trusts, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament.  The Foundation 

Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit.  

The Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks. 
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41.  On Statement of Financial Position Pension Schemes 

The Trust has none 

42.  Transforming Community Services 

The Trust is not involved with TCS 

43.  Losses and special payments 

   

  

2011/12  2011/12 

  

Number  

 

£000's 

 

LOSSES:  
   

 

1. Losses of cash due to:  
   

 

a. theft, fraud etc  5 
 

0 

 

b. overpayment of salaries etc.  3 
 

2 

 

c. other causes  12,313 
 

41 

 

2. Fruitless payments  3 
 

1 

 

3. Bad debts and claims abandoned in relation to:  
  

 

a. private patients  
   

 

b. overseas visitors  
   

 

c. other  
   

 

4. Damage to buildings, property etc. due to:  
   

 

a. theft, fraud etc  
   

 

b. other  
   

 

TOTAL LOSSES  12,324 
 

44 

 

SPECIAL PAYMENTS:  
   

 

5. Compensation under legal obligation  
   

 

6. Extra contractual to contractors  
   

 

7. Ex gratia payments in respect of:  
   

 

a. loss of personal effects  
   

 

b. clinical negligence with advice  
   

 

c. personal injury with advice  32 
 

85 

 

d. other negligence and injury  
   

 

e. Severence payments on termination of 

employment 
1 

 
18 

 

f. Other employment payments 
   

 

g. Patient referrals outside the UK and EEA 

Guidelines    

 

h. other  2 
 

0 

 

i. maladministration, no financial loss  
   

 

8. Extra statutory and regulatory 
   

 

TOTAL SPECIAL PAYMENTS  35 
 

103 

 

TOTAL LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS  12,359 
 

147 

 

 

44.  Better Payment Practice Code 
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 Part Year 

  

 

2011-12 

    

 

Number 

 

£000 

    

         

 

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 7,053 

 

11,730 

    

 

Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target 6,921 

 

11,498 

    

 

Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 98% 

 

98% 

    

         

 

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 426 

 

1,171 

    

 

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 424 

 

1,170 

    

 

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 100% 

 

100% 

    

                  

 

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Foundation Trust to aim to pay all undisputed 

invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is 

later. 
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Voluntary disclosures  

Sustainability in the North East Ambulance Service 

The North East Ambulance Service regards sustainability as a priority in our business. We have 

consistently committed to introducing energy saving initiatives and more sustainable practices. 

Our Board of Directors approved a Sustainable Development Management Plan in 2010. The plan 

has several areas of focus, monitored through the Environmental Management Working Group, 

which meets on a quarterly basis: 

1. Fleet: investing in more fuel efficient vehicles. All Trust front-line vehicles are now Euro V 

compliant, producing lower emissions to the atmosphere and resulting in an average saving 

of 1.8mpg. 

2. Reducing business travel: encouraging car-sharing initiatives in Trust staff. 

3. Developing green travel plans: participating in the Cycle to Work scheme, and providing 

food vouchers to staff who cycle to work during National Bike Week, as well as introducing a 

secure bike storage facility for staff at Headquarters.  

4. Energy and carbon reduction: regularly monitored carbon output, with forecasting for future 

years to predict if the Trust may be using more than expected.  

5. Waste and water management: including a Rapid Process Improvement Workshop on 

clinical waste management.  

The Trust’s Environmental Management Working Group reports to the Board level Governance and 

Risk Committee, and has met twice during the period November 1st 2011 to March 1st 2012. The 

group has a lead representative from the Board of Directors, Jeff Fitzpatrick, as well as members 

from the Fleet, Procurement, Estates, Quality, and Monitoring and Compliance teams. During this 

reporting period the group received reports on the following: 

 The Procurement Action Plan; this plan supports environmentally friendly practices through 

encouraging suppliers to use sustainable products, cutting down on packaging waste, and 

compliance with the Trust’s environmental policy.  

 Estates and Utilities Action Plan; supporting Estates strategies to establish energy efficient 

practices and embedding of best practice within Estates management. 

 Plans for adaptations to buildings and estates to improve energy efficiency. 

 Clinical waste management practices. 

 Potential vehicle fleet modifications to improve energy efficiency and reduce emissions. 

Some of the initiatives the Trust has undertaken or continued during the period November 1st 2011 

to March 1st 2012 to improve energy efficiency include the following: 

 Boiler replacement at our Pallion site, to improve efficiency. 

 Alterations to the lighting control system at our headquarters building to automatically 

switch lights off when there is sufficient daylight. 

 Continued use of photovoltaic (solar panels) at our Pallion site 

 Introduction of photovoltaic at our Middlesbrough and Consett sites.  

 Introduction of solar hot water at our Russell House and Consett sites 
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Sustainability is measured by financial year, and reported to the Department of Health through our 

annual Estates Return Information Collection (ERIC) report in the summer of the following financial 

year. For this reason, sustainability information will only be included up to the year 2010/11, as data 

for 2011/12 is not yet available. 

 

 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 

Energy cost (£) 499,171 614,486 807,712 727,973 

 

Total Waste (Tonnes) 

N/A* N/A* N/A* 364.289 

Recycled waste (Tonnes) N/A* N/A* N/A* 127.319 

Water usage (m3) 18,574 14,470 20,798 20,203 

Oil usage (MWh) 648.33 782.22 681.66 492 

Gas usage (MWh) 3375.55 3429.00 3873.16 4747.37 

Electricity usage (MWh) 2830.83 3059.61 3099.54 3091.54 

Diesel usage (Litres) N/A* 2,639,798.45 2,884,340.44 2,760,487.17 

Carbon output from 

gas/oil/electricity/diesel usage 

(Tonnes) 

N/A* 9,563.62 8,863.46 10,131.37 

*Data unavailable 

Carbon usage 

The table above shows an increase in carbon output during 2010/11. The reason for this is the Trust 

using more fuel in our vehicles, as we responded to 3.4% more incidents in 2010/11 than the 

previous year. 2010/11 was also the first full year that we operated sites at Russell House (Hebburn) 

and new stations at Backworth, Hartlepool North and Hartlepool South, resulting in higher usage of 

utilities and a higher carbon output.  

 

Although final figures are not known for 2011/12 at the time of producing this report, the carbon 

output appears to be less than forecast for the year.  

 

Requirement of ‘Your Statutory Duties - a reference guide for NHS Foundation Trust Governors’ 

The Trust is in the process of tendering for its External Audit provider services.  It has established an 

Audit Task & Finish Group which includes two Governors and a specification and criteria for 

evaluating the tender responses, has been formulated and agreed by the Council.  A 

recommendation will be put to the Council of Governors, regarding the appointment of a new 

External Auditor, in July 2012.  Should the Council not accept the recommendation, then details will 

be incorporated within the Annual Report. 
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